1

MR. QUALLS: Okay with me.

MR. EDWARDS: Would that be until noon?

THE COURT: No, we have to finish up. I don't know how long it's going to take. You have Mr. Specchio and then you had arguments.

MR. EDWARDS: I have a hearing at 1:30 across the street.

THE COURT: Is it a death penalty case?

MR. EDWARDS: No, Your Honor. I'll tell them about you.

THE COURT: Okay. We have to move things around.

Is it something --

MR. EDWARDS: It's a family law case.

THE COURT: Think you can get on the calendar fairly quickly after that again?

MR. EDWARDS: I'll talk to them about it. I'll
contact their department.

THE COURT: Okay. So at the conclusion of today's hearing, we will allow Mr. Vanisi to leave and go back to the prison and not be brought back until May 18th for the 10 a.m. hearing.

Okay. Counsel, go ahead -- there's one other thing. The prison brought up the defendant's medical history. Have you all seen it?

MR. EDWARDS: Not since the original records were produced. Is this --

THE COURT: This is just the current, and it would be filed under seal. It's his personal medical records, but you're welcome to come see it. You may approach.

(Bench conference between Court and counsel.)

I'm going to have the clerk mark the THE COURT: medical record and seal it along with the other medical records. But counsel has had an opportunity to review it. It's my understanding that Mr. Vanisi has not had the Haldol or the other two medications that he normally, that he might have normally had, at his request. It's admitted under seal.

> THE CLERK: Exhibit J marked.

> > (Exhibit J was marked and admitted.)

THE COURT: Just want to remind you, even though we unsealed your petition, his medical records have an ongoing ability to be sealed. That's not the same as the allegations that you raised in your petition for writ of So there are some documents that are habeas corpus. sealed from public access still.

MR. EDWARDS: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead, and are we calling a

24

witness out of order?

MR. McCARTHY: Yes. Even though the petitioner hasn't rested, there's a witness who doesn't work at the courthouse all day and I'd like to accommodate her. Laura Bielser.

THE COURT: You're all stipulating?

MR. EDWARDS: We've agreed to this.

THE COURT: Come forward and face the court clerk and be sworn.

LAURA BIELSER

called as a witness on behalf of the Respondent,

having been first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

- Q Would you introduce yourself, please.
- A My name is Laura Bielser, B-i-e-l-s-e-r.
- Q Are you currently working with the County Public Defender?
 - A Not any longer.
- Q You have previously been employed by the Public Defender here?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

.1

. 3

- Q In what capacity?
- A I was Mike Specchio's administrative assistant.
- Q For about how long?
- A Close to 13 years.
- Q You and Mr. Specchio developed an efficient working relationship?
 - A Absolutely.
- Q Were you working with Mr. Specchio in '98 and '99?
 - A Yes.
- Q Do you recall in '98, I think, having occasion to contact the Tongan Consulate?
 - A I do.
- Q And did that come about because Mr. Specchio had you do that?
 - A Yes.
- Q Do you remember, either generally or specifically, the nature of that communication to them?
- A We contacted them because we wanted some assistance in representing Siaosi Vanisi, and we also wanted to gain more information on the Tongan culture.
 - Q Did you hear back from the Consulate?
 - A Eventually I did. I think I needed to -- if I

.2

recall correctly, I haven't seen anything in seven years, but I had to call them or e-mail them or fax them repeatedly, and then I did hear back from them.

- Q And do you recall, either generally or specifically, the nature of that response from the Tongan Consulate?
 - A They wanted nothing to do with us.
 - Q Had you explained the nature of the charge?
 - A We did.
- Q Had you explained that the accused was a citizen of Tonga?
 - A We did.

MR. McCARTHY: That's all I have.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- Q Where is the Tongan Consulate, Ms. Bielser?
- A I think it was in San Francisco, but I think all of my correspondence was via e-mail.
 - So you contacted them by an e-mail?
- A I believe so. And maybe fax, too. I don't remember.
 - Q Did you save any of that in the record any place?
 - A I'm sure it's in there. We don't throw anything

23

24

амау.

- Q So there would be proof of this contact that you made?
 - A Yes.
 - Q And who you contacted and when?
 - A Sure, yeah.
- Q Have any idea where that might be, that proof, that written documentation?

A I would imagine, if it was a fax, it would be in the original file. Or an e-mail, I would have printed out the e-mail and that would be in the original file.

- Q You were using e-mail in 1998 to communicate with?
 - A Yeah, I'm sure.
- Q Did you know of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations at the time that you made this contact?
 - A I don't recall, no.
- Q Anybody ever mention that to you in the course of having you contact the Tongan Consulate?
 - A No.
 - Q When you say --
 - A Not that I recall. I don't know. I haven't --
- Q Did they respond to you in writing or was that by telephone? Do you have any recollection?

	A	Ιf	it v	was	bу	phone	e ,]	[wou	ıld	have	men	oed	it,	made
a	physic	cal r	nemo	οf	it.	Ιf	iţ	was	bу	e-ma	il,	I wo	ould	have
p:	rinted	it.	So	I d	lon'	t re	cal	l.]	[de	on't	reca	11	if i	t was
f:	ax or e	e-ma	il.											

- But you recall them, I believe your statement was not having, wanting to have anything tod o with us?
 - Α Yes, exactly.
- You don't recall how that was communicated to you, though?
- Α Pretty much we're not going to help you, pretty much.
 - Either by fax or phone or e-mail?
- Yeah, that, you know, sorry, but we're not going to get involved.
- Did you keep a time record of the hours that you spent on Mr. Vanisi's case?
 - Yes. Α
 - If I showed it to you, would you recollect it?
 - I'm sure. Α
 - MR. McCARTHY: I've seen it.
- MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, may I approach the witness?
 - THE COURT: Yes.
 - MR. EDWARDS: For the record, Your Honor, this is

AA01684

. 3

. 1

5

9

a portion of the 250 memorandum relating to the time record of Laura Bielser.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- Ms. Bielser, if you could look at that and tell 0 me if there's any indication there of the -- first of all, is that your time record?
 - Α Yes, I'm sure it is, yes.
- Related to the time that you spent in the Siaosi Vanisi case, right?
 - Α Yes.
- And you apparently logged 90 hours during the course of the Public Defender's representation of Mr. Vanisi; is that right?
 - If that's what it says. Α
- So it looks pretty detailed, like everything that you did in the case is logged in there, right?
 - Α It does, uh-huh.
- Can you show me anywhere in that time record Q where it shows that you contacted the Tongan Consulate?
 - Α I don't see it specifically.
- Thank you. No further questions, Your Q Okay. Honor.

.0

8

9

. 4

. 2

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

Still looking at that. If you would look at the Q entry for April 20th. 1998. And there's a reference, an e-mail, someone named, something named P-U-T-K-I-A, do you know who that is?

I don't remember, it could have been someone from Α the Tongan Consulate.

By the way, when you got the response, whatever it may have been, did you tell Mr. Specchio about that response?

Α Yes.

> MR. McCARTHY: Nothing else.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- You're not sure about this entry on 4-20-98 being the Tongan Consulate, right?
- Α Am I absolutely sure? No. But if I were to guess, I would say that's it.
- Why does it say "Australian Anthropologist, Center for Capital Assistance"?
- Α Because somehow -- let me think. There was a connection with a specific Australian anthropologist who

7

1

8

2

did either Tongan culture research or something like that. Mike had found somebody familiar with I believe the Tongan I know it looks odd, but we were trying to do everything that we could, and that was one of the things The S. Phillips, I don't know, is that what you're talking about, S. Phillips? Because I don't know what that is.

- Center for Capital Assistance. See, it says "E-mail Putkai, Australian anthropologist," right?
- Α I think what I did, this was one letter sent to several different people, now that I recall. asking a lot of people for help. And I would bet that the Putkai is somebody's name at the consulate, but I can't guarantee that.
- Q But somewhere out there there's a more detailed record of what you did, is that what you're saying?
- I would think the original e-mail would be in the file that I sent to all five of these people.
- It would be your practice to make a copy of something like that?
 - Α To print a copy.
 - And this took three hours; is that right?
- The Internet search along with it, it says two and a half, yeah.

8

- Α Maybe, yeah.
- Thank you. No further questions, Your Q Okay. Honor.

MR. McCARTHY: Nothing else.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. You are excused.

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, looks like neither of us have additional evidence today.

MR. EDWARDS: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So we're set for the 18th at 10 a.m. and that would be, we'll have -- now have you had a chance, I suppose we say we're set. Do we think Mr. Specchio will be back in town?

MR. EDWARDS: Oh. Your Honor --

THE COURT: Did you just lose the person who might tell you?

MR. EDWARDS: Since he's retired, I don't think she works with him anymore; but Mr. Petty did say, and Mr. Bosler, that two weeks from now would be safe.

> MR. McCARTHY: They were guessing.

MR. EDWARDS: I think maybe -- we'll try to verify that tomorrow, how is that?

9

0

2

9

THE COURT: That would be good.

MR. EDWARDS: And I'll work on my family law issue as well.

MR. McCARTHY: I have a member of my able investigative staff available who I will ask to see if he can find out when Mr. Specchio will be back.

THE COURT: That's what we need to hear, Mr. Specchio. And then you think that will be the end of the witnesses and then there will be some argument?

MR. EDWARDS: I think so, Your Honor. deliberating about one additional witness not relative to the Tongan Consulate, an additional witness, perhaps an expert and that would be it. And then my opinion is that the motion to dismiss is really, the argument thereon would really be a rehash of the substantive issues in the petition itself. So I don't see why we should separate the two for argument purposes, why we can't just argue it all at once, if that's all right with the Court.

MR. McCARTHY: I don't know what to say. seems that we're going to decide whether to have a hearing after the hearing. If that's the way it's going to be, it's okay with me.

MR. EDWARDS: I think you're going to decide whether to dismiss it or deny it.

Right. There is a difference.

MR. McCARTHY: Yes. And I would prefer -- I don't object to taking additional evidence before that, but I would prefer the Court rule on the procedural, the potential procedural defenses before considering the merits of the claims.

THE COURT: So the argument will be just first your motion to dismiss, and then you may respond, Mr. Edwards. And you will have an opportunity to present, if I don't grant the motion to dismiss, you will be able to present your argument with regard to the petition and the witnesses.

> MR. McCARTHY: Then I can go last.

THE COURT: Then you can respond. But I might let him go after you, Mr. McCarthy.

MR. EDWARDS: I have the burden at this stage.

THE COURT: That's right.

So I'm just thinking we should be able to finalize this, though, on the 18th, if we have Mr. Specchio.

> MR. EDWARDS: I believe so, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Great. Court's in recess.

(Proceedings concluded at 4:20 p.m.)

-000-

STATE OF NEVADA,

COUNTY OF WASHOE.)

I, DENISE PHIPPS, Certified Shorthand Reporter of the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, do hereby certify:

That I was present in Department No. 4 of the above-entitled Court and took stenotype notes of the proceedings entitled herein, and thereafter transcribed the same into typewriting as herein appears;

That the foregoing transcript is a full, true and correct transcription of my stenotype notes of said proceedings.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 05/02/2005.

DENISE PHIPPS, CCR No. 234

Exhibit 40

Exhibit 40

Code No. 4185

Dept. No. 4

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE THE HONORABLE CONNIE STEINHEIMER, DISTRICT JUDGE -000-SIAOSI VANISI. Petitioner, Case No. CR98P0516

VS. STATE OF NEVADA, Respondent.

> TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS CONTINUED POST-CONVICTION HEARING WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2005 RENO, NEVADA

Reported By: DENISE PHIPPS, CCR No. 234

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534

For the Petitioner:

SVan 1512JDG051820

6

7

8

9

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

.0

. 1

:2

:3

: 4

SCOTT EDWARDS Attorney at Law 729 Evans Avenue Reno, Nevada 89512 -and-

THOMAS L. QUALLS Attorney at Law 443 Marsh Avenue Reno, Nevada 89509

For the Respondent:

TERRENCE P. McCARTHY DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY 75 Court Street Reno, Nevada 89520

	I N D	<u>E X</u>			
WITNESSES	DIRECT	CROSS	REDIRECT	RECROSS	VDIRE
MICHAEL SPECCHIO RICHARD CORNELL	5 17,26	12 53	14 58	15	22
·					

8Van 1812JDG051835

:0

1:

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

6

5

```
RENO, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2005, 10:00 A.M.
                      -000-
```

THE COURT: Mr. Edwards.

MR. EDWARDS: Good morning, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ready to proceed?

MR. EDWARDS: Yes, Your Honor, ready to proceed. It's my goal here this morning to finish this process by noon or thereabout, as best I can. So perhaps if we could finish with the taking of testimony, and if there's time left for some minor argument, I'd like to present that as well.

THE COURT: If we aren't finished by 12:00, we can always start again at 1:00.

MR. EDWARDS: At this time I'd like to call Mr. Specchio, please.

THE COURT: Mr. Specchio, please go ahead and face the court clerk and be sworn.

1//

111

111

111

111 1//

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

MICHAEL SPECCHIO

called as a witness on behalf of the Petitioner. having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- Good morning, sir. Could you please state and spell your name for the record.
 - Mike Specchio, S-p-e-c-c-h-i-o. Α
- And Mr. Specchio, you were the long-time Washoe County Public Defender; is that correct?
 - Yes. Α
 - And recently retired, I gather?
 - Yes. Α
 - Congratulations.
 - Thank you.
- You had an opportunity to represent now my client Mr. Siaosi Vanisi; is that correct?
 - That's correct. A.
- Can you give us a little insight into what phases of the representation you were involved in?
- I was involved in the -- there were two trials. I was involved in the first trial. And I had heart

AA01697

9

.9

.7

surgery, and the case was turned over to Steve Gregory and Jeremy Bosler, I think.

- Q Did you author what's known as the 250 Memorandum in this case, do you have any recollection about that?
 - Α That's possible.
- If I showed you a copy of it, would you have a look at it, see if you can refresh your recollection?

Α Sure.

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, for the record, I believe we entered this into the record at the last proceeding.

> THE COURT: I believe we did.

THE WITNESS: It could very well be, I mean authored by me.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- It could have been authored by you? Q
- Yeah. Α
- I'd like you to look through there. And there's some statements that I've highlighted that I want to make sure were actually statements, assertions, conclusions made by you or with your hand. So if we could address them. First of all, there are no page numbers on this. So I'm referring to a statement under a heading Services Performed, about five pages in on the memo.

8

5

7

.9

:1

:2

24

:3

- Okay. Α
- Do you see the first highlighted statement there?
- Yes. Α
- Could you read that, please? Q

"Defendant is Tongan. Unfortunately, the local Α Tongan community who had professed aid and assistance for the defendant became disenchanted and have ignored our requests to confer with them."

- Q. Is that your statement, conclusion?
- Yes. Α
- Q You have recollection of composing that?
- Α Yes.
- How about the next highlighted statement on that Q page.
- "We contacted the Tongan Consulate without Α success."
- Can you tell me what that means, "contacted the Tongan Consulate"?
- We contacted the Tongan Consulate in San Francisco, and they asked us for information about the We initially, I think, just sent them the headlines, the newspaper --
 - Newspaper headlines?
 - Yeah, I think that's all we sent initially. Α

19

21

23

- Q How was this contact made? Telephonically or in writing?
 - A I don't remember. I don't remember.
- Q Do you personally have any recollection speaking to anyone in the Tongan Consulate?
 - A I think I did, but I don't remember.
- Q Were you aware of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations at the time of your representation of Mr. Vanisi?
 - A No.
- Q So would it be fair to say that there was no attempt to contact the Consular of Tonga to fulfill some obligation under that international agreement?
 - A That would be a fair statement.
- Q Do you recall if you ever had any discussions with Mr. Vanisi about contacting the Tongan Consulate?
- A I don't remember. I would imagine, but I don't remember.
- Q Thank you. If you could proceed to the next item I've highlighted there. And we're probably about 20 pages in now, is that fair? If you could read the highlighted portion into the record, what you're reviewing.
- A "It became obvious that a conflict of interest was created when the defendant advised that he did in fact

:3

kill Sergeant Sullivan and he was going to testify and commit perjury when he was on the witness stand."

- Q Is that the totality of the highlighted area?
- A No. Next paragraph, "He was advised that his creation of a conflict of interest for us prevented us from representing him at trial and moved the Court to represent himself."
 - Q Is that your --
 - A He moved the Court.
- Q Okay. Is that statement your personal statement? Did you write that, compose it?
 - A I'm sure I wrote this, yeah.
- Q So you're advising the record, I guess, through this memo that you had a conflict of interest; is that correct, your office, I suppose?
- A Well, I don't know what it says in these 20 or 30 pages before this, but I would think that if in fact he indicated, as I stated, that, yeah, we would have a conflict of interest.
- Q If you could move to the next one. And we're probably about 30 pages into the memo now, right?
 - A Yeah, I'd say, at least.
- Q Could you read the highlighted section into the record?

1

A "The trial left little room for meaningful cross-exam and presentation of any viable defense."

- Q Is that your personal conclusion?
- A Well, yeah, it's based on these pages of statements that I'm not familiar with. But from what I remember about this case that's probably correct.
- Q So is that your assessment about the way the trial was and the performance of your attorneys in this case?
 - A Yeah.
- Q Last conclusion or statement, if you could kindly read it. It's now probably about 40 pages in in a different spacing; is that right?
 - A Yeah. Probably 30 or 40 pages from the rear.
- Q Would you please read that highlighted portion into the record.
- A "The defendant's medical condition" -- "mental condition and his election to act in such a bizarre fashion made him unable to assist counsel in his own defense."
- Q Is that a statement you wrote and agreed with?

 MR. McCARTHY: He is not being offered as an
 expert psychiatric witness. I object for lack of
 foundation.

8

23

MR. EDWARDS: I'm asking if he adopts that statement as one made by himself, Your Honor.

THE COURT: When was that, at what point in the litigation?

MR. EDWARDS: I just want to know if he authored that because it's in a different typeset.

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Want to know if that's something that he wrote in the memo?

MR. EDWARDS: Right, rather than a conclusion of someone else, like Mr. Gregory or --

THE COURT: You're not offering it for the truth of the matter?

> MR. EDWARDS: No, just --

THE COURT: Just what he said, if he said it.

MR. EDWARDS: If that was an authentic --

THE WITNESS: I think I said everything in here because I think I wrote this.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- Do you have any written proof that we Thank you. might present regarding your notification or your contact with consular authorities from Tonga?
 - I haven't had access to the file in years.
 - Sure. Thank you, sir.

AA01703

0

1

.6

.9

No further questions, Your Honor.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

- Q Mr. Specchio, as county public defender, you were charged with supervising the performance of, what, how many lawyers?
- A 32 when I left. Probably 30 in 19 -- this would be 2001, I guess. So probably 30 lawyers at the time.
 - Q Handled an occasional case yourself as well?
 - A Yes.
- Q Did your office have a budget for investigations, interpreters, experts and the like?
 - A Yes.
 - Q How long were you a public defender?
 - A From 1992 until last month.
- Q And in that time did you ever run short in your budget?
 - A One time we had to ask for additional funds.
 - Q Did you get it?
 - A Yes.
- Q Do you recall when Vanisi was first arrested in Salt Lake City asking Salt Lake City counterparts to visit him in the jail?

AA01704

0

:3

A Yes.

- Q Was that, as far as you know, your first involvement in the case?
- A I think that probably was. I know we got -- we got some calls on this case right off the bat from some members of the Tongan community that wanted to make sure that Mr. Vanisi's rights were protected, and I think that was before Salt Lake City, if I'm not mistaken. Might have been -- or it was right around the same time.
- Q So you became involved in trying to protect Vanisi's rights perhaps even before he was arrested?
 - A Yes.
 - Q Certainly not long after?
 - A No, it was definitely before.
- Q When you wrote in your memo there was a conflict of interest, is the conflict, were you actively representing someone else's interests?
 - A No.
- Q The conflict arose because you felt you were ethically limited?
- A If he would have followed through with what he indicated. That statement is kind of out of context.
 - Q Not exactly a conflict of interest?
 - A Not yet. Could have been created.

23

Q Certainly hampered your ability to do so?

A I would think so. And we have an obligation to advise the Court in so many words as to the existence of the conflict or the way that Mr. Vanisi would have had to testify.

MR. McCARTHY: That's all I have.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q Just one question, Your Honor.

On this meeting in Salt Lake City, you asked your public defender counterpart to meet with Mr. Vanisi; is that your testimony?

- A Yes, tell him to keep his mouth shut.
- Q Was there any talk or discussion that you're aware of about consular relations and all that?
 - A No. You mean with Salt Lake?
 - Q Yeah.
 - A No.
- Q When you use the term "conflict of interest," you realize that has a legal term of art to it, correct?
 - A I do.
- ${\mathbb Q}$ And was it used in that sense in your statement that we'd been talking about?

. 4

.5

. 6

.7

.8

.9

01

21

22

23

24

MR. McCARTHY: Somewhat leading, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q Did you mean the legal definition of conflict of interest when you used it in your statement?

MR, McCARTHY: Still is.

THE COURT: You can ask him what he meant.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q What did you mean?

A What I meant, that statement, I haven't read the entire report, but my understanding, that statement said if Mr. Vanisi was to act in a certain way, that a conflict of interest would be created. Namely, some admissions that he made, and then his willingness to get on the stand and testify contrary to that would put us in a very difficult position. Or a conflict of interest.

MR. EDWARDS: Thank you. Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. McCarthy, anything further?

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

 \mathbb{Q} At the time your office represented Mr. Vanisi at any time in the litigation, was anyone in your office

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

9

4

actively representing competing interests?

A No.

MR. McCARTHY: That's all.

MR, EDWARDS: Nothing further.

THE COURT: You may step down.

MR. QUALLS: Your Honor, we'll call Richard Cornell.

MR. McCARTHY: I promised earlier that I have an objection to Mr. Cornell's testimony, and indeed I do.

THE COURT: Go ahead and sit down for a minute, Mr. Cornell.

MR. McCARTHY: This was originally -- this hearing was originally scheduled for three days. We quit at 3:00 on the first day with the promise that the purpose of the continuance was to hear from Mr. Specchio and any representative of the Tongan Consulate that might decide to appear. That was the only purpose of the continuance. As far as I'm concerned, we're done.

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, I'd like to respond to that.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR, EDWARDS: Page 99 of the May 2nd, 2005 hearing transcript. The Court is inquiring of me. Your statement is: "That's what we need to hear, Mr. Specchio,

AA01708

8

8

and then you think there will be the end of the witnesses and there will be some argument?" And I respond to you saying, "I think so, Your Honor. We're deliberating about one additional witness, not relative to the Tongan Consulate, an additional witness, perhaps an expert, and that would be it."

MR. McCARTHY: That was what Mr. Edwards said. That's not what the Court said.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to allow the witness to go forward. But if you didn't have enough notice and you need additional time, Mr. McCarthy, to call a rebuttal witness, I'll allow that.

MR. McCARTHY: If it comes up, I'll feel free.

MR. EDWARDS: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Cornell, go ahead and face the court clerk and be sworn.

RICHARD CORNELL

called as a witness on behalf of the Petitioner, having been first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUALLS:

Q Good morning, sir.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

1

9

.5

.9

23

Good morning. Α

- Could you please state your name and spell your 0 last name for the court reporter.
 - Richard F. Cornell, C-o-r-n-e-l-l. Α
 - And what's your occupation, Mr. Cornell? Q
 - Α I'm an attorney.
 - And do you do appellate work?
 - Yes. Α
- And are you also qualified under Supreme Court Rule 250?
- I believe so, based on my experience. I mean I don't have a piece of paper saying that I'm hereby designated as so qualified. But I think that I would meet the qualifications.
- Let's talk about that a little. What are some of your qualifications?
- Α Well, I have handled six capital murder cases in the post-conviction realm, both state and federal, and also one at trial. Well, handled five in the post-conviction realm, both state and federal. Gallego, William Leonard, Michael Hogan, Abram Nika and Tracy Petrocelli. And I had a sixth one, which was Raymond Currington at the pretrial stage where I was appointed as second counsel and the case never proceeded

AA01710

to a capital hearing because we were able to get the notice of death penalty stricken and that upheld on an extraordinary writ.

- Q Just to follow up, as far as other appellate experience, do you know approximately how many direct appeals you have --
- A Between the time I was in the appellate division in the District Attorney's Office in the early '80s and private practice since then, I couldn't hazard an exact number. But I would say in excess of 200.
 - Q And that's criminal?
 - A Yes.
 - Q And then --
 - A Criminal post-conviction.
 - O Then some additional civil cases?
 - A Yes. Not as many, but yes.
- Q And so having that kind of experience with post-conviction cases, are you familiar with the Strickland standard?
 - A Yes.
- Q And could you tell us what your understanding of that is?
- A Yes. Strickland is a two-prong standard that does away with the sham pretense standard and essentially

7

8.

6

:3

it's a two-prong standard. Number one, did counsel act below the standard of reasonably effective counsel, either in presenting evidence, not presenting evidence, objecting to evidence, not objecting to evidence, making motions, not making motions and that sort of thing. And then number two, if counsel was below the standard and his performance, was the defendant prejudiced by that deficient performance.

- Q Thank you. In preparing to give your testimony in this case today, did you review certain documents?
 - A Yes.
 - Q And what were those, if you recall?

A Yes. In fact, I brought some of them with me to help me out here. I reviewed the supplemental petition that you and Mr. Edwards prepared and filed in February of this year and a list of claims that summarized them. I reviewed the penalty transcript in terms of how the Court instructed the jury at penalty. I reviewed the briefs in this case, Mr. Petty's briefs and Mr. McCarthy's brief. I reviewed the formerly sealed transcripts that went on at time of trial or prior to trial regarding the Public Defender asserting the conflict of interest to the trial judge.

I reviewed the published opinion of Vanisi versus

.3

State, which is 117 Nevada 300 something, if I remember right. I reviewed selected portions of the trial transcript from the guilt phase.

Q Thank you. And based upon your review, do you have an opinion as to any errors, including Strickland errors, that occurred at the trial level?

MR. McCARTHY: Objection, Your Honor. If the witness here is being called as an expert for the standards in the community, I'd like to talk about that. If he's being called to say that the Supreme Court would have reversed or something else, it's not relevant. Whether there was error or not, this witness can't speak to it.

THE COURT: You're asking for a conclusion that's a determination by this Court or the Supreme Court, or some other court. He certainly can testify as to the standard in the community both for appellate representation, you can ask those specific things. You can even make a representation whether or not he believes some attorney in the case fell below that standard. But he can't reach the ultimate conclusion.

MR. QUALLS: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. QUALLS:

Q I misworded that.

. 1

8

9

18

23

I appreciate that clarification, because I really wouldn't want to be talking about prejudice anyway. That's clearly a judicial call.

Anyway, go ahead.

So the question restructured is: Do you have an opinion relevant to Strickland as to whether the performance of the trial counsel fell below the standard of reasonableness as defined there?

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, now that there's been a question posed asking the opinion, I'd like to voir dire, please.

> THE COURT: You may.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

- Let's see. Mr. Cornell, you do not devote a great deal of your attention to trials, do you?
- Α I've tried about 30 cases to a Not anymore. But the last jury trial I handled was 1997.
 - And have you tried any capital cases?
- To a verdict, no. Like I say, the one capital case I had at the trial level was the Currington case and it never got to a penalty phase.
 - And now you, in your appellate capacity, you

AA01714

19

20

21

22

23

24

generate a lot of paperwork, I would imagine?

- A Yes.
- Q Do you work alone?
- A Yes.
- Q Do you get to observe other lawyers advancing appeals?
 - A Yes.
 - Q In what way? How do you do that?
- A Well, I mean I read the finished product of what they've done.
 - O The opinions or the briefs?
- A The opinions, certainly. The briefs in a few selected cases, yes.
- Q Is that common that you would read someone else's briefs on appeal?
- A If I'm not being asked to do this kind of work. Not common, but not unheard of. If I had spotted an issue that I've never litigated, for example, this Vienna Convention issue that we're talking about here, I would definitely want to look at someone else's brief bank on this to see what they've raised. Similarly, in federal court, there's quite an uproar over the Booker case and the effect of that on federal sentencing guidelines, and I've certainly looked at what the Federal Public

7

2

7

Defender's Office has done brief-wise in presenting memoranda, because I've ghost written a bunch of sentencing memoranda since Booker.

- Q I get the sense, the nature of your practice, you don't get to spend your days hanging out in court, then?
 - A No. Except in the law library.
- Q People in our business were once known as library rats.
 - A Yeah, I think that would characterize me.
- Q When you discussed the Strickland standard earlier, did you intend to leave out the requirement that the standard be objective?

A Well, certainly. It's reasonable. That's absolutely correct. It's a reasonable standard, and typically -- in one way it's different, say, than medical malpractice is. Courts on review basically look at the record. Whereas in medical malpractice, you have to have an expert come in and say this act fell below the standard of medical care because blah, blah, blah. In fact, if you don't have that, you can't proceed.

- Q I'm sorry, I interrupted. We have a couple of types of standards from the objective standard?
- A Yes. Then you have the Hill Lockhart variation on what happens when the guy pleads guilty and, of course,

you have the Ebbets v. Lucy and Jones v. Barnes and Smith standard on appeals.

One of the sources of an objective standard would be ABA guidelines?

The Supreme Court has made that pretty Α clear from Wiggins.

And then in that same Wiggins, they also commented that it was a custom in that jurisdiction in Maryland for lawyers in capital cases to take certain specific actions; is that not right?

I believe that's correct, yeah. Α

That's what you would mean by an objective standard, one capable of being ascertained externally?

Yes. Α

Your Honor, I object to the MR. McCARTHY: question. The question was referencing trial lawyers, and Mr. Cornell has said that he does not get to spend his days hanging out in courtrooms watching trial lawyers perform.

MR. QUALLS: Your Honor, may I address that?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. QUALLS: May I address it through redirect?

Certainly. You can ask additional THE COURT: questions.

8

22

(Resumed)

BY MR. QUALLS:

- You testified that you have represented six different capital clients on post-conviction relief; is that correct?
 - Α Yes.
 - And were you appointed on any of those? Q
- It's pretty rare to find a capital All of them. Α defendant with money to pay for a lawyer for the kind of investigations and the expenses and so forth that are required.
- Were you appointed on any of those cases through this department, or can you tell us?
- I don't believe so. Gallego, of course, was Leonard was Carson City. Hogan is Las Vegas. Lovelock. Nika was Department 6 and ultimately Department 7. Petrocelli is Department 7. And the Currington case was Department 3. So no.
- MR. QUALLS: I would ask, based upon Mr. Cornell's prior appointments as someone that's qualified under 250 to review the performance of trial counsel and appellate counsel on post-conviction, that he be allowed to give his opinion here today.

THE COURT: Mr. McCarthy.

MR. McCARTHY: Mr. Cornell has extraordinary experience in alleging that lawyers are ineffective. The question is whether he's qualified, based on some special training or experience, to voice an opinion receivable by this Court as to whether those lawyers were effective. I don't doubt he's imminently qualified to allege and attempt to prove that some lawyer did a poor job. But that doesn't make him qualified as an expert witness on whether they actually did a poor job.

THE COURT: I'm going to overrule your objection. I find that the objection goes to the weight that I should give his objective analysis. I will weigh the opinions that this witness gives based on my knowledge and his testimony of his experience.

MR. QUALLS: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. QUALLS:

Q Back to your opinion as to any Strickland errors, any errors of trial counsel that fell below the standard of care, the standard of reasonableness that we've talked about here today. Can you --

MR. McCARTHY: Excuse me. Before Mr. Cornell answers, I guess it's an objection. I ask that the question be limited to errors that are pleaded.

2JDC05207

.2

_4

16

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. OUALLS: Your Honor --

THE COURT: You better ask him if his opinion is He has the petition and the as to a nonpleaded error. supplemental petition. He said he's reviewed --

I don't have the petition, but I'm THE WITNESS: assuming we're going forward on the supplemental petition really anyway, because that's usually how it goes.

Exactly. So if your opinion relates THE COURT: to something that is not in the supplemental petition, then we're going to litigate that before the opinion is given.

THE WITNESS: Your Honor, I think, in fairness, where counsel is going to go with me, is my opinions regarding trial counsel and appellate counsel. think what I have to say about trial counsel is pleaded. What I have to say about appellate counsel may not be.

Okay. Then let's start with trial THE COURT: Don't go into appellate counsel until Mr. McCarthy as an opportunity to be heard on his objection.

THE WITNESS: Very well.

BY MR. QUALLS:

Do you remember the question posed?

6

7

A Yes. Respectfully, Mr. Gregory and Mr. Bosler were put in a horrible position. They were, as I've read the record, they were believing that they were directed as trial counsel by their client to direct and engineer a defense that they felt was based on fraud, and ultimately it would have to be based on perjury; and they, as ethical lawyers, weren't about to do that. They did exactly what they're supposed to do in that instance, which is to move to withdraw. Of course, their motion was denied.

So now they're in the position of having to try a case that they think or try a defense which they think is based on perjury. And they brought the conflict to the attention of the Court. And I think that the record that they made was quite to the effect that Mr. Vanisi didn't agree to the conflict. Indeed, Mr. Vanisi wanted to represent himself.

So in looking at cases such as Holloway versus

Arkansas and Cuyler versus Sullivan, I do believe that
they were put into a position of presuming prejudice. I
mean they were really put into a box.

Now based on standards, what could they have done to get out of the box based on what I know of this case, I think they could have done this based on case law and well established case law first, and I say this, by the way,

. 0

with regard to the interesting catch back that Mr. Vanisi didn't testify. So ultimately they were trying to present a defense that really wasn't based on perjury as it turned out. But they believed going in that that's what was going to happen, apparently.

First off, per Nix and Whiteside, I don't think they had a duty to present a defense that was based on perjury. —Second off, per Matthews versus U.S., they could have presented inconsistent defenses. But third off, I think there would have been a way for them to harmonize the two approaches. As I understand it, the defense they would have wanted to run would have centered on Mr. Vanisi's state of mind, whereas the state of defense that Mr. Vanisi wanted to present was an alibi. It was incorrectly referenced as a self-defense defense. I think, as I read the record and what he wanted to do and supposedly told his counsel, was a defense that someone else killed Sergeant Sullivan and he was being unfairly blamed for it.

It would seem to me that the approach that counsel could take per Nix and per Matthews and lower court cases, flushing those out, is he could have taken a two-fold approach: A, what did the perpetrator do? What was in the mind of the perpetrator at the time he acted?

8

9

0.5

21

22

34

And B, is the defendant that perpetrator? And that way counsel could have argued that the perpetrator was either insane, if not insane, acted compulsively, consistent with a secondary murder. And if the jury found that to be so and rejected the "some other dude did it" quote, unquote defense, they could come in with the result that the trial counsel wanted without compromising what the defendant wanted to do.

By the way, on one of the 30 jury trials I had, I was put in that position, that's exactly what I did. tried it on a -- it was a case in Department 7. it on the theory that what did the perpetrator do and is the defendant that perpetrator, because I had a case where the defendant was claiming he didn't do it and I thought he was lying to me.

Anyway, it would seem to me, looking at this record, that this, frankly, was an extremely difficult case to defend on any theory. But it would seem to me that what trial counsel would rationally want to do and objectively want to do is to try to present a mental defense in that way so that if the jury came back guilty with first degree, which certainly the jury is going to do if they believed the witnesses who testified that Mr. Vanisi told them before the fact that he wanted to

kill a cop and so on and so forth, at least they would be set for what I would think would be the primary area of arguing and penalty phase which is we've got the sub (2) mitigator statute, or that he was acting under extreme emotional disturbance and so forth.

By virtue of the fact that they defended the case, they couldn't really do that even in penalty. They presented a defense which is no defense. They did no opening statement, no closing statement, no defense witnesses. Minimal cross-examination. Essentially they've sent the message to the jury that our client is plainly guilty of first degree murder and there's nothing to say about the facts of the case. Essentially what they've done is doomed themselves to fail on the sub (2) mitigator by doing that because they've already told the jury there's really nothing to say on the facts of the case.

And when you look at the record, as I understand it, it really comes out. They brought in the one psychiatrist to say that Mr. Vanisi has a bipolar disorder, but they didn't bring out that he was in a manic phase on January 13, 1998, that the mania was exacerbated severely by drug use and that it is treatable.

Now, maybe the psychiatrist couldn't say that.

4

. 7

Knowing what I know of psychiatrists, I have a difficult time believing there's no psychiatrist out there that wouldn't say such a thing.

MR. McCARTHY: I'll object to this witness speculating about how some other witness might have testified.

THE COURT: Sustained.

THE WITNESS: But the point is that they didn't make that record, so they couldn't really fairly effectively argue the sub (2) mitigator, when it seems to me that that's what, that's where they really want to go with this case.

So that's basically my conclusion on trial counsel.

MR. QUALLS: Court's indulgence.

BY MR. QUALLS:

- Q As to issues that are raised in the supplement, do you have an opinion as to whether any reasonableness standard, pardon me, as to whether appellate counsel's performance fell below the standard of reasonableness as articulated in Strickland?
 - A Well --
 - Q I could be specific if you would like.
 - A Yes, please. I will say this. The defense

counsel had a terrific Faretta issue, and he was number one to spotlight and emphasize that. I have no quarrel with what Mr. Petty did in that regard, I will say that.

- What is your understanding, just briefly, of the Faretta area and the impact of alleging a Faretta error?
 - Α If you could prove --

That particular error was indeed MR. McCARTHY: So further discussion doesn't seem relevant. alleged.

MR. QUALLS: This goes to how it was alleged. And, again, as I brought up with Mr. Petty, whether it was alleged as a structural error or not. If you'll recall, Mr. Petty stated his opinion in the last hearing that he didn't believe it was a structural error. So that's where I'm going with this.

> It was alleged to be error. MR. McCARTHY:

THE COURT: The Supreme Court has ruled on that. It was alleged as error. You're going to have to lay more of a foundation, if Mr. Cornell wants to say that the Supreme Court couldn't figure out the difference. raised as error unless somebody briefs it specifically, then let him say that, then we'll move on, see if it's really relevant.

BY MR, QUALLS:

What is your understanding of a structural error?

. 1

9

15

17

Let me back up.

A Structural error is one that's not subject to harmless error review. It's one that affects the basic fundamental structure of a trial as envisioned under the Sixth Amendment.

 ${\mathbb Q}$ And based upon your previous testimony here today regarding performance of trial counsel, do you believe that their shortcoming amounted to a structural error?

MR. McCARTHY: Again, Your Honor. The Supreme Court's opinion on whether it was error at all is what's relevant here, not Mr. Cornell's.

MR. QUALLS: I understand that it may have been plain error, and perhaps the Supreme Court should have sua sponte addressed that, but it wasn't raised as a structural error. So technically they weren't -- that was not an issue before them.

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, the Court found no error at all.

THE COURT: I know that. I'm going to sustain the objection. We're wasting time about what the Supreme Court already did. In fact, I remember Mr. Petty saying it even went to the United States Supreme Court on a writ after the -- on appeal after the Nevada Supreme Court ruled on it. So to argue now that somehow it should have

1

5

6

been pled differently and the Nevada Supreme Court would have ruled differently is beyond where we're at.

MR. QUALLS: Thank you, I'll accept your ruling. BY MR. QUALLS:

Q What about with regards to the McConnell error; that is, that the murder occurred -- it was alleged in the pleading document that the murder occurred during a commission or attempt to commit a robbery, and then, of course, there's an aggravating circumstance found also based upon that same fact.

believe, and Mr. McCarthy will certainly correct me if I'm wrong, that there's case law under Strickland that says that we measure the competence of counsel or the performance of counsel based on the law as it existed at the time they were acting as counsel. Now, at the time that Mr. -- at the time this appeal was pending, McConnell was not the law. Petrocelli was the law. And so I mean I have a difficult time, based on the standard, saying that Mr. Petty's failure to raise the McConnell issue fell below the standard, when Petrocelli was the law and that aggravator was good.

Now, can I say in retrospect could he have thought outside of the box like Ms. Bond did on McConnell

0 1 2

9

3 4

.5 . 6

.7

.8 .9

20 21

22 23

24

in raising the issue? Sure he could have. But you've asked whether that's below the standard for him to ask to overrule Petrocelli in this case. I can't go that far. That's the one hand. Secondhand is, from what I've seen, what he could have done with that is we had -- and I think he could have done this even in the face of Petrocelli, you had the case with three robberies that were charged and convicted. The robbery of Sergeant Sullivan, the 7-Eleven robbery thereafter and the Jackson's Mini-Mart robbery thereafter. He could have said the jury instruction on that aggravator has to make it very clear to the jury that they're not to consider the 7-Eleven robbery or the Jackson's robbery in determining that and the jury's focus wasn't sufficiently narrowed; and he could have raised, I won't call it the McConnell issue, but attacking the aggravator in that way.

Now, there was no objection to that effect, but the beauty of doing appellate work on death penalty cases is that it is the opportunity for you to argue a bunch of plain error, which the Supreme Court will review, whereas they wouldn't review it in another noncapital context. Because all this stuff affects, is directly impinging the Eighth Amendment and so forth. Because of capital murder cases and those serious cases in society, the Supreme

7

Я

11

Court will use somewhat of a heightened standard or review, frankly, on those kind of matters.

So in terms of McConnell error, I can't honestly say that Mr. Petty acted below the standard in not making the McConnell argument. I think really it's going to have to be an issue of new rule and so forth as far as the court reaching McConnell now. In other words, what I'm saying, it doesn't mean that the Court can't reach McConnell collaterally, I just, in my opinion, don't think you can reach it on that theory, based upon the standard as I understand it.

- Q Let's talk a little bit about, since you've touched on sort of the different way of handling death penalty cases, there's a concept that's used in death penalty litigation "death is different." Are you familiar with that?
 - A Yes. And yes, it is.
- Q Can you explain what that means, particularly in the appellate realm?
- A In the appellate realm, yeah, it's usually applied to trial lawyers.

In the appellate realm, it means, in my view, that capital appeals are the most difficult appeals to handle for an appellate litigator just like capital trials

think why is because of the fact that even if the trial lawyer doesn't object to certain instructions or evidence or whatnot on the penalty phase, you can still raise them as plain error in a way that you can't in a typical noncapital sentencing. In a typical noncapital sentencing, you're limited to evidence that's impalpable or that sort of thing. And you really have a very limited canvas to paint on, so to speak.

Capital cases, on the other hand, if you spot instructions that were bad or inaccurate or misleading, you can raise that as a matter of plain error. If you spot evidence that shouldn't have been admitted but was and was not objected, you can raise that as plain error at the penalty phase, and you will typically get the Court to listen to you and just indicate those kind of issues on the merits.

And what happens then is appellate briefs become extremely difficult, because as you get into that process you'll end up being oversized. Nowadays, with the Rodriguez case in effect, we've got a de facto rule that the Supreme Court is absolutely not going to read anything that's more than 80 pages long. No ifs, ands or buts. There's no rule of appellate procedure that says that.

But these days that's practically how it is. Then you really do have to get into matters of issue selection and issue preclusion, and it becomes extremely difficult. Especially in the capital case, you don't want to mark out the wrong issue.

Q For the record, since you touched on that, the decision limiting the brief to 80 pages, did that postdate the appellate briefs in this case?

 $_{
m A}$ It did. And, in fact, in my Leonard case, I was allowed a 100-page brief. So there was a history of the court allowing briefs larger than 80 pages prior to 2001.

Q For the record, how long was the opening brief, Mr. Petty's opening brief?

A I believe it was 32 pages. I think I have it in front of me if you need me to verify it.

Q In other words, it's clear Mr. Petty didn't run out of room?

A Yeah. In fact, he not only didn't end up out of room, but he included the reasonable doubt argument which is, frankly, a loser. Frankly, my understanding of exhaustive principle, I don't know that you need to raise it in order to be able to allege it in federal court, but that's a different subject.

What I'm saying is, take out the reasonable doubt

instruction argument and you have a 27-page brief.

Q You commented briefly earlier on the Vienna Convention claim. Is that something that you believe should have been included?

A I think it's a right-brained approach. I mean I compliment you with coming up with it. That's an interesting question. To the extent you can make that argument based on the judicial noticeable treaties and conventions and so forth, sure. That could be the kind of plain error you could bring up. If, however, you needed to get testimony from the Consulate for appellate issues, you really want to save that one for post-conviction.

But, yeah, if it's based only on the treaty, sure, you can raise that as plain error.

 \mathbb{Q} You talked a little bit regarding trial counsel and the situation that trial counsel was in.

Regarding, again, the reasonableness standard with regards to Mr. Petty, what about the error regarding trial court refusing to allow trial counsel to withdraw under the circumstances?

A That's an interesting one. The rule is that you can't raise ineffective assistance of counsel-type issues on direct appeal. The exception is where the record has already been made on it and there's nothing more to say.

In this case, frankly, in my opinion, the record was sufficient to where Mr. Petty could have made a Holloway v. Arkansas or Cuyler versus Sullivan type of argument.

As a practical matter, you wonder whether a member of the same office would want to do that. But I think this record falls within the exception. He could have raised that, certainly.

Q Just for the record, could you articulate briefly the --

A As I understand it, Holloway versus Arkansas is a U.S. Supreme Court case from the late '70s and Cuyler versus Sullivan is one that distinguishes it from the '80s, and together they read this way: When counsel is conflicted, when the defendant is being represented by conflicted counsel, there is presumed prejudice. However, to establish presumed prejudice, you have to show that, A, the conflict was brought to the attention of the trial judge during the proceedings, prior to proceedings; B -- so that the trial judge had the opportunity to remedy the conflict. B, the defendant didn't agree to the conflict; and, C, the trial performance thereafter manifests or exhibits the conflict. And I think in this case all three were met just based on the record that was made prior to

3

€

these proceedings being instituted.

So it's an issue he could have raised, if that's what you wanted me to say.

Does it fall below the standard of reasonableness not to raise it?

Well, you know, it's difficult to say that. Α appeals only, because my take on IAC on appellate counsel, particularly from Ebbets and Smith and then Nevada Supreme Court's Hudson, as you're doing a backward view on, did you raise the issue or you didn't? Well, you didn't. Ιs that below the standard? Only if it's a winning issue. If I talk about whether or not it's a winning issue, then I'm going in violation of the judge's ruling because only the judge can determine whether it's a winning issue or See what I'm saying?

I understand that. Let me say it differently or have you articulate a different explanation, which is, in your understanding, is there a result for the failure to place an issue such as that in an appeal to the highest state court, which would be the Nevada Supreme Court here, what is the result of that going down the line?

Well, the result is if it turns out it was a Α winning issue better than anything you raised, you'll be found ineffective on appeal, I guess. Does that answer

your question?

- What about in the federal system?
- Same thing, they're going to be bound by the same standard of review.
 - Is there an exhaustion problem?

In the sense -- yes, in the sense that if you don't raise the issue on direct appeal and you don't federalize the issue on direct appeal, although you would in this case because Cuyler and Holloway are clearly U.S. Supreme Court cases -- but if you don't raise it and you don't exhaust it as a federal issue, then you've got to come back in post-conviction and say appellate lawyer was ineffective in not raising this issue under the Sixth Amendment in order to exhaust it so you could move forward with it in federal court and get the federal court to determine on its merits.

I forgot to ask you one question. I'll ask you 0 to back up a little bit on the McConnell issue. You spoke of sort a limiting jury instruction. Was anything of that nature presented in this case?

From my reading of the penalty transcript where Α the jury instructions were read, it doesn't appear that it was.

What about any type of challenge, Eighth Q

9

14

_ 1

Amendment challenge, to the death penalty? Is that something that's standard in an appeal in a capital case?

Well, not anymore, because if what you mean is an appellate litigator trying to convince the Nevada Supreme Court to hold that the whole statutory scheme is unconstitutional, I mean, that's a dead bang loser. They're not going to go there. That's as big a loser as the reasonable doubt instruction, frankly. If what you mean, though, is having the Supreme Court do a proportionality type of analysis, well, they used to do that by statute. And they say they don't anymore. a sense they really do. If you've got something in front of them that causes them to look at the aggravators, the mitigators, the aggravating 175.552 evidence and the mitigating 552 evidence in order to determine prejudice, they will certainly do that. So they will do, I guess you could say, the proportionality review that way. I don't know if that answers your question or not. But that's the best answer I can give.

Q Again, is there a potential exhaustion problem if that's not raised?

A My opinion is no, because my opinion is if you don't raise an issue that's a dead bang loser, you don't have to in order to be able to use it. In federal court,

when you are representing somebody on capital appeal, just as when you're representing certain noncapital people on appeal, who you know are going to take this on to federal court, you really do have to look at this with an eye towards what's going -- avoid a motion to dismiss by the attorney general in federal court.

So I really do think that appellate litigators in capital proceedings have to look at it that way, and I would go so far as to say that would be amongst the standards. NACDL lectures on this, and ABA lectures, they'll tell you that. So anyway, but my opinion on your question is, no, I don't think that issue would necessarily have to be raised because I think you could show the federal court that that would be so clearly rejected, just like the reasonable doubt instruction attacked, that you don't waste the state court's time with that. If I was the appellate litigator and it was a choice between that and some other frivolous noncolorable issue, I would definitely pick the nonfrivolous, noncolorable issue.

- Q That really wasn't the case here, was it?
- A With 32 pages, he didn't have to worry about that, per se, if that's all there was to say on appeal.
 - Q Court's indulgence for one second.

9

12

_ ,

Just a couple more issues, Mr. Cornell. What's your opinion regarding the failure to raise an argument concerning the District Attorney's constitutionally broad authority to select which cases the death penalty is sought in?

A Same as the other opinion. I think it would be summarily rejected by the Nevada Supreme Court, such that I think you could raise it for the first time in federal habeas and get around the exhaustion.

O You believe it's a meritorious argument?

A Well, I don't know. I mean, maybe I have to back up on that. It wouldn't necessarily be a frivolous argument. But if you raised that, I would imagine that the DA's Office would want to have an evidentiary hearing where they would show how they staff cases and how they determine what cases they're going to seek the death penalty case on and which cases they're not. And with that showing I don't know that you could just raise that argument flat out. But then, again, if you can't raise that argument flat out, then that's an attack that the trial lawyer has to make so you have that kind of evidentiary record to talk about.

Q All right. Let's go forward with this. Was there anything that you saw, any errors that you saw that

4 .5

20

.8

21

22 23

24

should have been raised on direct appeal that were not included in the supplement?

Α Yeah.

> MR. McCARTHY: I object.

MR. QUALLS: Upon what grounds?

MR. McCARTHY: As soon as the Court asks, I'll tell her.

> THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, the petition establishes the parameters of this hearing. It is the It is very specific. It's quite voluminous. And to ask is there some other basis upon which someone else might maintain a lawsuit is irrelevant.

> THE COURT: Counsel.

MR. QUALLS: Your Honor, pursuant to Krump versus Edwards --

> THE COURT: Cite?

I probably don't have --MR. QUALLS:

113 Nevada 293, does that help? THE WITNESS:

MR. McCARTHY: Dang, you're good.

(Laughter)

I knew he would give it to me. THE COURT:

THE WITNESS: A familiar cite to me.

MR. QUALLS: Mr. Edwards and myself are subject

19

18

21

20

23

22

24

to claims of ineffective assistance and Mr. Vanisi is entitled to effective assistance.

Given that, I don't think it's unreasonable for Mr. Cornell to give an opinion at this time as to what possibly we should have raised as well.

If I ever see a petition alleging MR. McCARTHY: that Mr. Edwards or Mr. Qualls were ineffective in this case, I will respond to it. To date there isn't one.

MR. QUALLS: That's true, Your Honor. I'm just trying to make a record.

That's the extent of your record? THE COURT: BY MR. QUALLS:

As far as other issues that should have been, Mr. Cornell is here to give us an opinion as to the areas, the claims that should have been raised by Mr. Petty that were not under the Strickland standard. I believe he can go outside the realm of our supplement based upon current --

> THE COURT: Objection sustained.

No further questions. MR. QUALLS:

Oh, I misspoke. One second.

Your Honor, I apologize. I have missed one of the claims that were actually included in our supplement. if I might question Mr. Cornell as to that.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MR. QUALLS:

Q In Claim No. 9, it's raised -- did you review claim No. 9?

A I'm sure I did. Although not to the point where I'd say, oh, yeah, I know exactly what you're talking about. Let me take a look.

Q It's an error regarding the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights?

A Oh, yeah.

Q Are you familiar with NRS 213.085?

A Oh, yeah, I sure am. Yeah. That's the statute that was enacted in 1995 that did away with the Pardon Board's ability to commute a life without or death sentence. Very familiar with it.

Q Just to clarify, that's your understanding of the 213.085?

A Yes. The way it's been interpreted since then is the Pardons Board would still have the ability to take somebody who was sentenced to death or life without and commute it to time served or to grant an out-and-out pardon. In fact, I think the probability of any of that happening is a snowball in hell, but theoretically they have the ability to do that, but what they can't do under

the statute is commute a life without or death sentence to life with possibility of parole.

And so then is Claim No. 9 something that should have been raised on direct appeal?

Yeah, because, if I'm understanding correctly, Α Claim 9 is talking about International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights that has to do with the body of international law that's applicable to the states on taking, you know, on not being permitted as a matter of international law to take away the ability to commute. And this statute absolutely does that. Now, that raises an interesting question.

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, I'd ask that Mr. Qualls ask the questions.

The objection is that there's no THE COURT: question before you, Mr. Cornell. Sustained.

THE WITNESS: All right. So your question is, is that the kind of thing that could have been raised?

Mr. Cornell, you have to wait until THE COURT: he asks you another question.

BY MR. QUALLS:

- Mr. Cornell, does that raise any additional questions.
 - Am I permitted to answer that one? Α

19

20

21

22

23

24

THE COURT: Yes, go ahead.

THE WITNESS: Raises an interesting question:
What is the remedy of the court on direct appeals, that it can take in that instance. I mean is the remedy to strike the death penalty and the life without penalty and mandate that the Court give life with the possibility of parole?
Or is it a remedy directed to the Pardons Board saying:
If you ever accept this guy's application, you gotta hear him, notwithstanding the statute? That's an interesting question. I don't know about that. Sorry about that. My apologies.

BY MR. QUALLS:

Q Based upon all that, did it fall below the standard of reasonableness not to include that in the direct appeal?

A I think it's a nonfrivolous argument. And the standard of appellate counsel is to raise nonfrivolous arguments within the parameters of the allowable law. I think it's a nonfrivolous argument that could have been raised. So in that sense I would say so.

MR. QUALLS: Thank you. Now no further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Counsel.

AA01744

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

- Q Did I understand you to say that the standard is counsel must raise all nonfrivolous arguments?
- A Not precisely. Perhaps I need to clarify.

 Counsel clearly has no duty to raise frivolous arguments.

 What counsel is supposed to do is winnow out weak

 arguments and concentrate on strong arguments. So that's

 the duty. That's the duty.
- Q Can you tell me, then, how the mental process by which other appellate practitioners in the community make that decision, how they winnow out and select issues?
- A Well, given it's a reasonable standard, I don't really know that I can. And that, like I said before, that's the problem with talking about effective assistance of appellate counsel. To get ineffective, you have to show it's a winner, and only the judge can determine that.
- Q You would also have to show that it was unreasonable to raise the argument, am I correct?
- A Sure. It's almost like a tail wagging the dog type of standard, basically.
 - Q And objectively unreasonable?
 - A Sure, if it's a winning argument.
 - Q Is there, to the best of your knowledge, any

10

18

objective standard to aid appellate lawyers in deciding what arguments to raise on appeal?

- A Do you mean in terms of what appellate lawyers can glean from cases like Jones versus Barnes and the like?
- Q Let's start with that. And Jones versus Barnes has a local equivalent of Hernandez?
- A Hernandez. Yeah. You are to -- the Supreme Court of Nevada certainly has made it very clear that with capital litigators, they don't want these briefs that bombard them with 30 issues and take up an extraordinary amount of time. They certainly believe that a good effective appellate brief in a capital case can be written in 80 pages or less. Frankly, I mean that's what they say.
- Q You mentioned Jones versus Barnes. In that, didn't the Court reference a Law Review article by Justice Jackson advocating that same approach?
- A Yeah. And I mean in fairness, what are you doing? Well, you're trying to win, of course; but, secondarily, you're trying to put on the best dress rehearsal you can for the play sometime down the road in front of the Ninth Circuit. And as a practical matter they're not going to let you go over 75 pages except in

8

.2

20

23

- Q What is the object of an appeal to the Nevada Supreme Court? Is it to obtain relief for your client?
 - A Certainly. That's your first and foremost.
- Q By phrasing your claim such as denial of a motion, in federal terms or in state terms, when before the Nevada Supreme Court, in your experience does it in any way change the likelihood that the Nevada Supreme Court will or will not grant relief?
- A In my opinion, and I hope a bunch of federal judges are reading this testimony some day, no. It doesn't matter that you cite chapter and verse to the Federal Constitution or not, in my opinion.
- Q So the purpose of raising a claim in federal terms would be to have some later effect in a federal court?
 - A Yeah.
- Q But it would not affect your ability to obtain relief in the Nevada Supreme Court?
- A As a practical matter, no, in my opinion it wouldn't, because, if I can give you an example, suppose you're litigating a statute of limitations issue. It's a state law claim, but if you win you get the ultimate victory: Your client goes home uninhibited by further

.0

14

. 2

proceedings. You do not have to cite to the federal court chapter and verse or the state court about the Federal Constitution to win your statute of limitations attack. To then come back in federal court later and say, oh, you didn't cite to the Federal Constitution, therefore we can't hear this, in my opinion is ludicrous.

- Q You mentioned earlier the Cuyler versus Sullivan discussion of conflicts of interest.
 - A Right.
- Q Is it your understanding that a conflict of interest exists when a lawyer is actively representing competing interests?
 - A Right.
- Q If a lawyer feels hampered in some other way, does that constitute a conflict of interest, as far as you know?
- A Well, that's a good question. And I'm sure that's the argument you're going to make, that, you know, wait a minute, just because a lawyer comes in and says he has a conflict, does that really, does that really meet the Cuyler standard? Interesting argument. I can say yes, you can say no, and a judge will give us the answer some day.
 - Is there some objective standard that would

require a lawyer to suggest to the Nevada Supreme Court that the Cuyler standard while competing interests is wrong?

A I'm not sure if I'm understanding your question right. Here's what I can say: If the lawyer can show that he's being asked to do something that's in violation of the Supreme Court rules on ethics, then certainly he's met the burden. And I would think that would be met here, particularly on this record when Mr. Gregory went so far to talk to Mr. Bare about his situation, and Mr. Bare said you have to move to withdraw. I think it would be met.

But in a different case, where -- in a different case I could see a different result, let's put it this way.

Q Were you aware when forming your opinions that Siaosi Vanisi told his lawyers he had many defenses and he would not reveal to them what defense he intended to use?

A No, I was not. I was only aware of what Mr. Gregory represented to the Court and what Mr. Petty later represented to the Court.

MR. McCARTHY: That's all for me.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. QUALLS: Two quick ones, Your Honor.

AA01749

24

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUALLS:

Q Isn't it true that if an appellate lawyer raises an issue to the Nevada Supreme Court under the Federal Constitution, as a violation of federal constitutional rights, Nevada Supreme Court must then follow federal law in deciding that issue?

A Sure.

Q So from that standpoint it does make a difference, correct?

A Yes.

Q Do you have an opinion as to whether an appellate lawyer should kowtow to the way things are as opposed to the way the law is written and should be?

A Yes.

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, I think I'll object because the question asks whether a lawyer ought to kowtow, as I understand it. And the proper question would be whether there's some objective standard that requires a lawyer to take certain action.

THE COURT: Are you objecting to the form of the question?

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor, whether --

THE COURT: Do you understand what the question

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

named	Mr	Siaosi	Vanisi?
nameu -	1111	<i></i>	van ipi:

- A Yes.
- Q Was that in a trial that took place in this court in 1999?
 - A It was.
- Q And you worked for the Public Defender at that time?
 - A Yes.
 - Q Are you still employed there?
- A No, I am not. I retired as of the first week of January of this year.
 - Q Congratulations.
 - A Thank you.
- Q Was Mr. Vanisi -- well, Mr. Vanisi's trial was a capital trial, correct?
 - A It was.
 - Q And was this your first capital case?
 - A No.
- Q And how long had you been qualified under Supreme Court Rule 250?
 - A For years. I can't give you the date.
 - Q Long before Mr. Vanisi's case?
 - A Yes.
 - Q So you had experience litigating capital trials

9

16

22

prior to this case?

- Yes. Α
- In cases that actually proceeded to trial?
- Both as a prosecutor and as a defense Α attorney.
- How long had you been doing defense work before Long time? 1999?
 - Yes, 15 years. Α
 - And you had many jury trials, I assume? Q
 - I had. Α
 - In this case you had co-counsel to assist you? Q
 - I did. Α
 - And who was that? Q
- Well, actually when the case started, Mike Α Specchio was lead counsel and I was supporting him. the mistrial, I took the case over, and Jeremy Bosler was my co-counsel.
 - So you were lead counsel by the time --
 - I was indeed.
 - -- of the second trial?
 - I was. Α
- That was the trial that resulted in a guilty verdict and a death sentence?
 - Yes. Α

- And did you have support resources like investigators, paralegals and the like to assist you?
 - I did. Α
- And did you also have the assistance of your appellate division within the Public Defender's Office to consult regarding legal issues?
 - Yes. Α
- And did you in fact make use of that throughout the course of your representation?
 - We did. Α
- Do you recall how many hours you ended up working on this case, Mr. Gregory?
 - No. I do not. Α
- If I represented to you that the Supreme Court Rule 250 memorandum that you offered after the trial shows that you worked in excess of 500 hours on this matter, would that --
 - That would be accurate. Α
- Okay. Let's talk about the case. Aside from the trial itself, did you review the discovery in the case?
 - Α Yes.
 - And did you meet with Mr. Vanisi?
 - Many times, yes. Α
 - Can you tell us approximately how many times you Q

.0

7

17

24

met with him?

I met with him once or twice a week from the time I got on this case, I believe.

- And did you review the discovery in this case with him?
 - Yes. Α
 - Took it up to the jail with you?
 - Always had a file with me, yes. Α
- What kind of relationship did you establish with Mr. Vanisi?
- I think I established a good relationship with Α him.
 - Did there ever come a time that that changed? Q
 - Α No.
- Did you make an assessment of Mr. Vanisi's mental health at the time leading up to the trial in this case?
 - Did I make an assessment? Α
 - Yes. Q
 - Or did I have someone make an assessment?
 - Well, both.
 - Yes to both. Α
- And on what basis did you make this assessment? On the basis of actions of Mr. Vanisi? Did you have him examined?

7	l.fo	had	him	examined	before	the	first	trial
A	we	nac	กาท	examined	belole	LHE	11121	tilat

- Q And what kind of results did you get from that?
- ${\tt A}$ We were told that he was competent to stand trial.
- Q Did you ever witness Mr. Vanisi engage in any bizarre behavior during the course of your representation?
 - A Did I witness it?
 - Q Yes.
 - A I would say no.
- Q Were you able to communicate effectively with him?
- ${\bf A}$ Most of the time. Sometimes he'd get off track, but most of the time, yes.
- Q And did he seem to understand what you were telling him?
 - A Yes.
- So at the time you proceeded to trial, did you have any concerns about Mr. Vanisi's competency, mental competency to proceed?
 - A No.
- Q Did you ever consider a defense theory of not guilty by reason of insanity?
 - A No.
 - Q Why not?

- It wasn't the law. Α
- Are you telling us that the law didn't exist at the time that this case proceeded to trial?
 - That's correct. Α
- So that legal defense wasn't available to defendants in Nevada?
 - No. Α
- What defense strategy did you develop relative to the guilt phase of the trial in this case, not the first trial, but the actual one that proceeded to completion?
 - Ultimately? Α
 - Yes. 0
- Because we had an ethical conflict, it was a very Α limited defense. In my opinion it was about as weak a defense as could have been provided to him under the circumstances.
- What was the defense? What was the defense \circ theory?
 - Our theory?
 - Yes.
- It was based on a self-defense. His theory was someone else did it.
- What was the theory that was pursued during the trial from the defense perspective?

15

17

22

A All we could do as far as questioning the State's witnesses were to ask questions that suggest that maybe their credibility might be in doubt as far as their observations. That was it.

- \mathbb{Q} What evidence did you plan to present during the guilt phase of the trial?
 - A The attorneys?
 - Q Pardon me?
- ${\tt A}$ The attorneys or Mr. Vanisi? See, there are two different things happening here.
- Q There was a defense strategy I imagine at one point, right; before trial commenced you settled on what you would do and could do to defend Mr. Vanisi during the guilt phase, correct?
 - A Yes.
- ${\mathbb Q}$ And I just want to know what that was, what that strategy was.
- A Again, just to establish that a witness' perceptions were maybe incorrect, that sort of thing. That's all we could do as to each witness. We couldn't suggest our defense and we couldn't support what we knew to be a false defense.
- So your hands were tied in terms of what you could present; is that what you're saying?

.1

- A That's correct.
- Q Let's get into that. Why did this come about?
- A Mr. Vanisi admitted to us that he had committed this murder under circumstances that suggested that there might be a self-defense, based on what he had said to us. However, he refused to allow us to put on this defense, insisting that his preference was to put on a defense that someone else had committed the crime.
- Q Was that his decision to make or yours, as counsel in the case?
 - A What decision?
 - Q About what defense would be presented.
- A Well, as far as how far we as attorneys were going to go, it was my decision.
- Q And on the basis of this disclosure by Mr. Vanisi to you, did you --
- ${\bf A}$ He also made it to all of us I believe, to Mr. Specchio, and also in writing.
- Q And as a result of that, did you file a motion to withdraw from representation in the case?
 - A We did indeed.
 - Q And what was the basis of that motion?
- A That we had an ethical conflict with Mr. Vanisi representing him.

1	5	
_	_	

19

20 21

22

23

- Had you been in consultation with the bar counsel Q from the State of Nevada Bar?
 - We had. Α
 - And presented this ethical issue to him? Q
 - We did. Α
 - And what was the advice you were given? Q
 - We were told to get off the case immediately. Α
- And I assume you then filed the motion to withdraw from the case?
- We also contacted the task force for the National Association for Criminal Defense Lawyers for their assistance, and they put us in touch with an attorney who advised us to get off the case immediately.
- Can you tell us what the legal basis for your motion to withdraw was?
- That there was a conflict between our ethical obligation and what Mr. Vanisi wanted to do.
- And your ethical obligation you're referring to is the one not to present the defense he had chosen?
- Not to -- yes. Let's put it this way: present a fraud to the court.
- By having him testify or present evidence contrary to what he told you in the past?
 - That's correct. Α

9

4

- And you discussed this at length with State Bar counsel?
 - Yes. Α
- Was there any equivocation there about what you should do?
 - No. Α
- And, well, what happened? If you had such a large ethical conflict that you ended up going to trial in this case, tell us what happened.
- Again, it's back to your question about what we Α We were limited to just very shallow questioning of any witness that was presented, to try to avoid either a conflict with his intended defense or presenting an impression to the jury of a false impression to the jury through our own defense.
- Somewhere in the record you've referred to your representation as being a bump on a log during the trial. Does that ring a bell with you?
 - Yes. Α
 - Did you feel like that?
 - Yes. Α
- Did you feel like you could effectively represent Mr. Vanisi?
 - Α No.

23

- Q You didn't present an opening statement to the jury during the guilt phase; is that correct?
 - A That's correct.
- Q And you didn't present a closing argument either; is that correct?
 - A That's correct.
- Q You didn't present any physical evidence or witnesses during the defense case in chief during the trial phase; is that right?
 - A That's correct.
- Q And would it also be fair to say that your cross-examination of the State's witnesses to the extent it took place was very limited?
 - A Very limited, yes.
- Q And there were some witnesses that weren't examined at all by you or Mr. Bosler; is that right?
 - A That's correct.
- Q So how was the State's case put through the crucible of adversarial testing? Have you heard of that phrase?
 - A Yes.
- Q How was the State's case tested?

 MR. McCARTHY: It seems to call for a long restricted narrative for several days.

22

23

24

THE COURT: With regard to broadness, I'll sustain the objection.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- Q During your representation of Mr. Vanisi, Mr. Gregory, did you become aware that he was a citizen of the Nation of Tonga?
 - A Early on, yes.
- Q Were you aware of the provisions of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations?
 - A No.
- Q Did you have any contact with Mr. Vanisi regarding his citizenship and diplomatic status or status as a noncitizen in this country, I should say?
 - A Did I have conversations with him?
 - Q Yeah.
 - A No.
 - Q So you were just aware that he was from Tonga?
- ${\mathbb A}$ Well, I believe we contacted the consulate early on.
 - Q You believe you contacted the consulate early on?
 - A I believe they were contacted.
 - Q You personally or someone --
 - A No, no. I believe it was Laura Beelser.
 - So that's nothing you have firsthand knowledge

- A That's correct.
- Q You personally didn't have contact with Tongan diplomatic authorities?
 - A I did not.
- Q While on this topic of international law, were you aware at the time of your representation with Mr. Vanisi of the provisions of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights?
 - A No.
- Q What was your strategy during the sentencing phase of the case?
- A To present as much mitigation evidence as we could.
- Q And where did you get this mitigation evidence from?
- A All over. We had our investigator locate family members, people that knew Mr. Vanisi when he was in high school, his bishop from his church. Just as many witnesses as we could locate that we thought was relevant.
- Q So did you feel like you were able to help him during that phase of the proceeding?
- A Yes. I feel we presented as much mitigation as we could.

- Q Certainly able to render a lot more assistance than you were during the guilt phase?
 - A Absolutely.
- Q Did you consult a mitigation specialist regarding capital crimes?
 - A No.
- Q But would it be fair to say that somebody, either you or someone on your staff, had thoroughly researched Mr. Vanisi's upbringing and his past history before the crime?
 - A Yes.
- Q And that's where these witnesses came from that you presented during the mitigation phase?
 - A Pardon me?
- Q That's where you gained knowledge of these witnesses that you presented during --
 - A That's correct, yes.
- One of the aggravating circumstances put before the jury and which the jury found was that the murder occurred in this case during the commission of a robbery, do you recall that?
 - A Yes.
- $\mathbb{Q}_{\mathbb{Q}}$ Is it true to the best of your recollection that your client was, Mr. Vanisi was also charged in the guilt

22

23

24

phase of the case with felony murder?

- That's correct. Α
- And that is in that he committed the murder in the course and furtherance of an armed robbery?
 - That's correct.
- Did you perceive any problem with basing this aggravating circumstance in this capital prosecution on a felony upon which the felony murder was predicated? know that's a complicated question.
- No, it's not complicated. No, I didn't see any legal problems. We had done some research. There were no legal problems that I know of at that time.
- As far as you knew the State was allowed to 0 charge felony murder and then use that same --
 - As an aggravator.
 - -- that same felony as an aggravator?
 - Α That's correct.
- Are you aware of the McConnell decision by the Nevada Supreme Court?
 - The one that came down the last few months? Α
 - Yes, It's not very old. Q
 - Yes. Vaguely aware of it. Α
- I think it came out of your office. I don't know whether you were there at that time.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534

A Well, I don't know if I was there when the decision came down. But I believe the case stands from the proposition you cannot use a felony murder as an aggravator.

- Q Right.
- A Yes.
- Q Was there any consideration about challenging this beforehand in Mr. Vanisi's case?
- A Well, like I said, legal research was done and the law seemed to be settled. So beyond that, I don't know. You'd have to ask Mr. Petty.
- Q Mr. Petty handled the appellate issues and things like that in this case; is that right?
 - A He does indeed, yes. He did indeed.
- Q Was there a time that Mr. Vanisi attempted to fire you and represent himself?
 - A Yes.
 - Q What happened there? How did that come about?
- A We refused to -- we told him that we would not put on his requested defense. We refused to aid him in any way in that regard. And he wanted to represent himself.
- Q Was that after you moved to withdraw from the case or probably before, huh?

18

20

23

A Yeah, it was before, I'm sure. I don't know how many times we moved to withdraw. But...

- Q In the course of this motion to withdraw, you disclosed to the Court the admission that Mr. Vanisi made to you or your office, right?
 - A That's correct.
- Q Was that disclosure, was that provision of the statement to the Court in your motion done with the approval of State Bar counsel?
 - A Yes.
 - Q That was upon his recommendation?
 - A Yes.
- Q What did you advise Mr. Vanisi regarding his right to testify in his own behalf?
- A Well, we advised him that he could make a statement if he wanted to without our assistance.
- Q During the penalty phase? Are you referring to like allocution, the right of allocution?
 - A Yes, I think that would be fair to say, yes.
- Q Do you have any recollection regarding what you would have advised him about his right to testify during the guilt phase of the case?
- A Other than the fact that we told him he could testify if he wanted to.

. 1

Q Did you tell him --

A But, again, we were not going to assist him in telling this Court a lie or this jury.

- Q Did you provide him with any advice about that statement that he had made to you, admission about committing a crime, right?
 - A Yes.
- Q Did you tell him whether or not it would be used against him if he chose to testify in his behalf?
- A I don't have an independent recollection, but I'm sure I did, that he would be impeached.
 - Q With that statement?
- A Oh, no, not with the statement he gave to us, no. Because that was not disclosed. The State would not know about it.
- Q Do you know whether the State ever received the statement?
 - A No.
 - Q No, meaning they didn't or, no, you don't recall?
- A Well, I believe we made our motion to withdraw, and subsequent to that the Court unsealed that particular record and gave it to the State so they would have known.

 They would have known that that admission had been made.
 - And that unsealing took place prior to the

7

8

9

15

17

commencement of the trial?

- A I believe so.
- Q So the State was in possession of that?
- A They were. I'm sorry, I misunderstood you. I thought you had implied we had given it to the State.
 - Q No, oh no.

So it was likely, is that what you're saying, that you would have advised Mr. Vanisi that now that the State had the admission, if he chose to testify in his own behalf, he would be impeached with that?

MR. McCARTHY: That's a little leading, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It is leading. Sustained.
BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q Did you --

THE COURT: Counsel, I'm a little confused and I don't know if the witness is. I'm confused about which motion to withdraw you're talking about and which statements made by Mr. Vanisi, because there were several sealed transcripts and some have never been unsealed. So maybe best to make that clear.

MR. EDWARDS: We have a sealed transcript of June 23rd, 1999. These were unsealed -- everything was unsealed pursuant to a motion of mine, Your Honor.

2JDC05336

THE COURT: Well, the latest order unsealed it. But your question implied that it was unsealed some time ago and before trial.

MR. EDWARDS: Yes, Your Honor. There is evidence in the record that in fact took place.

THE COURT: Not all of the hearings held outside the presence of the jury were unsealed prior to trial, and so I'm asking you to make it clear which one you're talking about so the witness knows what you're talking about when you say the State had something. Some of it was not unsealed even at appeal, as I understand it.

MR. EDWARDS: If I could have a moment, I'll point you to the portion of the record.

THE COURT: That's probably the best way to do it.

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, is there anything that hasn't been unsealed, as far as you know?

THE COURT: Well, I think your question was asking a historic question, about what was unsealed prior to trial, and there were items unsealed at trial. were still in a sealed condition. Pretrial hearings that were held in camera that the State was not present, and those transcripts were not unsealed prior to trial.

> MR. EDWARDS: Okay. Your Honor, what I was

referencing --

THE COURT: Now you all received a complete record, as I understand it, sealed and unsealed, when you began representing Mr. Vanisi. But I'm just -- the State hasn't received all of that. Now, in the latest order I refused to seal your petition. I unsealed your petition. And I refused to seal these hearings. But that order in and of itself did not unseal any previously sealed documents. The discussion of those sealed documents in your petition may make it necessary for me to unseal those. But right now there's been no order entered other than on petition.

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, I think Mr. McCarthy and I entered into a stipulation early on in this case, I'd have to look back, providing for sealed information to both of us.

MR. McCARTHY: And I assume we did. But I think the two of you and the Court and my friend are talking about different things.

THE COURT: Right. We are. I'm talking about the historical. Just because we unsealed it, you started representing him and got everything, doesn't mean that Mr. Gregory, it was unsealed when Mr. Gregory was representing Mr. Vanisi.

2JDC05338

7

8

. 1

MR. McCARTHY: Just a second, Your Honor.

MR. EDWARDS: Okay, Your Honor, I think we can clarify this whole issue now.

On August 26, 1999, the Court conducted an ex parte hearing in camera regarding the motion to withdraw.

THE COURT: Which motion to withdraw?

MR. EDWARDS: Well, a motion to withdraw in which -- this was the day -- let's see. This was the one that was supported by affidavit, Your Honor. I don't have the motion sitting right here in front of me. But there was a motion to withdraw.

What the record reflects is that Mr. Gregory, talking to the Court, "Pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 172. We made an exparte motion to withdraw supported by affidavit. Subsequent to filing this motion, this Court deemed it necessary to share that information with the State."

And that's what I'm referring to.

August 26, 1999.

MR. McCARTHY: In that case, Your Honor, if we're discussing Mr. Gregory's understanding of what this Court said, then it's hearsay. I suspect the Court made the prosecutor aware of the existence of an ex parte motion, but if the question is to this witness what did the Court

tell the prosecutor, it's either lack of personal knowledge or hearsay or something.

THE COURT: I don't understand. Are you asking him if the Court outside the presence of the court reporter disclosed something?

MR. EDWARDS: No, Your Honor. There was a motion made by affidavit by Mr. Gregory. He says it here on the record. He made a motion to withdraw by an affidavit.

THE COURT: But this August 26, 1999 transcript was sealed, and it's my understanding that Mr. Gammick was excused from the room.

MR. EDWARDS: Yes. Mr. Gregory says on the record, line 21, page 2, "This Court deemed it necessary to share that information with the State." This is prior to trial. I'm asking, clarifying, I guess, with Mr. Gregory what that information was, that this Court deemed necessary to share with the State.

THE COURT: I don't --

MR. EDWARDS: You don't get it?

THE COURT: No, because the Court didn't share anything with the State. So I don't know what we're talking about. And I have to read the whole transcript, and I think if Mr. Gregory reviewed the transcript and knows where you're at, then I don't necessarily have to be

AA01618

7

8 9

0

1 2

3 4 with you, if Mr. Gregory knows what was going on on that transcript.

THE WITNESS: I do not, Your Honor, I'm sorry.

THE COURT: Hand him the transcript. Maybe he'll remember.

MR. EDWARDS: I'll be glad to, Your Honor.

THE COURT: This is page 2 of that August transcript.

MR. EDWARDS: August 26, 1999, page 2, line 21. BY MR. EDWARDS:

Q Mr. Gregory, have you had an opportunity to look at that portion of the transcript?

A I have.

Q Can you tell us what you were referring to when you said the Court deemed it necessary to share that information with the State?

A Having read the entire paragraph, it appears that Mr. Stanton had made an argument of some sort indicating that Rule 172 did not apply under the circumstances and it suggests that the State had knowledge of the contents of our affidavit and our motion. I don't know that they did, but it certainly suggests that.

Q And you said the Court deemed it necessary; is that right?

7

8

9

0

. 8

.2

A Well, if you wish, I'll read the entire paragraph.

 \mathbb{Q} I'm just asking for clarification, if there's anything you can provide us to tell us what you meant by that.

A It appears that I was suggesting exactly what you believe I was suggesting, that the Court had indeed shared information regarding our conflict with the State, and that Mr. Stanton, who was lead counsel, had made an argument against the application of Supreme Court Rule 172.

Q Thank you.

MR. McCARTHY: In which case I object. You're asking for this witness to speculate now about what he meant then when he was describing what the Court did. I don't know how many objections I have, but I make all of them.

THE COURT: I don't understand. I thought you were asking the witness about something that was unsealed. If you're asking the witness now if he remembers if there was an allegation of the Court somehow outside the presence of counsel disclosed something to the State, then he has no memory of what it was, the objections would be sustained. If that was your question. I thought you were

. 5

.7 .8

0:

:1

.9

22

23

24

asking a question about the unsealing of that affidavit in a formal method.

MR. EDWARDS: I don't know how it was done, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, it wasn't done. What happened was he stood up and he said he had a motion; they had to be off the case. Mr. Stanton figured out what rule that But there wasn't any disclosure to anybody. it's my memory nothing was unsealed. That's what I was asking you about, was something unsealed.

Do you remember anything being officially unsealed?

THE WITNESS: I do not.

THE COURT: Go on.

BY MR. EDWARDS:

Do you have any recollection in your conversations or dealings with either Mr. Gammick or Mr. Stanton that would indicate they were aware of this admission by Mr. Vanisi to you?

Α I don't recall any conversations.

> MR. EDWARDS: No further questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Cross.

11

14

13

16

15

17 18

19

20 21

22

23

24

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

Q Thank you, Your Honor.

Mr. Gregory, in addition to your other duties, you were at the Public Defender's Office assigned to the ECR program; is that right?

- A That's correct.
- O What's that?
- A The Early Case Resolution program.
- Q And in that capacity you spent a lot of time in the county jail?
 - A Daily.
- Q Did you get any special accommodations from the county jail because of that?
 - A Yes.
 - Q Like what?
 - A Well, I have free access to the entire jail.
 - Q Without being noted on a visitors log?
 - A Oh, yes.
- Q And if you brought someone with you, for instance, Mike Specchio, could be also access the jail without being noted --
 - A He could go through with me, yes.
 - Q When you contacted bar counsel and the NACDL for

8

11

13

15

17

23

their advice, they advised you to make an effort to get off the case, right?

- A Told us categorically to get off the case.
- Q Did they suggest what you ought to do if that effort was not allowed?
- A We had to avoid -- I don't specifically remember them suggesting anything. I believe it was State Bar counsel that if we were forced to proceed, we had to avoid the potential conflict at all costs.
- Q Did you receive any advice that you should avoid undercutting your clients' proposed defense?
 - A Yes.
- Q As you prepared for trial and as you conducted the trial, did you know from Mr. Vanisi how he proposed to defend?
 - A Generally, yes.
- Q Did he tell you he proposed to testify that through his theory that somebody else did it?
 - A Yes.
- Q Did he also suggest to you that there were other defenses that he wasn't telling you what they were?
 - A Yes.
- Q Did he suggest to you how many other defenses he might have?

- Α I don't recollect, I'm sorry.
- Multiple? Q
- Multiple, yes.
- And your advice was to not -- the advice you received was to not, by your cross-examination, undercut whatever secret defense he may propose to present later on; is that right?
- That's correct. Or bolster, for that matter, or help those defenses.
- I suppose I may ask a stupid question. Does that make it any easier to defend Mr. Vanisi?
 - A No, it makes it much more difficult.
 - Q Impossible?
- Α Well, he set the parameters, so we did what we could.
- Did you ask him to please divulge to you the nature of his proposed defense?
 - Α Many times, yes.
 - Would "beg" be too strong a word? Q
 - Plead, maybe. Α
 - And your pleadings were without avail? 0
 - Without avail. Α
- You arranged for a psychiatric evaluation of Mr. Vanisi before trial, right?

8

- You mentioned you got a report indicating that he was competent?
 - That's correct.
- That same doctor opined that your client was also sane?
 - Yes. Α
- Did you have any other evidence available that would have encouraged you to look at the defense of insanity?
 - No, I think we were satisfied.
- Did you ever discuss with your client, Mr. Vanisi, his relatively bizarre behavior within the jail and the prison?
- I believe we discussed incidents as they occurred.
- Did he ever say to you anything that he was just doing it for the fun, to annoy his jailers?
- I can't remember him making that kind of statement. I do know that I was comfortable in my relationship with him that the activities he was involved in were more a sport than something he was compelled to do.
 - You were convinced of that? Q

8

1

23

- I was, yes. Α
- In retrospect, if Finger decision had been announced before this trial and the defense of insanity was clearly available, can you think of any good faith basis you might have had for advancing that defense?
 - Α At that time, no.
- The defense that you wanted to pursue, you called it self-defense. That was based in part upon prior contacts between Mr. Vanisi and the police officers?
 - That's correct. Α
- Tell me, would it be more self-defense or irresistible impulse, which do you think is closer?
- You're asking me to split legal hairs. It was a Α The most -- I almost said the most viable. Ĭ think it was the only viable defense.
- And some sort of irresistible rage could theoretically have gotten you a manslaughter?
 - Α Yes.
 - Unlikely, though, right?
 - Yes. Α
- Did you have discussions with Mr. Vanisi Q regarding the proposed defense of irresistible impulse or self-defense, did you and he talk about it?
 - No, we set forth our theory of the case and Α

AA01626

23

how we intended to defend. I don't believe he participated. I think he just refused to even talk about that and we went into great detail over and over again and he refused to accept that as a defense.

- Q That great detail include letting him know that as a practical matter you would have to admit the act, the homicidal act?
 - A Yes.
- Q Did he authorize you to admit to the jury the homicidal act?
 - A No.
- Q So you were somewhat hampered by advancing that defense?
- A Without his cooperation, we were not only hampered, we were prohibited from presenting that defense.
- Q And he wouldn't tell you what defense he wanted to present?
 - A That's correct.
- Q Mr. Gregory, by the time of this trial, 1998, 1999, your observations of lawyers in the community, can you think of anyone else that had advanced a claim based on violation of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations?
 - A No.

2

23

Is that the claim that would be generally familiar to the bar in this jurisdiction?

Α I would think not. I didn't know about it until I read it in the petition.

And how about the other treaty, what was it, Civil and Political Rights Treaty mentioned in the petition?

Somebody in the state department, a lawyer in the state department might know about that stuff.

But you, as an experienced defense attorney, you Q knew if you wished you could call the Tongan Consulate and ask them for help?

Yeah, I think that was the gist of the Α conversation Ms. Beelser had with the consulate.

- You have no personal knowledge of that? 0
- Α No.
- If you wanted, if you were hoping the consulate Q could provide an interpreter or money or experts or anything else, you have a telephone available to you; right?
 - That's correct. Α
- Do you recall how long after Siaosi Vanisi was arrested before your office got involved in the case?
 - I think we got into the case immediately upon his A

return to Nevada from Utah.

- Q Do you know if anyone in your office in fact called the Salt Lake City Public Defender's Office and had them get in the act earlier?
 - A I do not know.
- Q When you went to trial, did you and Mr. Bosler have a division of labor?
 - A Yes.
- Q Your interest was primarily the guilt phase and Mr. Bosler's was primarily the penalty phase?
- A That's correct. However, I don't want to imply in that statement that Mr. Bosler was responsible for the mitigation phase. I approved everything that was done.
- Q And, of course, the two of you worked closely together?
 - A That's correct.
 - Q Consulted at every opportunity?
 - A Yes.
- Q I don't know if you were asked earlier, if you know your office employed the services of a mitigation specialist?
 - A Not at that time, no.
 - Q Earlier, later, any other time?
 - A Later. We do now.

.0

Q You have someone on staff now?

A Yes.

MR. McCARTHY: That's all.

THE COURT: Okay. Counsel.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- Q Regarding this psychological evaluation that you indicate gave you results that Mr. Vanisi was both competent and sane was your testimony; is that correct?
 - A That's correct.
- Q So regarding the notion that he was sane, did this psychological examination actually address the legal standard of insanity?
 - A I believe that was the issue, yes.

MR. EDWARDS: No further questions.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. McCARTHY: Yes, if I may; it reminded me.

RECROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

Q On that subject, the psychiatric examination you arranged before trial, did you ask that doctor to also comment about possible mitigation?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

6

I would say yes. Α

- Remorse? Q
- Yes. Α
- Was it helpful? Q
- No. Α

That's all. MR. McCARTHY:

Mr. Edwards, did you have something THE COURT: further?

> No, Your Honor. MR. EDWARDS:

May this witness You may step down. THE COURT: be excused or do you want to hold him?

You know, I discussed with all the MR. McCARTHY: lawyers this witnesses, the possibility that I might have to recall them later. But I think, with the Court's permission, maybe for today he can be excused.

> THE COURT: That's fine. Thank you.

Counsel, this is a good time to take our noon We'll be back on the record with this case -- you recess. have two more witnesses this afternoon.

MR. EDWARDS: Yes, Your Honor. Actually, three. Three witnesses, one relatively brief, I think.

> Do you want to start at 1:15 or 1:30? THE COURT:

MR. EDWARDS: 1:30 is fine.

THE COURT: Then we'll be in recess on this case

AA01631

. 4

until 1:30. As soon as we're ready to go on the next case let me know.

(Recess taken.)

.3 . 4

.5 . 6

17

18 19

20 21

22 23

24

RENO, NEVADA, MONDAY, MAY 2, 2005, 2:15 P.M.

-000-

Please be seated. Counsel, go ahead THE COURT: and call your next witness.

Before we proceed, Mr. McCarthy and MR. EDWARDS: I have a stipulation to admit as evidence as part of this hearing the Supreme Court Rule 250 memorandum that was previously provided to both of us pursuant to our request, and it may have some relevance later on. So with that, I think Mr. Qualls is going to examine the next witness.

> THE COURT: Is it in the file?

MR. EDWARDS: It's in your file. That's where we If you'd like -got it.

That's what they're supposed to do. THE COURT: It's supposed to be filed in our file.

MR. McCARTHY: It's under seal. I agree what you have is authentic and admissible and may be considered for whatever you want to consider it for.

THE COURT: Are we opening it? Are we unsealing it?

MR. McCARTHY: Sure. If it's admitted as evidence, I guess it is.

> Do you want it marked or just we'll THE COURT:

23

24

stipulate that what's in the Court's file is the original and is accurate?

MR. EDWARDS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And we'll order it unsealed.

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, I can provide a copy of this if you'd like and make it separately filed.

THE COURT: It doesn't matter. I can take judicial notice of anything in the file as long as it's unsealed, as long as you're stipulating it being unsealed.

MR. McCARTHY: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. EDWARDS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That will be the order.

MR. QUALLS: Your Honor, our next witness would be Jeremy Bosler.

THE COURT: Mr. Bosler, go ahead and face the court clerk and be sworn.

JEREMY BOSLER

called as a witness on behalf of the Petitioner, having been first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUALLS:

Q Good afternoon, Mr. Bosler.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

L 1

15

Good afternoon. Α

- Could you please state your full name and spell it for the record.
- Jeremy Bosler. J-e-r-e-m-y. Last name Bosler, B-o-s-l-e-r.
 - Q What's your occupation?
 - I'm a public defender.
- How long have you been licensed as an attorney in Nevada?
- 11 years, about eight months, something like Α that.
- Have you been with the Public Defender's Office the whole time?
 - I have. Α
- You represented Siaosi Vanisi in a capital case that went to trial in 1999; is that correct?
 - I did, yes.
- And you had co-counsel to assist you with that case; is that correct?
 - Α That's correct.
 - Who was your co-counsel?
- Steve Gregory for a portion of the first proceeding. Mr. Specchio, obviously. But I believe in the second trial it was Mr. Gregory and I.

AA01635

9

Q Were you the lead attorney on that case?

A I considered it co-counsel, but I don't think there was really a set division as who was first chair, second chair.

Q Was that your first death penalty trial?

 $_{
m A}$ No, I think it was my second. I think I had done Geary with Mr. Gregory earlier.

 $_{\mathbb{Q}}$ So in the Geary case, would that be when you were first qualified under Supreme Court Rule 250 to serve as counsel on a capital case?

 $_{
m A}$ I think the Vanisi case and me acting as co-counsel was the last piece for me to become 250 qualified.

Q Could you tell us briefly what kind of support resources, investigator staff and the like, you had when you were working on the Vanisi case?

A Well, as like all cases in the Public Defender's Office, you have the resources of the other attorneys in the office, investigators. We had, I believe, two investigators at least assigned to this case, even though other investigators took parts along the way.

I contacted the Capital Defense Resource Center about jury questionnaires. I think Mike had contacted them. Obviously, as you heard earlier, we contacted the

10

13

15

17

National Association of Criminal Defense Lawyers task force. So although most resources were in the office, there was outside office resources we also took advantage of.

- Q And did you also work with the appellate division of the Washoe County Public Defender's Office?
 - A Yes.
- Q Did you work with Mr. Petty in that case, John Petty?
 - A Yes.
- Q Do you recall what legal issues you consulted with Mr. Petty on?
 - A No. Formally, no.
- Q Do you have any memory about how many hours you actually worked on the case?
- A I've reviewed my 250 memorandum. It would be only an estimate, because even if I looked at the memorandum, it's not complete as to time allotted to each task. I'd say at least 200 hours. I traveled to California and spent some time in California with an investigator looking for mitigation witnesses. So obviously that took a large portion of time.
- Q You mentioned there was a first trial that ended in a mistrial, and then there was a full, complete second

trial. Were you involved in the first trial as well?

A Yes, but not as actively as I was in the second trial.

- Q And so did you review all the discovery, police reports, et cetera, leading up to the first as well as the second trial?
 - A Yes.
- Q And during the course of preparing for trial, did you meet with Mr. Vanisi?
 - A Yes.
- Q And approximately how many times, do you have any idea?
 - A I'd say over a dozen.
- Q Did you review discovery of Mr. Vanisi when you were on your visits?
- A I reviewed portions of discovery with him. As I said earlier, Mr. Specchio and Mr. Gregory originally were the lead counsel for the first trial. Essentially all the discovery had been reviewed before the second trial began and I took a more active part in the trial. So we would talk about specific witnesses, specific parts of the defense, things that Mr. Vanisi wanted to have done. We did discuss those things. Did I go over the whole of discovery after the mistrial? I can't say I did.

ō

1

5

22

 \mathbb{Q} As far as you mentioned trial strategy and each witnesses that would be important, you discussed those things?

A Yes.

- Q Were you able to establish some rapport, some relationship with Mr. Vanisi?
 - A I believe so, yes.
 - Q Was he cooperative with you?
 - A I wouldn't characterize him as cooperative, no.
- Q What about his ability to kind of track your conversations and have rational conversations with you?
- A I think Mr. Vanisi tended to track his own conversations and things that he thought were important. I also believed he was a fairly rational, intelligent person. Although we didn't see eye to eye on most things.
- Q Was there ever a time leading up to and during the second trial that you had cause to question Mr. Vanisi's mental health?
- ${\bf A}$ Well, we had a diagnosis of bipolar disorder. Did I question his competence? No. Did I think maybe there was a mental health issue involved? Yes.
- $_{\rm Q}$ $\,$ Did you ever consider, based on the evidence that you had reviewed and Mr. Vanisi's comments to you, perhaps he was not sane at the time of the crime, from a legal --

- I never had that opinion, no. Α
- So you never considered that option?
- I considered it, but to me there wasn't evidence Α to support a defense like that.
- Was such a defense, by that, I mean not guilty by Q reason of insanity, was that available to you at that time?
 - No. Α
- Did that weigh into your decision on whether to pursue that option?
 - Ά Yes.
- I'm going to move a little bit ahead. Q a time during your representation that you moved the Court for an order allowing you to withdraw as counsel; is that correct?
 - Α That's correct.
 - What was the basis for that motion? Q
- Mr. Vanisi's insistence upon presenting a defense that was contrary to facts that he had given us earlier. So the chance that we would be suborning perjury or acting Because we weren't at least in a fraud upon the court. the position, willing to do that, we moved to withdraw. So that was the nuts and bolts of the nature of the

9

. 1

23

conflict.

- Q And what was the result, what did the Court ultimately rule on the motion?
 - A That we were not able to withdraw.
- Q Also around this same time did Mr. Vanisi move to have you removed as counsel on his own?
 - A Yes.
 - O Did he also move to represent himself?
 - A Yes.
 - Q Under Faretta?
 - A Yes, he did.
 - O What were the results of both of those?
 - A The Court denied those motions also.
- Q As a result of those three denials, what was the situation you found yourself in in trial?
- A I think the defense, we tried to be as effective as we could under those circumstances. But each witness would present a problem because if Mr. Vanisi's intent was to provide a defense that someone else was responsible for the murder, things that we had available to us, intoxication, mental health, our attempt to raise those issues for any one witness, even in cross-examination, had potentially the possibility of undercutting Mr. Vanisi's ability as historian.

AA01641

So as each witness was considered, we had to worry, are we going to do things to limit Mr. Vanisi's ability to be a witness if he decided to take the stand in his own defense. So it became nearly impossible to conduct meaningful cross-examination without impinging upon things he might want to do as part of his ability to testify.

- So as a result, the vast majority of the witnesses you didn't cross-examine, correct?
 - That's correct. Α
 - Because your hands were essentially tied?
 - That's correct. Α
- Was it because of the same reason that you gave 0 no opening statement?
 - Yes. Α
 - And no closing argument?
 - That's correct. Α
- In your professional opinion, and based upon your 0 experience, do you believe you had a conflict of interest in representing Mr. Vanisi during the trial?

Your Honor, what matters here is MR. McCARTHY: the Court's legal conclusion, not this witness' opinion. This Court has ruled and the Supreme Court reviewed it.

> It goes to the reasons why he asked MR. QUALLS:

to withdraw and why he was essentially forced to sit on his hands here in court.

MR. McCARTHY: Asked and answered.

THE COURT: I'll sustain the objection.

Sounded like an expert witness opinion anyway.

BY MR. QUALLS:

SVanisi2JDC05365,

6

7

3

Ð

)

4

5

6

7

8

9

0

1

2

3

4

Q Did you assert to the Court you had a conflict of interest during your motion to withdraw?

A I don't know whether I personally did. I think as an office we submitted the conflict of interest.

Q And was that based upon any consultations you had with State Bar counsel?

A Yes.

Q And that was his opinion as well, correct?

A That's correct. And I called NACDL and asked for their task force ethics representative, and I called Mike Sherman in Los Angeles and had discussion with him about the same circumstances, obviously hypothetically, and he concurred in that same opinion; he said we had to withdraw.

Q They advised you, accordingly, that there was a conflict?

A Yes.

Q Did you advise Mr. Vanisi regarding his right to

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

9

8

2

1

3 4 testify on his own behalf?

A I think I would have or one of the other attorneys would have. I can't specifically recall talking to him about that, the actual details of testifying.

- Q Do you recall any conversations you had with him regarding whether he would testify or not?
- A I remember discussing his willingness or his wanting to put on the defense that someone else was responsible. That would come from him. So that's as far as I can go with that question.
 - Q He didn't testify during the trial, did he?
 - A He ultimately chose not to testify, yes.
- Q During the course of your representation of Mr. Vanisi, did you become aware that he wasn't a U.S. citizen?
- A I know that the office had contacted the Tongan Consulate. I assumed he was a U.S. citizen, to tell you the truth.
- Q What's the basis of your knowledge that the office contacted the Tongan Consulate, do you know?
- A Reviewing the notes from the file, things that were preserved as part of the original trial record.
- Q So they contacted the Tongan Consulate prior to your, when you got really involved in the case?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

12

16

22

- That's correct, that's my understanding, yes. Α
- To your knowledge, after this conflict arose in which you asked to be withdrawn as counsel, was there any contact with the Tongan Consulate?
 - No, I have no information in that regard.
- Did you have any familiarity with the provisions of the Vienna Convention that allowed for assistance of counselor relations?
 - I had familiarity, yes.
- But you believe that avenue had already been explored?
 - Yes. Α
- Were you at all familiar at the time of this trial, preparing for the trial, with the provisions of the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights?
 - Α No.
- Could you tell us a little bit about your strategy during the sentencing phase of the case?
- Well, ideally, I think in any capital case you Α try to front load your mitigation as part of the trial phase; but since we were unable to do that, we had to essentially back load all of our mitigation.
- I know that Mr. Specchio, from memos, had gone to, I believe, Redondo Beach to find friends and people

familiar with Mr. Vanisi. Christa Calderon, an investigator in our office, she and I traveled to San Mateo and used the services of the San Mateo Public Defender's Office to track down and discuss mitigation evidence, witnesses, school teachers, friends, family the mental health aspect mitigation piece of the case. Did all we could under the circumstances, back loading the mitigation.

SVanisiZJDC053680

6

7

8

9

0

_1

_2

.3

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Do you know if he had any relatives still living in Tonga at the time?

He also, I believe, used Dr. Teenhouse as far as

I believe, although the family history is a little bit complex as to children being handed off to nonbiological parents, I believe he still has, maybe even to this day has some relatives in Tonga.

Were any of them contacted, do you know?

I know a lot of that was done before I came on the case with the original investigation. I believe the family members that were here that had contact with people in Tonga, they all knew about the case and what we were looking for as witnesses. Were any calls made directly from our office to Tonga? I can't say.

Do you know if anybody traveled to Tonga either at the time you were on the case or before it?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

7

5

23

- Q One of the aggravating circumstances that was sought and the jury found was that it was based upon the felony murder rule that the murder occurred during the commission of a robbery, correct?
 - A That's correct.
- Q And that was also, as the case was originally charged, it was charged under the felony murder rule, correct?
 - A That's correct.
- Q Did you see any problem, any legal problem at the time with that aggravator?
- A Not in the way that Nevada law existed at that time.
- Q Did you consult with Mr. Petty and the appellate office regarding that?
- A I've had the issue come up in my own trials, so I was already familiar with Nevada's at least willingness to allow the felony murder rule be used as an aggravator in a capital case.
 - Q That's why you didn't challenge it?
- A That's why I didn't see a basis to challenge it.

 MR. QUALLS: No further questions at this time,

 Your Honor.

9

17

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

- In the course of investigating, trying to track down potential mitigation type witnesses, did you experience any lack of cooperation?
 - Α Yes.
 - From the witnesses?
 - Yes. Α
 - Resistance to appearing?
 - Yes. Α
- There were times, in fact, when you had to use the Uniform Act to secure the attendance of witnesses from without the state; is that right?
 - Α Contested hearings in San Mateo.
 - That was for friends, relatives?
- I believe the people who were most resistant were school teachers who had nice things to say over the phone about Mr. Vanisi, but once they learned they may be present at a trial began to experience reluctance about the information they had.
- And other sorts of witnesses, friends and relatives, did you experience that same sort of reluctance

9

:3

- A Yes.
- Q Now eventually you rounded up some, didn't you?
- A Yes.
- Q Did your client suggest to you any potential mitigating witnesses that you did not follow up on?
 - A No.
- Q Did he give you names of some people that could say nice things about him?
- A When I came into the case, we already had some family names and contacts in California. We went with those and expanded upon those.
- Q Did you seek counsel of other lawyers experienced in the field on how to gather mitigating evidence?
- A I believe Mr. Specchio contacted Charlotte
 Holdman, a recognized expert in presenting mitigation
 evidence, consulted with her and gave information to the
 other attorneys on how to create a mitigation case.
- Q Were you satisfied you had done all you could in gathering mitigation?
 - A Yes.
- Q When you got advice from outside agencies like the bar counsel on the subject of what has been termed a conflict of interest, conflict anyway, did you get advice

AA01649

.0

б

on what to do if the Court said no, you may not withdraw?

The information I gathered was that it is a conflict and do all that you can to express that to the Court to be removed from the case.

I'm sorry, did you have any direct contact with bar counsel or NACDL?

I contacted NACDL. I didn't participate with the Α direct conversation with Mr. Barrer.

- And earlier, for the benefit of the court reporter, when you say NACDL --
 - National Association of Criminal Defense Lawyers. Α
 - I noticed a little glimpse.

Were you involved in any discussions with Mr. Vanisi about him exercising his right to testify at trial?

- Yes.
- Did you tell him he could testify if he wished?
- I was present when the conversations took place. He was advised he had the right to testify; we couldn't What he was going to say on the take that away from him. stand, we didn't know.
 - But you asked, didn't you?
- And there's correspondence where various defenses are raised and Mr. Vanisi is asked to commit to a

AA01650

version, which he doesn't do.

- Several times you asked him please tell you how he wished to defend himself?
- Those things were asked. I can't say I personally asked them, but those things were asked.
- Did he ever tell to you or say something in your 0 presence that he wished us to "sit on our hands" during the trial?
 - I can't recall that statement.
- I'm going to show you part of Rule 250 memo, see if that refreshes your recollection.
 - That's my Rule 250 memo?
- I can't tell you whether it is. Does that refresh your recollection?
 - Yes. Α
- Do you know now recall Mr. Vanisi asked if you would just sit on your hands during the trial?
- Those were his exact words, I put it in quotes. Α yes.
- And he also told you he believes there are many defenses to the case but he wouldn't tell you what they were?
 - That's correct.
 - You believe that hampered your ability to defend Q

.2

your client?

- Yes, as I stated earlier, yes. Α
- I'm sorry, what? O
- As I stated earlier, yes, I believe that hampered our ability to take part in the trial.

MR. McCARTHY: That's it.

THE COURT: Redirect.

MR. QUALLS: Court's indulgence one second.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUALLS:

During the discussions with Mr. Vanisi regarding his right to testify about which you were either there or had personal knowledge, was it discussed or was Mr. Vanisi informed that he had the right to testify and put on his defense?

I believe he was informed he had the right to Α testify and we couldn't tell him what he could say or couldn't say in his own defense.

> MR. QUALLS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. McCARTHY: Nothing else.

THE COURT: You may step down. I think you're supposed to stick around, not today, but be available.

4

5 6 7

8 9

1 2

0

3 4

MR. McCARTHY: I know where he works, Your Honor. I can find him.

MR. QUALLS: Next witness, Your Honor, is John Petty.

JOHN PETTY

called as a witness on behalf of the Petitioner. having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUALLS:

- Good afternoon, Mr. Petty.
- Good afternoon.
- Please state your full name and spell it for the court reporter.
- First name is John, common spelling J-o-h-n. Last name is Petty, P-e-t-t-y.
 - And what is your occupation? Q
 - I'm a public defender. Α
 - And you work in the appellate division?
 - I do. Α
- How long have you been licensed as an attorney in Nevada?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

1	2	
1	3	

1	5

1	7	

16

1	9

20

18

22

23

24

A	ς	i	n	C P	1	95	ลก	
A	Э.		11	CE	1	70	υc	

- How long have you been in the appellate division Q for the Public Defender's Office?
 - Over 11 years.
- And when were you first qualified pursuant to Supreme Court Rule 250 to serve as counsel in a capital case?
- I don't have a recollection, but I've handled many capital cases on appeal over the years.
 - Q Could you give us an estimate?
 - Estimate of how many cases?
 - Yes. Q
 - I'd say about ten.
- Q You represented Siaosi Vanisi in direct appeal on the capital case that went to trial in 1999, correct?
 - I did. Α
- Did you handle that appeal by yourself or did you have co-counsel on that?
 - I did it myself. Α
- What kind of support resources are at your disposal and did you use, when you were doing this direct appeal?
- Well, I have a deputy public defender who does appeals as well. So we would talk. But she wasn't

.2

16

21

23

actively involved in preparation of the appeal. And then I had staff, computers, access to West Law and the research engines.

- Q So other than your associate, did you consult with any other death penalty lawyers during your representation of Mr. Vanisi?
 - A No. Aside from Mr. Gregory and Mr. Bosler.
- Q Do you have an estimate of how many hours you worked on this appeal?
- A You know, when you asked that question of Mr. Bosler, I was trying to think about it. But you figure that this is a death penalty case, so I get the complete record that has to be reviewed. Then we filed opening briefs and answering briefs.

Prior to the conviction we also had done a writ to the Supreme Court on the issue of should we be allowed to withdraw.

And at the conclusion of the case and at the conclusion of briefing and argument in the Supreme Court, we filed a petition for writ of certiorari in the United States Supreme Court that was denied.

So you put that all together, I can't give you a sufficient number of hours, but it was over a very long period of time.

21 22

23 24 working on this appeal? I talked to him on the telephone.

I did not go out to any of the prison facilities that he was being housed at. I would talk to him briefly on the telephone, and I did have some contact with him during the course of the trial when I would be here to back up Mr. Bosler or Mr. Gregory with regards to some questions.

Did you meet with Mr. Vanisi while you were

Do you have any idea how many times you talked to him on the phone while you were --

Sometimes the No, I couldn't tell you. Α conversations were really, this is after the matter had been briefed, could you tell Jeremy to give me a call. Could you tell Mr. Gregory to give me a call or contact So some of those were very short conversations.

- Were you able to communicate effectively with him at that time?
 - Over the phone, I think we did.
- What about backing up, since you were talking Q about you worked on the case during trial as well, as sort of a back-up legal advisor, did you have -- were you able to communicate rationally with Mr. Vanisi at that time?

But most of my conversations .Yes, I was. Α involving Mr. Vanisi were directed at Mr. Bosler or

23

Mr. Gregory and we would have exchanges and that would be about it. But I didn't have any -- I didn't feel as though there was difficulty communicating with him or understanding what was going on.

So did you ever review the issues on appeal with Q him either prior to filing the opening brief or sometime thereafter?

Well, I don't recall talking with him about the Ά issues raised on appeal. I mean there was one issue that was, I mean it was a dynamite issue that had to go and that was the Faretta issue that had to go. And at the conclusion of writing and filing, I supplied Mr. Vanisi with everything that was supplied to the Supreme Court.

And that issue, by the way, the Faretta issue is the issue we writted to the United States Supreme Court.

Thank you. Since you brought up the Faretta Q issue, let's go there. Essentially you challenged the trial court's decision based upon an argument that the Court's findings were belied by the record, correct?

That's correct. Because what the record Α consisted, of after the Faretta motion was filed, Judge Steinheimer had a lengthy hearing one afternoon, might have even been all day, where arguments were made. State was represented by Mr. Stanton, and Judge

Steinheimer did a Faretta canvass but also did a rule,
Supreme Court Rule 153 canvass, which is essentially the
same thing, to make the determination whether or not if
Mr. Vanisi was making his request with his eyes wide open.

We differ about how that conclusion or how that hearing should have been resolved, because I thought, and so did Mr. Stanton. I think everybody in the courtroom thought that if there was ever anybody who successfully navigated through a 153 canvass, Mr. Vanisi had.

MR. McCARTHY: By the way, I object to the speculation about what the Court thought, Stanton thought or anybody --

THE COURT: Obviously the Court didn't think it because I didn't grant it. Obviously the Supreme Court agreed with me.

THE WITNESS: But did you read that scathing concurring opinion?

THE COURT: No.

MR. QUALLS: For the record, I believe Mr. Stanton made his thoughts clear regarding what Mr. Petty was saying on the record.

THE WITNESS: That's right. I think Mr. Stanton, and I think people were surprised, that he had come to the conclusion that he thought Mr. Vanisi could conduct

8

nimself accordingly in court, that he was intelligent obviously because he had been reading books on physics and things of that nature. So he was -- he had intelligence.

BY MR. QUALLS:

 $_{
m Q}$ So just following up on that: Your argument was that the record showed there was no indication that Mr. Vanisi would disrupt the proceedings, correct?

A That's part of the argument. And that was based on Nevada case law, Tankleys, T-a-n-k-l-e-y-s. Because as I read that case, there has to be some indication that the defendant is going to be disruptive and that indication has to be in prior court proceedings. And the record in this case reflected that every time that Mr. Vanisi was in court, he comported himself in a good fashion.

Q Additionally, the record showed that Mr. Vanisi showed that he was aware of his rights and of the possible punishment; is that true?

A Correct.

MR. McCARTHY: I'm willing to stipulate Mr. Petty disagrees with the Court's conclusion and raised that argument. I'm willing to stipulate that the record shows what it shows. I don't know why we're doing any of this.

THE COURT: Unless you have a question.

ŝ

7

0

BY MR. QUALLS:

I'm getting there. That was my last question on that point, Your Honor. My next question is something completely different.

This is not supposed to be about what THE COURT: he thinks I did wrong; it's supposed to be about what you think he did wrong.

MR. QUALLS: I agree. That's where we're going. BY MR. QUALLS:

- Do you know what a structural error is?
- Generally speaking, that's an error that would cause the reliability of the verdict to be in question. Usually involves questions of something that's happened during the course of the trial that doesn't really go to testimony.
- And based upon your review of the record and your involvement in the case, do you think there was a structural error in this case?
- I don't believe there was, because if I had found structural error, I would have argued that as such. think the way we framed the Faretta issue, that was error. Whether or not that becomes structural, I'd have to think about that. Puzzle that.
 - You don't think the combination of the denial of

5

the Faretta motion plus the denial of the motion to withdraw counsel caused a structural error? clarification. Your Honor.

MR. McCARTHY: Your Honor --

THE COURT: Go ahead.

It doesn't matter. He raised what MR. McCARTHY: he raised. Whether he thinks -- relevance. I object.

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain that. He raised the issue. I don't think it mattered if he called it a So sustained. particular name.

MR. QUALLS: Your Honor, for the record, structural error is more than just calling something a name, because --

Is there something that you believe THE COURT: he should have pled to the Supreme Court that he didn't?

MR. QUALLS: I believe he should have raised a structural error because it avoids a harmless error analysis.

But he did raise the Faretta issue THE COURT: and he did raise the issue of not being allowed to withdraw as counsel.

MR. QUALLS: No, I don't believe he did raise that.

THE WITNESS: I can clarify that. We raised that

5

issue by way of the writ that went to the Supreme Court that was denied. The conflict never really resolved itself, but it never completely materialized either when Mr. Vanisi elected not to testify.

Had Mr. Vanisi elected to testify, he would have been able to give his story as he wished, and there is a mechanism by which counsel who still stays on the case can sort of navigate that problem; that is, as set forth in a case called Nix versus Whiteside, I think it is. And Nix is N-i-x. It's a very awkward situation.

During the course of your involvement in Mr. Vanisi's case, were you aware that he wasn't a U.S. citizen?

You know, I wasn't aware of that. That wasn't something that I was focused on. I was really trying to answer questions that were put to me from time to time by Mr. Gregory or Mr. Bosler.

What about on appeal, once you read the record were you aware that he was a Tongan national?

I think, having read the record, yes. But that wasn't raised as an issue on appeal. Primarily it wasn't raised as an issue on appeal because it was never litigated at the trial stage. As you know, if you don't give the district court an opportunity to resolve an issue

9

first the Supreme Court doesn't have any, doesn't have any obligation to review an issue not raised at the trial level.

Q With the exception of, for instance, a Jones error, which is a plain error on the face, you could technically raise claims of ineffective assistance and whatnot under direct appeal?

A Well, actually my understanding is that you cannot raise claims of ineffective assistance of counsel on direct appeal; but that would be, even assuming you could, the hurdle we would have there is that I would be claiming my deputies as being ineffective which would make me have to get off the case because of that conflict. So it's -- the answer to your question you cannot raise ineffective assistance of counsel on direct appeal. You have to wait to do that in post-conviction proceedings.

If there is a Jones error, if it's just so fundamentally wrong, like there's a case DUI case, I think Smith v. State, or in Jones where the record shows that without the client's permission, the attorney, if this is the one you're thinking about, the attorney conceded his client's factual guilt to a second degree murder case without any okay from his client.

Q Are you familiar with the International Covenant

19

on Civil and Political Rights?

A I am not.

- Q Do you, as a death penalty qualified appellate lawyer, do you have to or have an obligation kind of to go above and beyond your normal appellate duties?
- A Well, I like to think that I bring what talent I have to all the appeals I write. But a death penalty case is significant. I mean we're all familiar with that, death is different.
- Q So you seek out additional information and experts and authorities from other parts of the country and whatnot, don't you?
- ${\bf A}$ I do research. And I have sent letters off to other people. But basically it's -- I'm the author of my work.
- Q But during that research you never came across the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights?
 - A Not that I'm aware of, no.
- Q You're aware of the recent McConnell decision by the Nevada Supreme Court?
 - A I am.
 - Q It came out of your office?
 - A It did.
 - Q Did you assist, I know you're not the named

8

9

12

author on the decision, but did you assist in that case?

To the extent that I would talk to Cheryl Bond, Α who wrote that brief, or Maizie Pusich, who was his trial attorney, still is his trial attorney, our conversations, we would have those kind of conversations, but she's the one who brought that appeal.

And you're aware that one of the aggravators in this case is identical to the aggravator in McConnell, correct?

Α I am, and McConnell was decided, what, it was the last case decided in 2004, literally the last case published that was decided in 2004. And then the State petitioned for rehearing which was openly denied in 2005. Prior to Ms. Bond getting that fantastic victory, that was not the state of the law in the state of Nevada so it was not even something that I thought about raising on appeal.

- So you didn't consider raising that? Q
- Α No.
- You do, however, your office, does fairly consistently raise issues, what comes to mind is the reasonable doubt instruction, to try to change the law, correct?
 - Α Uh-huh.
 - And that's essentially what Ms. Bond did in the

AA01665

)

3

9

McConnell decision?

 ${\bf A}$ That's exactly what Ms. Bond did in McConnell. It was excellent.

Q Is there a reason why you didn't try that in the Vanisi case?

really was not floating as something to look at until an earlier decision by Maupin -- I think in a concurring decision or decent, I think it was concurring, sort of flagged that issue as sort of maybe something that should be percolated in the system, and I think that's what sparked Ms. Bond's interest and got her to write the issue.

Q Did you consider an Eighth Amendment challenge that the death penalty was itself cruel and unusual in this case?

A I know that early on at the trial court level we raised a variety of those kinds of motions, variety of those kinds of motions to the trial court's attention, but I ultimately didn't take it up on appeal because that case is, I mean that issue has never been successful on direct appellate review. In fact, it's never been successful in the state of Nevada.

So you just answered my second question; that's

7

why you didn't bring it forward, just because you didn't think it would be successful?

- A Uh-huh.
- Q Do you ever raise such issues in order to preserve them for federal appeal?

A I'm sure I have. I'm trying to think if I've raised that kind of issue before. But there are issues we do raise. The reasonable doubt issue, for example, is one we raised knowing full well that with the language of our Supreme Court we won't have much success but maybe up on federal review something will happen.

But, see, our Supreme Court also cites a Ninth Circuit case for the proposition that our current reasonable doubt instruction is good and that's not what the case stands for.

- Q So along those same lines, why didn't you raise a cruel and unusual argument, for instance, to preserve it for the Feds?
 - A I couldn't tell you. I don't know.
- Q Okay. Did you consider an argument that Nevada's death penalty statutes fail to meaningfully narrow the class of persons eligible for the death penalty?
- A Yeah, we have raised that in the past. I don't believe that was one of the issues here. Like I said, the

9

issue for me, what I thought was going to be the driving issue for this particular appeal was the Faretta issue and also the fact that if you put together the mitigating factors that were offered to the jury, that perhaps they did outweigh the aggravating circumstances.

Q Did you consider any claims regarding competence to be executed?

A No, because that -- I've been involved in that kind of situation. I think back to when I was a trial attorney in the Public Defender's Office, one of the cases that I took to the Nevada Supreme Court was whether or not Priscilla Ford was competent to be executed, because she had been found to be incompetent. Then we put on a hearing for her with a lot of doctors which we thought was better evidence presented to the Court and they found her competent. So we took that to the Supreme Court. But that would have happened post-judgment on some kind of writ or something like that. It wasn't something that was even litigated below to be preserved for direct appeal.

Q Okay. Thank you.

Did you consider an issue related to constitutional standards of impartiality as it relates to the judiciary?

A Can you clarify that for me?

. 1

23

Q Sure. It's based upon an historical claim that we have presented on behalf of Mr. Vanisi, related to the judiciary as an elected body and therefore subject to the intense pressure related to death penalty cases?

A I'm sure that we may have filed something like at the district court level, but if what you're getting at is that statistically a sentencing panel will impose death more often than a jury, you know, that's just something that's been recognized in the state of Nevada. Those issues have been raised before the Nevada Supreme Court on more than one occasion without success.

- Q Did you consider any other standard challenges to the death penalty regarding possibility of rehabilitation or unacceptable risk of executing an innocent person?
 - A Those issues were not raised on direct appeal.
- Q What about an appeal issue regarding the discretion, the wide discretion of prosecutors in the state of Nevada to make the decision on whether to seek the death penalty?
- A That issue has been raised, not necessarily by my office, but in published Supreme Court, Nevada Supreme Court cases, again without success.
- ${\mathbb Q}$ And, again, is there a reason why you decided not to raise that issue or any of these other death penalty

5

issues other than the Eighth Amendment which we've already covered for federal review?

A No.

Q Finally, Mr. Petty, did you consider any appeal issues regarding allowing a death qualified jury to determine guilt or innocence?

A That wasn't raised on direct appeal, but I know we've talked about that around the office. I mean I think I might have mentioned it already. In fact, I was talking to some high school kids on Friday and pointed out the jury selection process in a capital case, that you ultimately end up with people who say, okay, I could impose the death penalty. When you get enough of them together, odds are you're going to get the death penalty imposed. But it's not an issue on appeal.

MR. QUALLS: No further questions.

THE COURT: Cross.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. McCARTHY:

- So you've been in the criminal appellate business more than 11 years?
 - A Correct.
 - Q Do you have a counterpart in Clark County?

A	You	know,	1	belie	eve i	n Clai	rk Cou	nty	the	tr	ial	
deputie	s, at	least	in	the	Publ	ic De	fender	's (Offic	е,	they	
nandle	their	own a	ppe	als.	But	then	there	' \$	also	a	specia	l
office	for de	eath p	ena	lty (cases							

- I gave you a copy of the claims that were being pursued on habeas, right?
 - Right. Α
- By the way, Your Honor, that was with the permission of Mr. Edwards before the Court ruled.

Did you read that over?

- I glanced through it, yes.
- Of the putative potential appellate arguments, were you familiar with them all?
- I'm trying to -- I would have to have that document in front of me to go through it, to answer that question intelligently.
- How about the substantive due process, that might Q have been a new one?
 - Substantive due process? Uh-huh.
- Were there any great surprises in that document that I gave you?
 - No, nothing came leaping out at me. Α
- When you did this appeal, you knew you had the option of raising frontal attacks on the death penalty if

8

9

.0

16

you wished?

- A Uh-huh.
- Q You know what they are; you know what's available? You have to answer out loud.
 - A I'm sorry, yes.
 - Q Not used to being a witness, are you?
 How do you choose?

A Well, you know, I guess if I wanted to -- and I remember when Justice Young was on the Supreme Court, this used to drive him crazy where they would get these briefs from Clark County, primarily, that had everything and the kitchen sink thrown in there. Some issues so firmly established against the accused that it was just ridiculous to keep raising those things. You get frustrated.

The other thing, I think about my audience. You don't just bombard them with a whole host of frivolous issues and hope they pick one out and go, hey, I like this one. You have to pick and choose your issues.

Q Why?

A Well, first, I'm on a page limitation requirement. Without court permission you can't file an opening brief or any brief, for that matter, in excess of 30 pages.

9

15

17

22

But, also, as I said, I don't want to bury a good issue in a forest of bad issues.

- Q And in this case you considered your best issue to be what?
- A The Faretta issue. Not only in the Nevada Supreme Court, but also in the U.S. Supreme Court.
- Q So you had in your arsenal what you considered to be your best issue and then a whole flock of other available issues?
 - A Uh-huh.
- Q And you chose based on what you thought had the best odds of getting relief for your client?
- A Well, think of it in this way: Had the Supreme Court agreed with me and found that the Faretta issue as an absolute right, and as long it's not being used to disrupt the proceedings or it's not being -- or it has been timely filed and would have reversed, then all those other issues we just talked with Mr. Qualls about would be gone.

On the other hand, none of the issues that I talked with Mr. Qualls about really had a remote chance of getting some kind of positive relief for Mr. Vanisi, particularly considering the evidence that was presented at trial in this case.

AA01673

- In your other appeals in other cases, you'll do Q that from time to time, you'll raise an argument that you know has been repeatedly rejected, right?
 - Yes. Α
 - When you have something better, do you do that? Q
- If I have what I consider to be a hot button Α issue or something that is so intriguing that it's got justices up there interested, I don't put in some of my I mean I try to weed that out.
- Do you know if other regular appellate Q practitioners take that same approach?

I think that we do. I understand from Supreme Court, United States Supreme Court case law, and the case that's coming to mind is Barnes, but I can't think of what the secondary name is, it says it's not, appellate counsel in a criminal case is not required to raise each and every frivolous issue but can cherry pick, if you want, the issues they want to have brought to the attention of the Appellate Court.

- Can and should? 0
- Can and should.
- That's what you did?
- Yes. Α
 - MR. McCARTHY: Nothing else.

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

THE COURT: Mr. Qualls.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. QUALLS:

Q Death penalty law is fairly dynamic, wouldn't you say; that it changes a lot due to decisions of state and federal courts, U.S. Supreme Court?

A I will agree with you on that. But when you said that, I was reminded of the fact that ever since Renquist has been the chief justice of the United States Supreme Court, that dynamic shift in death penalty cases hasn't been in the favor of the accused. I mean just recently you got a favorable ruling in a death penalty case saying you cannot execute a person who committed a murder at the age of 16 or 17. But no one saw that coming.

- Q That's correct. But there's also Ring and Apprendi?
 - A Yes.
- Q And there's a decision that you can't execute mentally retarded people?
 - A Correct.
- Q And there's a decision from the Nevada Supreme Court which we just spoke about, McConnell, correct?
 - A Correct.

Q	So	when y	ou make	a decisi	on abou	t a nar	rowing	,
decisio	n abo	ut wha	it issues	you're	going t	o raise	and y	/ou
sweep t	hese	other	possible	e claims	over he	re and	you do	n't
raise t	hem,	those	are waiv	ed for p	ourposes	of fee	deral	
review.	corr	ect?						

- I believe that's true, yes.
- And so relief cannot be granted then on those Perhaps ever was strong. You can clarify that.

I don't want to say ever. The rules are always changing.

- As a general rule?
- As a general rule.
- And that's due to just, for the record, the principles of comity, correct; the federal courts won't review something that's high stake prioritizing?
 - Correct. Α

MR. QUALLS: No more.

THE COURT: Anything further?

MR. McCARTHY: No thank you.

THE COURT: You may step down.

MR. McCARTHY: I can't anticipate recalling Mr. Petty.

> Maybe you're excused. THE COURT:

THE WITNESS: Even though I disagree with you, I

. 4

L 6

18 19

20

21 22

23

24

do so with respect.

THE COURT: That's fine.

MR. EDWARDS: There's one additional witness that Mr. McCarthy has arranged to show at 3:45. I think it will be a brief recess.

THE COURT: You want to recess until 3:45?

MR. EDWARDS: If we could.

THE COURT: No problem. Court's in recess.

(Recess taken.)

THE COURT: Okay. Counsel, let's deal with the continuation real quick before we hear this witness. clerk has a suggested time.

THE CLERK: I'm looking at May 20th.

MR. EDWARDS: I can't, Your Honor. I have to be in Las Vegas at 1:00 that day.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. EDWARDS: I can do it the day before if you like.

MR. QUALLS: I can't do it the day before, Your Honor.

MR. McCARTHY: I was going to get a haircut that day.

> THE CLERK: May 18th at 10:00.

MR. McCARTHY: Okay by me.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

* * * * * * * * * *

SIAOSI VANISI,

Appellant,

No. 65774

Electronically Filed Jan 14 2015 12:18 p.m. Tracie K. Lindeman Clerk of Supreme Court

vs.

RENEE BAKER, WARDEN, and CATHERINE CORTEZ MASTO, ATTORNEY GENERAL FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Volume 7 of 26

Respondents.

APPELLANT'S APPENDIX

Appeal from Order Denying Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction)

Second Judicial District Court, Washoe County

RENE L. VALLADARES Federal Public Defender

TIFFANI D. HURST Assistant Federal Public Defender Nevada State Bar No. 11027C 411 E. Bonneville, Suite 250 Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 (702) 388-6577 danielle_hurst@fd.org

Attorneys for Appellant

INDEX

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	PAGE				
22	Corp	wer to Petition for Writ of Habeas ous (Post-Conviction)					
	July	15, 2011	AA05476-AA05478				
26		e Appeal Statement 23, 2014	AA06257-AA06260				
1		Exhibits to Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (list)					
	May	4, 2011	AA00238-AA00250				
	EXH	IIBIT					
2	1.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et Reno Township No. 89.820, Crimina January 14, 1998	al Complaint				
2	2.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et Reno Township No. 89.820, Amende February 3, 1998	ed Complaint				
2	3.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et Judicial Court of the State of Nevad County, No. CR98-0516, Informatio February 26, 1998	la, Washoe n				
2	4.	ABA Section of Individual Rights and Responsibilities, Recommendation February 3, 1997					
2	5.	Declaration of Mark J.S. Heath, M. May 16, 2006, including attached Exhibits					

VOLUME	<u>C</u>	<u>DOCUMENT</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
2	6.	Birth Certificate of Siaosi Vanisi, District of Tongatapu June 26, 1970	.AA00421-AA00422
2	7.	Immigrant Visa and Alien Registrat of Siaosi Vanisi May 1976	
2	8.	Siaosi Vanisi vs. The State of Nevad Supreme Court Case No. 35249, App Judgment of Conviction, Appellant's Opening Brief April 19, 2000	peal from a
2	9.	Siaosi Vanisi v. The State of Nevada Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 35 Appeal from a Judgment of Convicti Appellant's Reply Brief November 6, 2000	249, on,
2	10.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Court of Reno Township No. 89.820 Amended Criminal Complaint February 3, 1998	
2-3	11.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial Dis No. CR98-0516, Juror Instructions, September 27, 1999	trict Court Case Trial Phase
3	12.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial Dis Court Case No. CR98-0516, Juror Instructions, Penalty Phase October 6, 1999	trict

<u>VOL</u>	<u>UME</u>	<u>1</u>	DOCUMENT	PAGE
3	13.	Cont	fidential Execution Manual, Procedures for Executing the Death Penalty, Nevada State Prison, Revised February 2004AAG	
3		14.	Leonidas G. Koniaris, Teresa A. Zimmer David A. Lubarsky, and Jonathan P. She Inadequate Anaesthesia in Lethal Inject Execution, Vol. 365 April 6, 2005, at http://www.thelancet.com	eldon, ion for
3		15.	David Larry Nelson v. Donald Campbell Grantt Culliver, United States Supreme Case No. 03-6821, October Term, 2003 Brief of Amici Curiae in Support of Petit AAC	Court ioner
3		16.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi Def In Proper Person, Washoe County Secon District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Motion to Appoint Counsel June 16, 1999	d Judicial
3		17.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Court Ordered Motion for Self Represent August 5, 1999	tation
3		18.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Ex-Parte Order for Medical Treatment July 12, 1999	

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
3	19.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a	. 1
J .	19.		 :
		Washoe County Second Judicial District Case No. CR98-0516, Order	Court
		August 11, 1999AA0	0633-1100613
3	20.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a	
J 2	4 0.	Washoe County Second Judicial District	11. ,
		v	
		Court Case No. CR98-0516,	
		Transcript of Proceedings	00044-1100007
		June 23, 1999AA0	0044-AA00087
3	21.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a	<u>.</u> 1
0 2	41.	Washoe County Second Judicial District	
		Case No. CR98-0516	Court
		Transcript of Proceedings	
		August 3, 1999AA0	0688-AA00730
		11ugust 6, 10001110	000011100100
3-4	22.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a	al
<u> </u>		Washoe County Second Judicial District	
		Case No. CR98-0516	
		Reporter's Transcript of Motion for	
		Self Representation	
		August 10, 1999AA0	0731-AA00817
			0,011210001,
4 2	23.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a	al.,
		Washoe County Second Judicial District	
		Case No. CR98-0516	
		In Camera Hearing on Ex Parte	
		Motion to Withdraw	
		August 26, 1999AA0	0818-AA00843
4 2	24.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a	al
	-	Washoe County Second Judicial District	
		Case No. CR98-0516	
		Amended Notice of Intent to Seek Death	Penalty
		February 18, 1999AA0	•

VOLUME	<u>!</u>	DOCUMENT	PAGE
4	25.	Phillip A. Rich, M.D., Mental Health Diag October 27, 1998AA00	
4	26.	Various News Coverage ArticlesAA00)857-AA00951
4	27.	Report on Murder and Voluntary Manslaughter- Calendar Years 2005 and Report to the Nevada Legislature In Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes 2.193 and 178.750, March 2007	
4	28.	Report on Murder and Voluntary Manslaughter Calendar Years 2003-2006	
4	29.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., W County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Verdict, Guilt Phase September 27, 1999	
4-5	30.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., W County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Verdict, Penalty Phase October 6, 1999	
5	31.	Photographs of Siaosi Vanisi from youth	1002-AA01006
5	32.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi Defe In Proper Person, Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Ex Parte Motion to Reconsider Self-Repre August 12, 1999	esentation

VOLUME	! <u>!</u>	DOCUMENT	PAGE
5	33.	The State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, Wask County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Defense Counsel Post-Trial Memorandum Accordance with Supreme Court Rule 250 October 15, 1999	in
5	34.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-C January 18, 2002	
5	35.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Ex Parte Motion to Withdraw August 18, 1999	116-AA01124
5-6	36.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Supplemental Points and Authorities to Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-C February 22, 2005	
6	37.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Reply to State's Response to Motion for Protective Order March 16, 2005	319-AA01325

VOLUME	<u>!</u>	DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
6-7	38.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Memorandum of Law Regarding McConnel March 28, 2007	
7	39.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Transcript of Proceedings Post-Conviction Hearing May 2, 2005	590-AA01691
7-8	40.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Transcript of Proceedings Continued Post-Conviction Hearing May 18, 2005	392-AA01785
8	41.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Transcript of Proceedings April 2, 2007	786-AA01816
8	42.	Siaosi Vanisi v. Warden, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P0516 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and J November 8, 2007	
8	43.	Siaosi Vanisi vs. The State of Nevada, Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 50607 Appeal from Denial of Post-Conviction Habeas Petition Appellant's Opening Brief August 22, 2008	833-AA01932

<u>VOLUMI</u>	<u> </u>	DOCUMENT	PAGE
8	44.	Siaosi Vanisi vs. The State of Nevada, Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 5060 Appeal from Denial of Post-Conviction Habeas Petition Reply Brief December 2, 2008)7
8-9	45.	Siaosi Vanisi vs. The State of Nevada, Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 5060 Appeal from Denial of Post-Conviction Order of Affirmance)7
		April 20, 2010A	A01991-AA02002
9	46.	Siaosi Vanisi vs. The State of Nevada, Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 5060 Appeal from Denial of Post-Conviction Petition for Rehearing May 10, 2010)7 Petition
9	47.	Washoe County Sheriff's Office, Inmat Visitors Reports and Visiting Log	
9	48.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al. County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Order for Competency Evaluation December 27, 2004	
9	49.	Thomas E. Bittker, M.D., Forensic Psychiatric Assessment January 14, 2005	A02024-AA02032
9	50.	A.M. Amezaga, Jr., Ph.D., Competency Evaluation February 15, 2005A	

<u>VOLUME</u>	<u>1</u>	DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
9	51.	State of Nevada v. Vernell Ray Evans, Clark County Case No. C116071 Sentencing Agreement February 4, 2003	.02049-AA02054
9	52.	State of Nevada v. Jeremy Strohmeyer, Clark County Case No. C144577 Court Minutes September 8, 1998	.02055-AA02057
9	53.	State of Nevada v. Jonathan Daniels, Clark County Case No. C126201 Verdicts November 1, 1995	.02058-AA02068
9	54.	State of Nevada v. Richard Edward Pow Clark County Case No. C148936 Verdicts November 15, 2000	
9	55.	State of Nevada v. Fernando Padron Ro Clark County Case No. C130763 Verdicts May 7, 1996	_
9	56.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Order finding Petitioner Competent to I March 16, 2005	Proceed
9	57.	Omitted	AA02098
9	58.	Rogers, Richard, Ph.D., "Evaluating Competency to Stand Trial with Eviden Practice", J Am Acad Psychiatry Law 3'	7:450-60 (2009)

VOLUME	<u>!</u>	<u>DOCUMENT</u>	PAGE
9	59.	Thomas E. Bittker, M.D., Sanity Ev June 9, 1999	
9-10	60.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cou Case No. CR98-0516 Preliminary Examination February 20, 1998	ırt
10	61.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cou Case No. CR98-0516 Arraignment March 10, 1998	ırt
10	62.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cou Case No. CR98-0516 Status Hearing August 4, 1998	ırt
10	63.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Status Hearing September 4, 1998	
10	64.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cou Case No. CR98-0516 Status Hearing September 28, 1998	ırt
10	65.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cou Case No. CR98-0516 Report on Psychiatric Evaluations November 6, 1998	ırt

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
10	66.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Hearing Regarding Counsel November 10, 1998	
10	67.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Pretrial Hearing December 10, 1998	
10	68.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Final Pretrial Hearings January 7, 1999	
10-11	69.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Hearing to Reset Trial Date January 19, 1999	
11	70.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Pretrial Motion Hearing June 1, 1999	
11	71.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Motion Hearing August 11, 1999	

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
11	72.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Decision to Motion to Relieve Counsel August 30, 1999	
11	73.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 In Chambers Review May 12, 1999	
11	74.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Trial Volume 5 January 15, 1999	
11-12	75.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Preliminary Examination February 20, 1998	
12	76.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Arraignment March 10, 1998	
12	77.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Motion to Set Trial March 19, 1998	

VOLUME	<u>!</u>	DOCUMENT	PAGE
12	78.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., V County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Status Hearing August 4, 1998	
12	79.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., V County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Status Hearing September 4, 1998	
12	80.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., V County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Status Hearing September 28, 1998	
12	81.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., V County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Report on Psych Eval November 6, 1998	
12	82.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., V County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Hearing Regarding Counsel November 10, 1998	
12-13	83.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., V County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Pre-Trial Motions November 24, 1998	

VOLUME	<u>}</u>	<u>DOCUMENT</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
13	84.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al. County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Pretrial Hearing December 10, 1998	
13	85.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al. County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Telephone Conference December 30, 1998	
13	86.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al. County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Hearing January 7, 1999	
13	87.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al. County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Continued Jury Selection January 7, 1998	
13	88.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al. County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Jury Selection January 8, 1999	
13-14	89.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al. County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Trial, Volume 4 January 14, 1999	

<u>VOLUME</u>		<u>DOCUMENT</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
14	90.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cou Case No. CR98-0516 Order (Granting Motion for Mistrial January 15, 1999	art 1)
14	91.	Omitted	AA03380
14	92.	Declaration of Paulotu Palu January 24, 2011	.AA03381-AA03389
14	93.	Declaration of Siaosi Vuki Mafileo February 28, 2011	.AA03390-AA03404
14	94.	Declaration of Sioeli Tuita Heleta January 20, 2011	.AA03405-AA03418
14	95.	Declaration of Tufui Tafuna January 22, 2011	.AA03419-AA03422
14	96.	Declaration of Toeumu Tafuna April 7, 2011	.AA03423-AA03456
14	97.	Declaration of Herbert Duzan's Inte of Michael Finau April 18, 2011	
14	98.	Declaration of Edgar DeBruce April 7, 2011	.AA03465-AA03467
14	99.	Declaration of Herbert Duzan's Inte of Bishop Nifai Tonga April 18, 2011	
14	100.	Declaration of Lita Tafuna April 2011	.AA03474-AA03476

<u>VOLUME</u>		DOCUMENT	PAGE
14	101.	Declaration of Sitiveni Tafuna April 7, 2011	AA03477-AA03486
14	102.	Declaration of Interview with Alisi conducted by Michelle Blackwill April 18, 2011	
14-15	103.	Declaration of Tevita Vimahi April 6, 2011	AA03490-AA03514
15	104.	Declaration of DeAnn Ogan April 11, 2011	AA03515-AA03523
15	105.	Declaration of Greg Garner April 10, 2011	AA03524-AA03531
15	106.	Declaration of Robert Kirts April 10, 2011	AA03532-AA03537
15	107.	Declaration of Manamoui Peaua April 5, 2011	AA03538-AA03542
15	108.	Declaration of Toa Vimahi April 6, 2011	AA03543-AA03566
15	109.	Reports regarding Siaosi Vanisi at Washoe County Jail, Nevada State and Ely State Prison, Various dates	8
15	110.	Declaration of Olisi Lui April 7, 2011	AA03745-AA03749
15-16	111.	Declaration of Peter Finau April 5, 2011	AA03750-AA03754
16	112.	Declaration of David Kinikini April 5, 2011	AA03755-AA03765

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
16	113.	Declaration of Renee Peaua April 7, 2011	AA03766-AA03771
16	114.	Declaration of Heidi Bailey-Aloi April 7, 2011	AA03772-AA03775
16	115.	Declaration of Herbert Duzant's Into of Tony Tafuna April 18, 2011	
16	116.	Declaration of Terry Williams April 10, 2011	
16	117.	Declaration of Tim Williams	
16	118.	April 10, 2011 Declaration of Mele Maveni Vakapu April 5, 2011	una
16	119.	Declaration of Priscilla Endemann April 6, 2011	AA03794-AA03797
16	120.	Declaration of Mapa Puloka January 24, 2011	AA03798-AA03802
16	121.	Declaration of Limu Havea January 24, 2011	AA03803-AA03812
16	122.	Declaration of Sione Pohahau January 22, 2011	AA03813-AA03815
16	123.	Declaration of Tavake Peaua January 21, 2011	AA03816-AA03821
16	124.	Declaration of Totoa Pohahau January 23, 2011	AA03822-AA03844

<u>VOLUME</u>		<u>DOCUMENT</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
16	125.	Declaration of Vuki Mafileo February 11, 2011	AA03845-AA03859
16	126.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cor Case No. CR98-0516 State's Exhib (Photographs) with List	urt oits 4B-4L
16	127.	Declaration of Crystal Calderon April 18, 2011	AA03873-AA03878
16	128.	Declaration of Laura Lui April 7, 2011	AA03879-AA03882
16	129.	Declaration of Le'o Kinkini-Tongi April 5, 2011	AA03883-AA03886
16	130.	Declaration of Sela Vanisi-DeBruce April 7, 2011	
16	131.	Declaration of Vainga Kinikini April 12, 2011	AA03903-AA03906
16	132.	Declaration of David Hales April 10, 2011	AA03907-AA03910
16	133.	Omitted	AA03911
16	134.	Omitted	AA03912
16	135.	State of Nevada vs. Siaosi Vanisi, S Time Record Michael R. Specchio January 1998-July 1999	
16	136.	Correspondence to Stephen Gregory from Edward J. Lynn, M.D. July 8, 1999	

<u>VOLUME</u>		<u>DOCUMENT</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
16	137.	Memorandum to Vanisi File from M April 27, 1998	
16	138.	Omitted	AA03941
16	139.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cor Case No. CR98-0516 Motion to Limit Victim Impact Stat July 15, 1998	urt ements
16	140.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cor Case No. CR98-0516 Defendant's Offered Instruction A, September 24, 1999	urt B, & C, Refused
16	141.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cor Case No. CR98-0516 Order November 25, 1998	urt
16	142.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et County Second Judicial District Cor Case No. CR98-0516 Order August 4, 1998	urt
16	143.	Memorandum to Vanisi File From Mike Specchio July 31, 1998	AA03966-AA03968
16	144.	Correspondence to Michael R. Spece from Michael Pescetta October 6 1998	

<u>VOLUME</u>		DOCUMENT	PAGE
16	145.	Correspondence to Michael Pescetta from Michael R. Specchio October 9, 1998	
16	146.	Index of and 3 DVD's containing vid footage of Siaosi Vanisi in custody on various dates	
16-17	147.	Various Memorandum to and from Michael R. Specchio 1998-1999	.AA03976-AA04045
17	148.	Memorandum to Vanisi file Crystal-Laura from MRS April 20, 1998	.AA04046-AA04048
17	149.	Declaration of Steven Kelly April 6, 2011	Δ Δ 0 4 0 4 9 - Δ Δ 0 4 0 5 1
17	150.	Declaration of Scott Thomas April 6, 2011	
17	151.	Declaration of Josh Iveson April 6, 2011	.AA04055-AA04057
17	152.	Declaration of Luisa Finau April 7, 2011	.AA04058-AA04063
17	153.	Declaration of Leanna Morris April 7, 2011	.AA04064-AA04068
17	154.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a County Second Judicial District Cou Case No. CR98-0516 State Exhibit 45 - Sullivan Family V	rt ⁷ ideo
17	155.	Declaration of Maile (Miles) Kinikin April 7, 2011	

<u>VOLUME</u>		DOCUMENT	PAGE
17	156.	Declaration of Nancy Chiladez April 11, 2011	AA04077-AA04079
17	157.	University Police Services Web Police George D. Sullivan http://www.unr.edu/police/sullivalast modified February 8, 2010	n.html#content
17	158.	Motion in Limine to Exclude Grue November 25, 1998	
17-18	159.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, County Second Judicial District C Case No. CR98-0516 Reporter's Transcript Trial Volume 1 January 11, 1999	Court
18-19	160.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, County Second Judicial District C Case No. CR98-0516 Reporters Transcript Trial Volume 2 January 12, 1999	Court
19-20	161.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, County Second Judicial District C Case No. CR98-0516 Reporter's Transcript Trial Volume 3 January 13, 1999	Court
20	162.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, County Second Judicial District C Case No. CR98-0516 Juror Chart-Peremptory Sheet	Court

VOLUME		<u>DOCUMENT</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
20	163.	Neuropsychological and Psychological Evaluation of Siaosi Vanisi Dr. Jonathan Mack April 18, 2011	A04789-AA04859
20	164.	Independent Medical Examination in the Field of Psychiatry, Dr. Siale 'Alo Folia April 18, 2011	ki
20-21	165.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98-0516 Juror Questionnaires September 10, 1999	
21	166.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Case No. CR98-0516 Minutes September 21, 1999	et Court
21	167.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Case No. CR98-0516 Motion for Individual Voir Dire of Pros June 8, 1998	et Court pective Jurors
21	168.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial Distric Case No. CR98-0516 Motion for Individual Sequestered Voir April 15, 1999	et Court · Dire
21	169.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Case No. CR98-0516 Order December 16, 1998	et Court

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
21	170.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Concase No. CR98-0516 Motion for Additional Peremptory Challen, June 1, 1998	ges
21	171.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Concase No. CR98-0516 Motion to Renew Request for Additional Peremptory Challenges April 13, 1999	
21	172.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Concase No. CR98-0516 Motion for Change of Venue July 15, 1998	
21	173.	Declaration of Herbert Duzant's Interview with Tongan Solicitor General, 'Aminiasi K April 17, 2011	Kefu
21-22	174.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et al., Washoe County Second Judicial District Co Case No. CR98-0516 Defendant's Proposed Juror Questionnaire December 14, 1998	<u>,</u>
22	175.	Siaosi Vanisi vs. The State of Nevada, Nevada Supreme Court Case No. 50607 Appeal from Denial of Post-Conviction Petrorer Denying Rehearing June 22, 2010	

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	PAGE
22	176.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et Washoe County Second Judicial Di Case No. CR98-0516 Motion for Jury Questionnaire (Request for Submission) August 12, 1999	strict Court
22	177.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et Washoe County Second Judicial Di Case No. CR98-0516 Order September 10, 1999	strict Court
22	178.	Declaration of Thomas Qualls April 15, 2011	AA05292-AA05293
22	179.	Declaration of Walter Fey April 18, 2011	AA05294-AA05296
22	180.	Declaration of Stephen Gregory April 17, 2011	AA05297-AA05299
22	181.	Declaration of Jeremy Bosler April 17, 2011	AA05300-AA05303
22	182.	Birth Certificates for the children of Luisa Tafuna Various dates	
22	183.	San Bruno Police Department Crin Report No. 89-0030 February 7, 1989	
22	184.	Manhattan Beach Police Departme Report Dr. # 95-6108 November 4, 1995	ent Police

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
22	185.	Manhattan Beach Police Departmen Crime Report August 23 1997	
22	186.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial Dist Case No. CR98-0516 Notice of Intent to Seek Death Penal February 26, 1998	trict Court lty
22	187.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial Dist Case No. CR98-0516 Judgment November 22, 1999	trict Court
22	188.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial Dist Case No. CR98-0516 Notice of Appeal November 30, 1999	trict Court
22	189.	State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a Washoe County Second Judicial Dist Case No. CR98P-0516 Notice of Appeal to Supreme Court (Death Penalty Case) November 28, 2007	trict Court
22	190.	Correspondence to The Honorable Co Steinheimer from Richard W. Lewis, October 10, 1998	, Ph.D.

VOLUME	<u>!</u>	DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
22	191.	People of the State of California v. Sitives Finau Tafuna, Alameda Superior Court Hayward Case No. 384080-7 (Includes police reports and Alameda Cou Public Defender documents) May 4, 2005	unty
22	192.	Cronin House documents concerning Sitiveni Tafuna May 5, 2008AA0	5356-AA05366
22	193.	People of the State of California v. Sitives Finau Tafuna, Alameda Superior Court Hayward Case No. 404252 Various court documents and related court matter documents August 17, 2007	
22	194.	Washoe County Public Defender Investig Re: <u>State of Nevada v. Siaosi Vanisi, et a</u> Washoe County Second Judicial District Court Case No. CR98P-0516 	<u>l.,</u>
22	195.	Declaration of Herbert Duzant's Interview Juror Richard Tower April 18, 2011AA0	
22	196.	Declaration of Herbert Duzant's Interview Juror Nettie Horner April 18, 2011	
22	197.	Declaration of Herbert Duzant's Interview Juror Bonnie James April 18, 2011	

VOLUME	DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
22	198. Declaration of Herbert Duzant's Int Juror Robert Buck April 18, 2011	
25	Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Dismissing Petition for Writ of Habeas C April 10, 2014	orpus
22	Motion to Dismiss Petition for Writ of Ha Corpus (Post-Conviction) July 15, 2011	
25-26	Notice of Entry of Order April 25, 2014	AA06246-AA06253
26	Notice of Appeal May 23, 2014	AA06254-AA06256
25	Objections to Proposed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment Dismi Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus March 31, 2014	J
22-23	Opposition to Motion to Dismiss September 30, 2011	AA05483-AA05558
24	Order March 21, 2012	AA05943-AA05945
23	Petitioner's Exhibits in Support of Oppos To Motion to Dismiss (list) September 30, 2011	
	EXHIBIT	
23	101. Michael D. Rippo v. E.K. McDaniel, Clark County Eighth Judicial Distr Case No. C106784	

VOLUME		DOCUMENT	PAGE
		Reporter's Transcript of Hearing September 22, 2008	.AA05564-AA05581
23	102.	In the Matter of the Review of Issue Concerning Representation of Indig Criminal and Juvenile Delinquency Supreme Court Case No. 411 October 16, 2008	ent Defendants in Cases, Nevada
23	103.	In the Matter of the Review of the Is Concerning Representation of Indig Criminal and Juvenile Delinquency Supreme Court ADKT No. 411 January 4, 2008	ent Defendants in Cases, Nevada
23	104.	Farmer v. Director, Nevada Dept. of No. 18052 Order Dismissing Appeal March 31, 1988	
23	105.	<u>Farmer v. State</u> , No. 22562 Order Dismissing Appeal February 20, 1992	.AA05661-AA05663
23	106.	<u>Farmer v. State</u> , No. 29120 Order Dismissing Appeal November 20, 1997	.AA05664-AA05669
23	107.	<u>Feazell v. State</u> , No. 37789 Order Affirming in Part and Vacatin November 14, 2002	
23	108.	Hankins v. State, No. 20780 Order of Remand April 24, 1990	.AA05680-AA05683

VOLUME	! !	DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
23	109.	Hardison v. State, No. 24195 Order of Remand May 24, 1994	AA05684-AA05689
23	110.	Hill v. State, No. 18253 Order Dismissing Appeal June 29, 1987	AA05690-AA05700
23	111.	Jones v. State, No. 24497 Order Dismissing Appeal August 28, 1996	AA05701-AA05704
23	112.	Jones v. McDaniel, et al., No. 3909 Order of Affirmance December 19, 2002	
23	113.	Milligan v. State, No. 21504 Order Dismissing Appeal June 17, 1991	AA05721-AA05723
23	114.	Milligan v. Warden, No. 37845 Order of Affirmance July 24, 2002	AA05724-AA05743
23-24	115.	Moran v. State, No. 28188 Order Dismissing Appeal March 21, 1996	AA05744-AA05761
24	116.	Neuschafer v. Warden, No. 18371 Order Dismissing Appeal August 19, 1987	AA05762-AA05772
24	117.	Nevius v. Sumner (Nevius I), Nos. Order Dismissing Appeal and Deny February 19, 1986	ying Petition

<u>VOLUME</u>		<u>DOCUMENT</u>	PAGE
24	118.	Nevius v. Warden (Nevius II), Nos. Order Dismissing Appeal and Deny Writ of Habeas Corpus October 9, 1996	ing Petition for
		October 9, 1990	AA05116 AA05191
24	119.	Nevius v. Warden (Nevius III), Nos. 29027, 29028 Order Denying R July 17, 1998	_
24	120.	Nevius v. McDaniel, D. Nev. No. CV-N-96-785-HDM-(RAM) Response to Nevius' Supplemental I October 18, 1999.	
24	121. <u>.</u>	O'Neill v. State, No. 39143 Order of Reversal and Remand December 18, 2002	.AA05805-AA05811
24	122.	Rider v. State, No. 20925 Order April 30, 1990	.AA05812-AA05815
24	123.	Riley v. State, No. 33750 Order Dismissing Appeal November 19, 1999	AA05816-05820
24	124.	Rogers v. Warden, No. 22858 Order Dismissing Appeal May 28, 1993 Amended Order Dismissing Appeal June 4, 1993	.AA05821-AA05825
24	125.	Rogers v. Warden, No. 36137 Order of Affirmance May 13, 2002	.AA05826-AA05833

VOLUME		<u>DOCUMENT</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
24	126.	Sechrest v. State, No 29170 Order Dismissing Appeal November 20, 1997	AA05834-AA05838
24	127.	Smith v. State, No. 20959 Order of Remand September 14, 1990	AA05839-AA05842
24	128.	Stevens v. State, No. 24138 Order of Remand July 8, 1994	AA05843-AA05850
24	129.	Wade v. State, No. 37467 Order of Affirmance October 11, 2001	AA05851-AA05856
24	130.	Williams v. State, No. 20732 Order Dismissing Appeal July 18, 1990	AA05857-AA05860
24	131.	Williams v. Warden, No. 29084 Order Dismissing Appeal August 29, 1997	AA05861-AA05865
24	132.	<u>Ybarra v. Director</u> , Nevada State Pr No. 19705 Order Dismissing Appeal June 29, 1989	l
24	133.	Ybarra v. Warden, No. 43981 Order Affirming in Part Reversing in Part, and Remanding November 28, 2005	AA05870-AA05881
24	134.	Ybarra v. Warden, No. 43981 Order Denying Rehearing February 2, 2006	AA05882-AA05887

<u>VOLUME</u>	DOCUMENT	<u>PAGE</u>
1	Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-C May 4, 2011	
22	Reply to Answer to Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) August 29, 2011	AA05479-AA05482
25	Response to "Objections to Proposed Finding of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Judgment Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus" April 7, 2014	Dismissing
24	Response to Opposition to Motion to Dismi Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) October 7, 2011	
24	Transcript of Proceedings Hearing-Oral Arguments February 23, 2012	AA05892-AA05942
24-25	Transcript of Proceedings Petition for Post Conviction (Day One) December 5, 2013	AA05946-AA06064
	EXHIBITS Admitted December 5, 2013	
25	199. Letter from Aminiask Kefu November 15, 2011	AA06065-AA06067
25	201. Billing Records-Thomas Qualls, Esq. Various Dates	AA06068-AA06089
25	214. Memorandum to File from MP March 22, 2002	AA06090-AA06098

<u>VOLUME</u>		DOCUMENT	PAGE
25	215.	Client Background Info Summary	AA06099-AA06112
25	216.	Investigation-Interview Outline	AA06113-AA06118
25	217.	Table of Contents "Mitigating Circumstances"	AA06119-AA06122
25	218.	Publication "Defense Resources in Capital Cases"	AA06123-AA06132
25	219.	Communication between Center for Assistance and Marc Picker, Esq. Undated	_
25	220.	Communication between Marc Pick and Roseann M. Schaye March 12, 2012	
25	Petit	script of Proceedings ion for Post Conviction (Day Two) mber 6, 2013	AA06139-AA06219
		IBITS itted December 6, 2013	
25	200.	Declaration of Scott Edwards, Esq. November 8, 2013	
25	224.	Letter to Scott Edwards, Esq. From Michael Pescetta, Esq. January 30, 2003	
25	Decis	script of Proceedings sion (Telephonic) ch 4, 2014	AA06223-AA06230

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that this document was filed electronically with the Nevada Supreme Court on the 7th day of January, 2015. Electronic Service of the foregoing Appellant's Appendix shall be made in accordance with the Master Service List as follows:

Terrence P. McCarthy Washoe County District Attorney tmccarth@da.washoecounty.us

> Felicia Darensbourg An employee of the Federal Public Defender's Office

Defendant having been found guilty of the crimes of COUNT(S) 1 and 4 - BURGLARY (Category B Felony), in violation of NRS 205.060, COUNT 2 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony), NRS 200.310, 200.320, 193.165, COUNT 3 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony), NRS 200.380, 193.165, COUNT 5 - FIRST DEGREE ARSON (Category B Felony), NRS 205.010, COUNT 6 - ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony), NRS 193.330, 193.165, 200.380, COUNT 7 - FIRST DEGREE MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category A Felony), NRS 193.165, 200.010, 200.030; thereafter, on the 1st day of May, 2006, the Defendant was present in court for sentencing with his counsel, DAVID M. SCHIECK and ALZORA B. JACKSON, Special Deputy Public Defenders, and good cause appearing.

THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said offenses and, in addition to the \$25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, \$150.00 DNA Analysis Fee including testing to determine genetic markers, and \$130.00 Restitution, the Defendant is SENTENCED to the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) as follows: AS TO' COUNT 1 - TO A MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS; AS TO COUNT 2 - TO A MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY (180) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTY (60) MONTHS, plus an EQUAL and CONSECUTIVE term of ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY (180) MONTHS MAXIMUM and of SIXTY (60) MONTHS MINIMUM for the Use of a Deadly Weapon, COUNT 2 to run CONCURRENT WITH COUNT 1; AS TO COUNT 3 - TO A MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-SIX (156) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of THIRTY-FIVE (35) MONTHS, plus an EQUAL and CONSECUTIVE term of ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-SIX (156) MONTHS

S:\Forms\JOC-Jury 1 Cl/5/11/2006

MAXIMUM and THIRTY-FIVE (35) MONTHS MINIMUM, for the Use of a Deadly Weapon, COUNT 3 to run CONCURRENT with COUNT 2; AS TO COUNT 4 - TO A MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS, COUNT 4 to run CONSECUTIVE to COUNT 3; AS TO COUNT 5 - TO A MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY (180) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS, COUNT 5 to run CONSECUTIVE to COUNT 3; AS TO COUNT 6 - TO A MAXIMUM of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS, plus an EQUAL and CONSECUTIVE term of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS MAXIMUM and FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS MINIMUM, COUNT 6 to run CONSECUTIVE to COUNT 3; COUNT 7 - LIFE WITHOUT POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE, plus an EQUAL and CONSECUTIVE term of LIFE WITHOUT POSSIBILITY OF PAROLE, for the Use of a Deadly Weapon, COUNT 7 to run CONSECUTIVE to COUNT 3; with SIX HUNDRED EIGHTEEN (618) DAYS credit for time served.

DATED this 18th day of May, 2006.

JENNIFER P. TOGLIATT

S:\Forms\JOC-Jury 1 Ct/5/11/2006

ξl

;;i

عابہے نمیر	
l	VER
2	FILED IN COURT FEB 1 5 2006 3:47Pm
3	FEB 1 5 2006 3:47Pm
4	By apporth in
5	DISTRICT COUR PAUL CASTLE SR DEPUTY
6	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7	THE STATE OF NEVADA,
8	Plaintiff, CASE NO: C204775
9	-vs- { DEPT NO: IX
10	JAMES A. SCHOLL,
11	Defendant.
12	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
13	<u>VERDICT</u>
14	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JAMES A. SCHOLL, as
15	follows:
16	COUNT 1 - BURGLARY
17	(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
18	Guilty of BURGLARY
19	☐ Not Guilty
20	We the investigated the state of the state o
21 22	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JAMES A. SCHOLL, as follows:
23	
- 24	COUNT 2 - FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
25	(please check the appropriate box, select only one) Guilty of FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING WITH USE OF A DEADLY
26	WEAPON WEAPON
27	☐ Guilty of FIRST DEGREE KIDNAPPING
28	□ Not Guilty

SVanisi2JDC05812

1	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JAMES A. SCHOLL, as
2	follows:
3	COUNT 3 - ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
4	(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
5	Guilty of ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
6	☐ Guilty of ROBBERY
7	□ Not Guilty
8	
9	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JAMES A. SCHOLL, as
10	follows:
11	COUNT 4 - BURGLARY
12	(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
13	Guilty of BURGLARY
14	□ Not Guilty
15	
16	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JAMES A. SCHOLL, as
17	follows:
18	COUNT 5 - FIRST DEGREE ARSON
19	(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
20	Guilty of FIRST DEGREE ARSON
21	☐ Not Guilty
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	
- 1	

,	
1	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JAMES A. SCHOLL, as
2	follows:
3	COUNT 6 – ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
4	(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
5	Guilty of ATTEMPT ROBBERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
6	☐ Guilty of ATTEMPT ROBBERY
7	☐ Not Guilty
8	
9	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JAMES A. SCHOLL, as
10	follows:
11	COUNT 7 - MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
12	(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
13	Guilty of First Degree Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon
14	☐ Guilty of First Degree Murder
15	☐ Guilty of Second Degree Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon
16	☐ Guilty of Second Degree Murder
17	□ Not Guilty
18	
19	DATED this 15 day of February, 2006
20	
21	
22	FOREPERSON
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	
į	

1	VER	
2		FILED IN OPEN COURT
3		DEC 1 6 2005
4		SKIRLEY B. PARRAGUIRRE, CLERK BY <u>Krusta M. Brow</u>
5		KRISTEN M. BROWN DEPUTY
6	DIS CLARK	STRICT COURT COUNTY, NEVADA
7	33.242	COONTY, NEVADA
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,)
9	Plaintiff,	Case No. C193182
10	-vs-)
11		Dept No. XVIII
12	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD	· ·
13	Defendant.	{
		{
14	SPEC	HALVERDICT
15	(Mitigal	ating Circumstances)
16		•
17	We, the Jury in the above entitle	ed case, having found the Defendant, GLENFORE
18	ANTHONY BUDD, Guilty of COUNT	I I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Dajor
10	Jones, victim), COUNT 2 - MURDER	OF THE FIRST PROPERTY

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Dajon Jones, victim), COUNT 2 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Derrick Jones, victim), and COUNT 3 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Jason Moore, victim), designate that the mitigating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked or written in below have been established.

The Defendant has no significant history of prior criminal activity.

The murder was committed while the Defendant was under the influence of extreme mental or emotional disturbance.

1	The youth of the defendant at the time of the crime.
2	
3	The Defendant's diminished intelligence.
4	
5	The impact of the defendant's execution on his family members, including his
6	mother, grandmother, brother and sisters Shermaine and Angel.
7	
8	The impact of the defendant's execution on his other family members, friends
9	and loved ones.
10	:
11	Any other mitigating circumstances.
12	
13	The apology of the defendant
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22 23	DATES LAND
24	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 16 day of December, 2005.
25	12.11111
26	FOREBERT / I dre
27	I OKEL EKSON
28	
40	

<u>a</u> n										
и Ь.]	VER								
i 2J	2	FILED IN OPEN COURT								
2JDC(3	DEC 1 6 2005 SHIFLEY, B. PARRAGUIRRE, CLERK								
.058	4	BY Bustin M. Brown								
₩	5	KRISTEN M. BROWN DEPUTY								
	6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA								
	7									
	8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,								
	9	Plaintiff, Case No. C93182								
	10	-vs- Dept No. XVIII								
	11	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD,								
	12 13	Defendant.								
	14	}								
	15	SPECIAL VERDICT								
	16	(Aggravating Circumstance)								
	17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, GLENFORD								
	18	. WITHOUT BUDD, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DECREE OF								
	19	WILLIAM COUNT 2 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DECREE (Decision of the country)								
	20	the following aggravating circumstance has been established beyond a reasonable doubt								
	21									
	22	The interest was committed by a person who has, in the immediate property								
	23	or more than one offense of murder in the first or second decree								
2	24	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15 day of December, 2005.								
DEC 16 2005	25 ED 26 ED 27 ED 28									
冠	B ₂₈									

	VER FILE 16 2005 COURT			
4	CURDIES CONTRACTOR OF THE			
3	B! Muon re herr			
4	I SEPUTY			
5	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA			
7	T i			
8	O NEVADA,			
9	Case No. C193182			
10	Dept No. XVIII			
11	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD,			
12	Defendant,			
13	PENALTY UNDON			
14	PENALTY VERDICT - COUNT I (Dajon Jones, victim) We, the lury in the characteristics			
15	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD. Guilly of COUNTY to a second state of the second stat			
16	ANTHONY BUDD, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Dajon Jones, victim), and baying found the state of the stat			
17	Jones, victim), and having found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances			
18	outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,			
19	A definite term of 100 years in			
20	A definite term of 100 years imprisonment, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 40 years has been served.			
21	Life imprisonment, with eligibility for parole beginning when			
22	a minimum of 40 years has been served.			
23	Life imprisonment without the possibility of parole.			
24	Death.			
25	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of December, 2005			
26 73	Cachel ///			
RECENTED	FOREPERSON			
WE!				
٠				

;	VER					
2	FILED !!? OPEN COURT					
3	— <u>DEC 16 2005</u>					
4	BY PARAGUIRRE, CLERK					
5	DISTRICT COURT OF THE PROWN PASSELLEY					
6	CEAR COUNTY, NEVADA					
7	THE STATE OF NEVADA,					
8	Plaintiff)					
9	-vs-					
10	Dept No. XVIII					
11	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD,					
12	Defendant.					
13	PENALTY VERDICE COLUMN					
14	PENALTY VERDICT - COUNT 2 (Derrick Jones, victim) We, the Jury in the above artists is					
15	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD, Guilty of COUNTY 2. ANTHONY					
16	ANTHONY BUDD, Guilty of COUNT 2 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Derrick					
17	Jones, victim), and having found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating circumstances					
18	outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,					
19	A definite term of 100 years in					
20	A definite term of 100 years imprisonment, with eligibility for parole					
21	beginning when a minimum of 40 years has been served. Life imprisonment with eligibilities.					
22	Life imprisonment, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 40 years has been served.					
23	Life imprisonment without the possibility of parole.					
24	Death.					
25	- , _ th-					
26	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 16 day of December, 2005					
SHE SENED	FOREPERSON					
22						
ä						

ç,

1	VER FILED II! COEN COURT			
2				
3	<i>n.</i> -			
4	MISTEN M. BROWN CEPUTY			
5	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA			
6	TO SHE TADA			
7	THE STATE OF NEVADA,			
8	Plaintiff, Case No. C193182			
9	-vs-			
10	1			
11	GLENFORD ANTHONY BUDD,			
12	Defendant.			
13	PENALTY VERDICT - COUNT 3 (Jason Moore, victim)			
14	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, GLENFORD			
15	ANTHONY BUDD, Guilty of COUNT 3 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Jason			
16	Moore, victim), and having found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances			
17	outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,			
18	of oncumstances impose a sentence of,			
19	A definite term of 100 years immain			
20	A definite term of 100 years imprisonment, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 40 years has been served.			
21	Life imprisonment with eligibilities.			
22	Life imprisonment, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of 40 years has been served.			
23				
24	Life imprisonment without the possibility of parole. Death.			
25	DATED			
2 6	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of December, 2005			
26 27 28	FOREPERSON			
28 ∥				
j				

		•				
1	1 VER					
2	2					
3	3					
4	4					
5	li .		•			
6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEV	ADA				
7	7					
8	The state of the s					
9	i iamuri,					
10		Case No.	C148936			
11)	Dept. No.	XI			
12	1					
13	Sciondark.					
14)					
15 16	VERDICT	WOODS)				
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD					
18	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE F	IRST DEGRE	E WITH USE OF A			
19	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the mitigating circum	nstance or circu	imstances which have			
20	been checked below have been established.		was a second transfer of the second transfer			
21	The Defendant has no significant history of	prior criminal	activity.			
22						
23	the act.					
24	- 110 2010 main was an accomplice in a murc	ler committed l	by another person and			
25	his participation in the murder was relatively minor.					
26	viii) viitot tiitalgating cheutitstances.					
27			-			
28						
ļ						

l
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14 15 16 17 18 19
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
K

l	VER			
2	11-15-00 5-30 Mi			
3				
4	Japa Drown			
5	DISTRICT COURT			
6	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA			
7				
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,			
9	Plaintiff,			
10	-VS- Case No. C148936 RICHARD FDWARD POWELL Dept. No. XI			
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Dept. No. XI			
13				
14	Defendant.			
15				
16	SPECIAL VERDICT (COUNT IV - JERMAINE M. WOODS)			
17				
18	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A			
19	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances which have			
20	been checked below have been established beyond a reasonable doubt.			
21	1. The murder was committed while the person was engaged in			
22	the commission of or an attempt to commit any Burglary.			
23	2. The murder was committed by a person who			
24	knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one			
25	person by means of a weapon, device or course of action			
26	which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more			
27	than one person.			
28	<i>///</i>			

<u>t · </u>	3.	The murde	r was	committed	to	avoid	ог	prevent	a
	lawful	arrest.							

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this __15 day of November, 2000.

FOREPERSON

1	VER					
2						
3						
4						
5						
6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA					
7						
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,					
9	Plaintiff,					
10	-vs- Case No. C148936					
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL) Dept. No. XI					
12	}					
13	Defendant.					
14						
15	SPECIAL VERDICT					
16	(COUNT I - SAMANTHA LATRELLE SCOTTI)					
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD					
18 19	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A					
20	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the mitigating circumstance or circumstances which have					
21	been checked below have been established.					
22	The Defendant has no significant history of prior criminal activity.					
23	The victim was a participant in the Defendant's criminal conduct or consented to					
24	the act.					
25	The Defendant was an accomplice in a murder committed by another person and					
26	his participation in the murder was relatively minor. Any other mitigating giranmataness					
27	Any other mitigating circumstances.					
28						

i	
2	
3	
4	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of November, 2000.
5	- 1
6	-1(ir) \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \
7	FOREPERSON
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
26 27 28	
28 	
H	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

l	VER					
2						
3	11-15-00 5,30 FM					
4	The Blence					
5	The hallow					
6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA					
7	, · = · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,					
9	Plaintiff, •					
10	-vs- Case No. C148936					
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Bept. No. XI					
12	}					
13	Defendant.					
14						
15	SPECIAL					
16	V E R D I C T (COUNT I - SAMANTHA LATRELLE SCOTTI)					
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD					
18	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A					
19	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances which have					
20	been checked below have been established beyond a reasonable doubt.					
21	1. The murder was committed while the person was engaged in					
22	the commission of or an attempt to commit any Burglary.					
23	2. The murder was committed by a person who					
24	knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one					
25	person by means of a weapon, device or course of action					
26	which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more					
27	than one person.					
28						
ľ						

	ì
	2
	3
4	1
3	5
6	5
7	7
8	3
9	,
10	,
11	
12	:
13	H
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

 3.	The r	nurder	was	committed	to	avoid	or	prevent	a
lawful								•	

4. The murder involved torture or the mutilation of the victim.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15 day of November, 2000.

FOREPERSON

1	VER							
2								
3								
4								
5								
6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA							
7								
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,							
9	Plaintiff,							
10	-vs- Case No. C148936							
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Dept. No. XI							
12	}							
13	Defendant.							
14	<u> </u>							
15	SPECIAL VERDICT							
16 17	(COUNT II - LISA RENEE BOYER)							
18	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD							
19	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A							
20	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the mitigating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been established.							
21								
22	The Defendant has no significant history of prior criminal activity.							
23	The victim was a participant in the Defendant's criminal conduct or consented to the act.							
24								
25	The Defendant was an accomplice in a murder committed by another person and his participation in the murder was relatively minor.							
26	Any other mitigating circumstances.							
27	——————————————————————————————————————							
28								
H								

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	Ï
13	
14	
15	ı
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	1
27	
28	

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15 day of November, 2000.

FOREPERSON

1	VER
2	11-15-00 5,30 FM
3	11-15-00 5,30 PM
4	fige li read
5	DISTRICT COURT
6	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7	THE CENTS OF A STATE O
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,
10	Plaintiff,
11	-vs- RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Case No. C148936 Dept. No. XI
12	ACTIVITY OF THE STATE OF THE ST
13	Defendant.
14	
15	SPECIAL VERDICT
16	V E R D I C T (COUNT II - LISA RENEE BOYER)
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD
18	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A
19	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances which have
20	been checked below have been established beyond a reasonable doubt.
21	1. The murder was committed while the person was engaged in
22	the commission of or an attempt to commit any Burglary.
23 24	2. The murder was committed by a person who
25	knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one
26	person by means of a weapon, device or course of action
27	which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more
28	than one person.
Ì	

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	ı
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	ŀ
23	ļ
24	
25	
26	ĺ
27	
28	

 3.	The murder	was	committed	to	avoid	or	prevent	а
lawful	arrest.							

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this _____ day of November, 2000.

FOREPERSON FOREPERSON

l	VER		
2			
3			
4			
5			
6	DISTRICT (CLARK COUNT	COURT Y, NEVADA	
7		, , = , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,)	
9	Plaintiff, •))	
10	-vs-) Case No.	C148936
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL	Dept. No.	XI
12)	
13	Defendant.		
14			
15	SPECI VERD	AL	
16	(COUNT III - STEVEN LA	(WRENCE WALKER)	
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case	, having found the De	efendant, RICHARD
18	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF	THE FIRST DEGRE	E WITH USE OF A
19	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the mitigatin	g circumstance or circu	mstances which have
	been checked below have been established.		
21	The Defendant has no significant hi		
22	The victim was a participant in the I	Defendant's criminal co	nduct or consented to
23	the act.		
24	The Defendant was an accomplice in		y another person and
25	his participation in the murder was		
26	Any other mitigating circumstances	i.	
27 28			-
40			
- 4	•		

ì	
2)
3	;
4	ļ
5	;
6	
66 77 88 9 10 11 12 13	,
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	ţ
	- 11
16 17	
17 18	
19	
20	
21	H
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	
	l

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this _____ day of November, 2000.

FOREPERSON

l	VER
2	11-15-00 5:00
3	11-15-00 5:50 1'Al
4	- Jage Brau
5	\mathscr{S}
6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7	
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9	Plaintiff, \(\)
10	-vs- Case No. C148936
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Dept. No. XI
12	
13	Defendant.
14	<u> </u>
15	SPECIAL VERDICT
16	(COUNT III - STEVEN LAWRENCE WALKER)
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD
18	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A
19	DEADLY WEAPON, designate that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances which have
	been checked below have been established beyond a reasonable doubt.
21	1. The murder was committed while the person was engaged in
22	the commission of or an attempt to commit any Burglary.
23	2. The murder was committed by a person who
24	knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one
25	person by means of a weapon, device or course of action
26	which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more
27	than one person.
28	
ļ	

The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a 3. lawful arrest.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this _____ day of November, 2000.

i	VER
2	
3	11-15-00 5:20 011
4	0,00 / 7/1
5	Topic Nilaic
6	
7	
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9	Plaintiff,
10) Case No. C148936
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Dept. No. XI
12	}
13	Defendant.
14	<u> </u>
15	V E R D I C T (COUNT IV - JERMAINE M. WOODS)
16	C
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD
18	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A
19	DEADLY WEAPON and having found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances
20	outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,
21	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole.
22	Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole.
23	Death.
24	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15 day of November, 2000
25	
26	FOREPERSON
27	I OILLI EKSON
28	
1	

1	VER		
2	11-15-00 5:30 11		
3	11-15-00 5:30 in		
4	Age Brand		
5)		
6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA		
7			
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,		
9	Plaintiff, {		
10	-vs- Case No. C148936		
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Pept. No. XI		
12	\		
13	Defendant.		
14 15	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
16	VERDICT (COUNTI-SAMANTHA LATRELLE SCOTTI)		
17			
18	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD		
19	TOWELL, Guilly of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A		
20	DEADLY WEAPON and having found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,		
21	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Description of		
22	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole. Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole.		
23	Death.		
24	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15 day of November, 2000		
25	only of two ember, 2000		
26	tilite it		
27	FOREPERSON		
28			

	l∥VER	
	2	
	1/-15'-00 5:30 PM	
	11-15-00 5:30 PM	
	5	
ı	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA	
,	7	
;	THE STATE OF NEVADA,	
9	Plaintiff,	
10	\	
1]	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Case No. C148936 Dept. No. XI	
12		
13	Defendant.	
14		
15	VERDICT	
16	(COUNT II - LISA RENEE BOYER)	
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD	`
18	MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH HER OF	
19	WEAFON and having found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstance	۱ د
20	minigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of	,
21	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole.	
22	Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole.	
23	Death.	
24	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of November, 2000	
25	-21.00	
26	FOREPERSON	,
27	- OKEI EKSON	
28		
11		

1	VER
1	11-15-00 5:30 PM
3	
4	Juge Braun
5	
6	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
7	
8)
9	rantitit,
10	Case No. C148936
11	RICHARD EDWARD POWELL Dept. No. XI
12	\
13	Defendant.
14	}
15 16	V E R D I C T (COUNT III - STEVEN LAWRENCE WALKER)
17	
18	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RICHARD EDWARD POWELL. Guilty of MURDER OF THE EXPERT THE PROPERTY.
19	EDWARD POWELL, Guilty of MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON and having found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances
20	outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,
21	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole.
22	Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole.
23	Death.
24	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15 day of November, 2000
25	day of November, 2000
26	East Ill
27	FOREPERSON
28	
İ	

	RECEIVED.
	JUL 1 0 1996
	VER Federal Dublic Dubl
:	
3	
4	JUN 1 4 1996 13
5	Loretta Bowinan, Glerk
6	DISTRICT COURY (IN hit to to)
7	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA Deputy
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,
9	}
10	Plaintiff, {
11	Case No. C121817
12	PATRICK HENRY RANDLE Dept. No. XV Docket L
13	
14	Defendant.
15	
16	VERDICT
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, PATRICK HENR'
3	MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE and having found that the
18	aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstance
19	impose a sentence of,
20	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole.
21	Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole.
22	Death.
23	
24	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 13th day of June, 1996
25	
26	FOREPERSON
27	
28	JUL 3 '\$6
•	

AA0154Q... 2JDC05846

l **VER** .2 MIGINAL 3 4 CANAL CLERK 5 DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 6 7 THE STATE OF NEVADA 8 9 **Plaintiff** 10 Case No. PATRICK HENRY RANDLE Dept. No. 11 12 13 Defendant. 14 15 SPECIAL 16 VERDICT We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, PATRICK HEN 17 RANDLE, Guilty of COUNT IV - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE, designate that the aggravat 18 circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been established beyone 19 20 reasonable doubt. The murder was committed by a person under sentence of imprisonment, to-wit: Assa 21 22 With a Firearm on a Person. 23 The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felinvolving the use or threat of violence to the person of another, to-wit: Attempt Robb 24 25 in the California Superior Court in 1978, Case No. A-522872. 26 The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a fel 27 involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another, to-wit: Attempt Robb 28 With a Deadly Weapon in the California Superior Court in 1978, Case No. A-6142

The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felc involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another, to-wit: Robbery Wit!

Deadly Weapon in the California Superior Court in 1983, Case Nos. A-455882.

The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felc involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another, to-wit: Assault Wit. Firearm on Person in the California Superior Court in 1989, Case Nos. A-650532.

The murder was committed while the person was engaged in the commission of or attempt to commit any Robbery.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 150 day of June, 1996.

FOREPERSON

constitution of the second

ju 5'96

CILERK AA01543

	- ^	
۲		
		:
		. :
		. •
		•

ORIGINAL

VER DISTRICT COURT FILED IN OPEN COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEV LORETTA ROWMAN, CLERK Candulteria THE STATE OF NEVADA, Deant Plaintiff. CASE NO. C121817 9 DEPT. NO. XV PATRICK HENRY RANDLE, DOCKET 10 Defendant. 11 VERDICT 12 We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant, 13 PATRICK HENRY RANDLE, as to: 14 15 Guilty Not Guilty COUNT I: 16 ROBBERY - Calvin Johnson 17 With Use of a Deadly Weapon 18 Without Use of a Deadly Weapon 19 COUNT II: 20 ATTEMPT MURDER -Calvin Johnson -21 With Use of a Deadly Weapon 22 Without Use of a Deadly Weapon 23 BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON 24 (Lesser included offense - you may 25 choose one only) 26 27

CE31

4		
	Guilty Not Guilty	í
2	COUNT III:	
3	ATTEMPT ROBBERY - Roger Champagne	_
4	With Use of a Deadly Weapon	
5	Without Use of a Deadly Weapon	
6	COUNT IV: Roger Champagne	
7	(Choose one of the following)	
8	MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE	
9	MURDER OF THE SECOND DEGREE	_
10	With Use of a Deadly Weapon	
11	Without Use of a Deadly Weapon	
12	COUNT V:	
13	ROBBERY - Lorette Champagne	
14	With Use of a Deadly Weapon	_
15	Without Use of a Deadly Weapon	
16	DATED: This 66 day of June, 1996.	
17	A TOO	
18	FORE PERSON	<u>,</u>
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25	Benerick Co	
26	TRUE TO ACCUSE OF THE PROPERTY	
27	hn 5.100	
28	Jur. 2, 38	
	Clarica Suman	
	CLERK A A O 1 5 4 C	
·	AA01546	<u>[</u>
	_	

AA01548

1	
2	
3	
4	
,	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
26	
27	
28	

The defendant acted under duress or under the domination of another person. X Any other mitigating circumstances. (Herey)
DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of May, 1996.

FOREPERSON C.

س				
87.9 8		1		
SVanis	1	VER		
	2	MAY & 1996		
12JDC05	3	LONEITH SOLVENALL GETTA		
	4	BY Mile Vizil		
დ თ	5	Legaly /		
Ψ.	6	DISTRICT COURT		
	7	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA		
	8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,		
	9	Plaintiff,		
	10	-vs-		
	11	FERNANDO PADRON RODRIGUEZ Case No. C130763 Dept. No. VI		
	12	Docket B		
	13	Defendant.		
	14			
	15	S.D.F. C.V.		
	16	SPECIAL		
	17	VERDICT We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having for the months.		
	18	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, FERNANDO PADRON RODRIGUEZ, Guilty of COUNT II - MIRDER OF THE FIRST PROPERTY.		
	19	RODRIGUEZ, Guilty of COUNT II - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Richley Miller), designate that the aggravating circumstance are size.		
	20	that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been established beyond a reasonable doubt.		
:	21			
:	22	The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence at		
:	23	involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another, to-wit: Robbery (Florida 1989).		
:	24	The murder was committed by a record		
2	25	The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the		
2	26	involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another, to-wit: Robbery (Florida 1989).		
2	27	111		
2	28	///		
	1			

3

The murder was committed by a person who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon, device or course of action which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person.

The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape from custody.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this _____ day of May, 1996.

Jacques C Jagne

2JDC05858

AA01552

<u>22</u>

	l .		
The defendant acted under Any other mitigating circu	er duress or under the domination of another person. umstances. (Herey)		
DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of May, 1996.			
	FOREPERSON C. Segul		
	•		
·.	•		
•			
	5.19C		

Jul 5 196 CLERKAA01553 **≇**Vanisi2JDC05860

AA01554

•/	The murder was committed by a person who knowingly created a great risk of death to		
	more than one person by means of a weapon, device or course of action which would		
normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person.			
	The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape from		
	custody.		
DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of May, 1996.			
	acques C. Da one		

Jul 5 '96

AA01555

s Van			
N. J.	VER		
12JDC05	LUSEITS BOWNERS, Yaman		
Č 3	BY Just 12		
ე გ გ	_ Osputy		
ယ် 5	DISTRICT COURT		
6	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA		
7			
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,		
9	Plaintiff,		
10	-vs- Case No. C130763 Dept. No. VI		
11	FERNANDO PADRON RODRIGUEZ Docket B		
12			
13	Defendant.		
14			
15	VERDICT		
16	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, FERNANDO PADRON		
17 RODRIGUEZ, Guilty of COUNT II - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Richley Mille			
18	found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating circumstance or		
19	circumstances impose a sentence of,		
20	A definite term of 50 years, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of		
21	20 years has passed		
22	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole.		
23 Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole.			
Death.			
25	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of May, 1996		
26			
27	FOREPERSON Chapil		
28			
	AA0155 CE31		

	1	ı	
1	VER		
2			
3	FILED IN OFFICE AND A PROF		
4			
5	3: _ Lean Mckaly_	,	
6	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA		
7	THE VADA		
8	THE STATE OF NEVADA,		
9	Plaintiff, {		
10	-vs-) Case No. C130763		
11	FERNANDO PADRON RODRIGUEZ Dept. No. VI		
12	Docket B		
13	Defendant.		
14			
15			
16	<u>VERDICT</u>		
17	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the defendant FERNANDO PADRON		
18	Outly of COUNT 1 - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A DEADY AND		
19	(Drau Faccyte)		
20	DATED this day of May, 1996.		
21			
22	FOREPERSON		
3	JOREFERSON		
4	·		
5			
6			
7	\sim 1		
8		1	
		ļ	

Ω O			
SVanis	1 VER		
	2		
iąjDC05	1 MAY 7/1996 LUSZTN, GOLDSON, U.		
503	BY Right Market		
ე დ	5 Deputy		
•	DISTRICT COURT CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA		
	7		
;	THE STATE OF NEVADA		
,	Plaintiff		
16	-ve-		
1			
12	(DOCACE B		
13	Defendant.		
14	4		
15	VED DIG		
16	VERDICT We, the Jury in the above excited and the second		
17	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, FERNANDO PADRON RODRIGUEZ Guilty of COUNTY AND THE COUNTY AND THE TEXT THE PROPERTY OF TH		
18	RODRIGUEZ, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Brad Palcovic) and having found that the appravating circumstances		
19	found that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,		
20	i i		
21	A definite term of 50 years, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum of		
22	20 years has passed Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole. Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole. Death. DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of May, 1996		
23	Life in Nevada State Prison With the Possibility of Parole.		
24	Life in Nevada State Prison Without the Possibility of Parole.		
25	Death.		
26	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this day of May, 1996		
27			
28	FOREPERON Sagne		
∠8	S. L.		

1	DISTRICT COURT OF 1995 12		
2	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA DETTA BOWERAN, CLERK		
3	THE STATE OF NEVADA, BY UNCLUSTED		
4	Plaintiff, CASE NO.: C126201 Depuis		
5	VS. DEPT NO.: XV		
6	JONATHAN DANIELS, DCKT NO.: "L"		
7	Defendant.		
8	VERDICT		
9	We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant JONATHAN		
10	CORNELIUS DANIELS, as follows:		
11	COUNT I		
12	GUILTY NOT		
13	GUILTY		
14	Murder of the First Degree (June Mildred Frye)		
15	Murder of the Second Degree (June Mildred Frye)		
17	and Job find the Defendant guilty of Count 1, you must now decide		
18	was committed will follow the use of a deadly weapon. (circle		
	one).		
19 20	Builty of one of the above.		
21	SOUNT III		
	Murder of the First Degree (Nicasio Diaz)		
22	Murder of the Second Degree (Nicasio Diaz)		
23	In the event that you find the Defendant guilty of Count II, you must now decide		
24	Willious die die deadity weapon. (circle		
25	one).		
26	You may only find the Defendant guilty of one of the above.		
-	621		

2JDC05867

AA07F361

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

12

13

Vanis	
₽• 	j
JDC0	2
တ တ	3
თ თ	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11
	12
	13
	14
	15
	16
	17
	18 19
	20
	21 22
	22
	23
	24
	25
	25 26

COUNT III	GUILTY	NOT GUILTY

First Degree Kidnapping

Second Degree Kidnapping

In the event that you find the Defendant guilty of Count III, you must now decide whether the crime was committed WITH or WITHOUT the use of a deadly weapon. (circle one).

You may only find the Defendant guilty of one of the above.

COUNT IV

Burglary

COUNT V

Robbery (June Mildred Frye)

In the event that you find the Defendant guilty of Count V, you must now decide whether the crime was committed WITH or WITHOUT the use of a deadly weapon. (circle one).

COUNT VI

Robbery (Nicasio Diaz)

In the event that you find the Defendant guilty of Count VI, you must now decide whether the crime was committed WITH or WITHOUT the use of a deadly weapon. (circle one).

DATED this 27 day of October, 1995.

Michael T. Evyan

622

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

C124201

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

CASE NO. C1126201

Plaintiff,

DEPT. NO. XV

-vs-

DOCKET NO.

JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, **#**1201050

8

9

10

11

12

13

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

1

2

Defendant.

SPECIAL

VERDICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, Guilty of COUNT II - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Nicasio Diaz), designate that the aggravating 15 circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been established beyond a reasonable doubt.

> The murder was committed by a person who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon, device or course of action which would normally be hazardous to the

> > lives of more than one person.

The murder was committed while the person was engaged in the commission of or an attempt to

commit any Robbery.

The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape from custody.

548

28

AA015631

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7 8 9 10 11 12 13	
8	I
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17 18 19	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	:
26	
27	
28	
	1

<u>X</u>	The Defendant has, in the immediate proceeding,
	been convicted of more than one offense of murder
	in the first or second degree.
DATED a	t Las Vegas, Nevada, this IST day of October, 1995

Michael of Eagur FOREPERSON

649

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

CASE NO. C1126201

Plaintiff,

DEPT. NO. XV

-vs-

DOCKET NO. L

JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, **#1201050**

7

8

9

1

2

3

5

6

Defendant.

10

11 12

13

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

<u>SPECIAL</u>

VERDICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, Guilty of COUNT II - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Nicasio Diaz), designate that the mitigating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been established.

> The defendant has no significant history of prior criminal activity.

> > The murder was committed while the defendant was under the influence of extreme mental or emotional disturbance.

The defendant acted under duress or under the domination of another person.

650

The youth of the defendant at the time of the crime.

X Any other mitigating circumstances.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this ST day of October, 1995.

Bulant T Cases.

FOREPERSON

DISTRICT COURT

ł		
2	CLARK COUNTY	NEVADA C1Z6J61
3	THE STATE OF NEVADA,) CASE NOC1126201
4	Plaintiff,) DEPT. NO. XV
5	-vs-) DOCKET NO. L
6	JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, #1201050))
7	,	S FILED IN OPEN COURT
8	Defendant.	NUV 0 1 1995 18 LORETTA DOWNAN, CLERK
9		-184 (Inclu Horton)
LO	SPEC	I A L Deputy
11	VERD	ICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the 13 Defendant, JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER 14 OF THE FIRST DEGREE (June Mildred Frye), designate that the aggravating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked 15 below have been established beyond a reasonable doubt.

> The murder was committed by a person who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a weapon, device or course of action which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person.

> > The murder was committed while the person was engaged in the commission of or an attempt to commit any Robbery.

> > The murder was committed to avoid or prevent a lawful arrest or to effect an escape from custody.

> > > 643

12

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

ļ
1
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
201

The Defendant has, in the immediate proceeding, been convicted of more than one offense of murder in the first or second degree.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15+ day of October, 1995

Marked 1. Egun FOREPERSON

644

31

7

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

CASE NO. C1126201

Plaintiff,

DEPT. NO. XV

-vs-

DOCKET NO. L

JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, **#1201050**

Defendant.

SPECIAL

<u>V E R D I C T</u>

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (June Mildred Frye), designate that the mitigating circumstance or circumstances which have been checked below have been established.

> The defendant has no significant history of prior criminal activity.

> The murder was committed while the defendant was under the influence of extreme mental or emotional disturbance.

The defendant acted under duress or under the domination of another person.

645

AA01569

1
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
g
,
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

	The	youth	of	the	defendant	at	the	time	of	the
	crim	ie.								

Any other mitigating circumstances.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15th day of October, 1995.

Mutul T Engan
FOREPERSON

646

EXHIBIT B15

EXHIBIT B15

2	DISTRICT COURT
2	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA C124201
3	THE STATE OF NEVADA,) CASE NOC1126201
4	Plaintiff, DEPT. NO. XV
5	-vs-) DOCKET NO. L
6	JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, FILED IN OPEN COURT
7	uoi 0 1 1095 10
8	Defendant. LORETTA BOWERN, CLERK
9	Dapuly
10	VERDICT
11	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the
12	Defendant, JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, Guilty of COUNT II - MURDER
13	OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Nicasio Diaz) and having found that the
	aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating
15	circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,
16	Life in Nevada State Prison With the
17	Possibility of Parole.
18	Life in Nevada State Prison Without
19	the Possibility of Parole.
20	
21	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 15th day of October, 1995
22	
23	Merfood T. Evyon FOREPERSON
24	
25	
26	
27	647
28	AA01572

2JDC05878

1	DISTRICT COURT
2	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
3	THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C126201
4	Plaintiff,) DEPT. NO. XV
5	-vs-) DOCKET NO. L
6	JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS,) FILES IN CORNEL
7	NOV 0 1 1995 COURT
8	Defendant.
بو د -	- Continue of the continue of
10	
11	, marking toung the
	Defendant, JONATHAN CORNELIUS DANIELS, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER
13	OF THE FIRST DEGREE (June Mildred Frye) and having found that the
14	aggravating circumstance or circumstances outweigh any mitigating
15	circumstance or circumstances impose a sentence of,
16	Life in Nevada State Prison With the
17	Possibility of Parole.
18	Life in Nevada State Prison Without
19	the Possibility of Parole.
20	
21	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 1st day of October, 1995
22	
23	Muchael T. Eagure FOREPERSON
24	FOREPERSON
25	
26	
27	
	0.72

EXHIBIT B16

EXHIBIT B16

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

CASE NO. C108501

Plaintiff,

DEPT. NO. ΧV

DOCKET NO. L

RONALD DUCKSWORTH, JR.,

FILED IN OPEN COURT OGI 2 8 1993 19

LORETTA BOWMAN, CLERK

Deputy

Defendant.

SPECIAL

VERDICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RONALD DUCKSWORTH, JR., Guilty of COUNT II - MURDER OF FIRST (Vikki Yvett Smith), designate that DEGREE aggravating circumstance which has been checked below has been established beyond a reasonable doubt and further find that there are no mitigating circumstances sufficient to outweigh the aggravating circumstance or circumstances found.

The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another.

The murder was committed by a person who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a course of action which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person.

The murder was committed while person engaged, alone of with another, in the commission

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

17

27

28

of or an attempt to commit any Burglary, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Burglary committed.

murder was committed while a person engaged, alone or with another, in the commission or an attempt to commit any First Degree of Kidnapping, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the First Degree Kidnapping committed.

The murder was committed while a person engaged, alone or with another, in the commission of or an attempt to commit any Robbery, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was major participant in the a Robbery committed.

The	murder	was	committed	while	a	person	Was
engaç	ged, alo	ne or	with anoth	her, in	the	commiss	sion
of or	an atte	empt t	to commit a	ny Sexu	al A	ssault,	and
the p	erson ch	argeo	1:				

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Sexual Assault committed.

The murder involved torture, depravity of mind or the mutilation of the victim.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 284day of October, 1993.

FOREPERSON

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

CASE NO. C108501

Plaintiff.

DEPT. NO. XV

-vs-

DOCKET NO. L

RONALD DUCKSWORTH, JR.,

FILED IN OPEN COURT

Defendant.

LORETTA BOWMAN, CLERK

Devil

<u>SPECIAL</u>

VERDICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RONALD DUCKSWORTH, JR., Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Joseph Smith III), designate that any aggravating circumstance which has been checked below has been established beyond a reasonable doubt and further find that there are no mitigating circumstances sufficient to outweigh the aggravating circumstance or circumstances found.

The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another.

X

The murder was committed by a person who knowingly

created a great risk of death to more than one

person by means of a course of action which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one

person.

murder was committed while a person engaged, alone or with another, in the composion

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

28

of or an attempt to commit any Burglary, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Burglary committed.

murder was committed while a person engaged, alone or with another, in the commission or an attempt to commit any First Kidnapping, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the First Degree Kidnapping committed.

murder was committed while a person The engaged, alone or with another, in the commission of or an attempt to commit any Robbery, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Robbery committed.

AA01579

DISTRICT COURT 2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 3 4 THE STATE OF NEVADA, CASE NO. C108501 5 Plaintiff, DEPT. NO. XV 6 -vs-DOCKET NO. L FILED IN OPEN COURT RONALD JR. DUCKSWORTH, aka OCT 2 8 1993 19 RONALD DUCKSWORTH, JR., 8 LORETTA BOWMAN, CLERK Defendant. 9 By Cincle Horton 10 Deputy VERDICT 11 We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, RONALD JR. DUCKSWORTH, aka RONALD DUCKSWORTH, JR., 12 Guilty, impose a sentence of: 13 COUNT I - Murder of the First Degree (Joseph Smith III) 14 15 Life with the Possibility of Parole; 16 Life without the Possibility of Parole; 17 Death. 18 19 COUNT II - Murder of the First Degree (Vikki Smith) 20 Life with the Possibility of Parole; 21 Life without the Possibility of Parole; 22 Death. 23 DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 28th day of October, 1993. 24 25 Gharl W. OH FOREPERSON 26 27 28

EXHIBIT B17

EXHIBIT B17

2

3

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

23

24

25

26

27

28

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

CASE NO. C108501

Plaintiff,

DEPT. NO. XV

-vs-

DOCKET NO. L

CARL LEE MARTIN.

ACT THE THE SPER COURT

2 8 1993 19

LURETTA BOWMAN, CLERK

1011

Defendant.

SPECIAL

VERDICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, CARL LEE MARTIN, Guilty of COUNT I - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Joseph Smith III), designate that any aggravating circumstance which has been checked below has been established beyond a reasonable doubt and further find that there are no mitigating circumstances sufficient to outweigh the aggravating circumstance or circumstances found.

X

The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felony involving the use or threat of violence to the person of another.

21 ×

The murder was committed by a person who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one

person by means of a course of action which would

normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one

X

person.

The murder was committed while a person

engaged, alone or with another, in the commission AA01582

of or an attempt to commit any Burglary, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Burglary committed.

The murder was committed while a person engaged, alone or with another, in the commission of or an attempt to commit any First Degree Kidnapping, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the First Degree Kidnapping committed.

The murder was committed while a person was engaged, alone or with another, in the commission of or an attempt to commit any Robbery, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Robbery committed.

27 28

26

AA01583

ļ
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
20 21 22 23 24
23
24
25
25 26
27
20

The	murder	was	commi	tted	while	a	person	was
enga	ged, alo	ne or	with	anoth	er, i	n th	e commis	sior
of o	r an atte	empt t	o com	mit an	y Sex	ual	Assault,	and
the p	person c	harged	1:					

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Sexual Assault committed.

The murder involved torture, depravity of mind or the mutilation of the victim.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 28th day of October, 1993.

FOREPERSON

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

OEPT. NO. XV

DOCKET NO. L

CARL LEE MARTIN,

PILED IN OPEN COURT

LORETTA DOWNAN, CLERK

SPECIABY

VERDICT

VERDICT

We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the Defendant, CARL LEE MARTIN, Guilty of COUNT II - MURDER OF THE FIRST DEGREE (Vikki Yvett Smith), designate that any aggravating circumstance which has been checked below has been established beyond a reasonable doubt and further find that there are no mitigating circumstances sufficient to outweigh the aggravating circumstance or circumstances found.

The murder was committed by a person who was previously convicted of a felony involving the use

or threat of violence to the person of another.

The murder was committed by a person who knowingly created a great risk of death to more than one person by means of a course of action which would normally be hazardous to the lives of more than one person.

The murder was committed while a person was engaged, alone or with another, in the commission

2JDC05891

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

of or an attempt to commit any Burglary, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Burglary committed.

murder was committed while a person was engaged, alone or with another, in the commission of or an attempt to commit any First Degree Kidnapping, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the First Degree Kidnapping committed.

The murder was committed while a person was engaged, alone or with another, in the commission of or an attempt to commit any Robbery, and the person charged:

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the committed.

7	
2	
4	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	
1	
26 27	
28	

The	murder	was	committed	while	a	person	Was
engag	ged, alo	ne or	with anoth	ner, in	the	commis:	sior
of or	an att	empt t	to commit a	ny Sexua	al A	Assault,	and
the p	person cl	harged	3 :				

- (a) Killed the person murdered; or
- (b) Knew or had reason to know that life would be taken or lethal force used; or
- (c) Acted with reckless indifference to human life and was a major participant in the Sexual Assault committed.

The murder involved torture, depravity of mind or the mutilation of the victim.

DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this ZPC/ day of October, 1993.

Chack 12 OA

EXHIBIT B18

EXHIBIT B18

1	DISTRICT COUL							
· 2	CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA							
3								
4	THE STATE OF NEVADA,) CASE NO. C108501							
5	[
6	-VS-							
7	CARL LEE MARTIN							
8	Defendant. Defendant. Defendant.							
9	BI LA VILLE							
10	VERDICT Deputy							
11	We, the Jury in the above entitled case, having found the							
12	Defendant, CARL LEE MARTIN, Guilty, impose a sentence of:							
13	COUNT I - Murder of the First Degree (Joseph Smith III)							
14	Life with the Possibility of Parole;							
15	Life without the Possibility of Parole;							
16	Death.							
17	COUNTRY							
18	COUNT II - Murder of the First Degree (Vikki Smith)							
19	Life with the Possibility of Parole;							
20	Life without the Possibility of Parole;							
21	Death.							
22								
23	DATED at Las Vegas, Nevada, this 28th day of October, 1993.							
24	Edal in Ox							
2 5	FOREPERSON							
26	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
27								

CE

found the

Exhibit 39

Exhibit 39

Code No. 4185

CIIGNAL

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

THE HONORABLE CONNIE STEINHEIMER, DISTRICT JUDGE

-000-

SIAOSI VANISI,

Petitioner.

Case No. CR98P0516

VS.

Dept. No. 4

STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS POST-CONVICTION HEARING MONDAY, MAY 2, 2005 RENO, NEVADA

Reported By: DENISE PHIPPS, CCR No. 234

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534

APPEARANCES:

For the Petitioner:

SCOTT EDWARDS Attorney at Law 729 Evans Avenue Reno, Nevada 89512 -and-

THOMAS L. QUALLS Attorney at Law 443 Marsh Avenue Reno, Nevada 89509

For the Respondent:

TERRENCE P. McCARTHY
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
75 Court Street
Reno, Nevada 89520

S.Van is i 2JDG05345

. 1

2

. 3

4

. 5

.6

. 7

.8

.9

20

21

22

23

24

RENO, NEVADA, MONDAY, MAY 2, 2005, 11:10 A.M.

THE COURT: This is the time set for hearing.

Today we're going to proceed with the writ of habeas

corpus hearing.

Counsel, are you ready to proceed?

MR. EDWARDS: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. McCARTHY: State's ready.

MR. EDWARDS: Your Honor, before I forget, before we adjourn for the day, we'd like another date not too far out for continuation of evidence and argument upon the petition and I guess the motion to dismiss.

THE COURT: And you need to have Mr. Specchio available at that time?

MR. EDWARDS: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And someone from the Consulate?

MR. EDWARDS: Well, maybe.

THE COURT: So when do you want us to start looking for that date?

MR. EDWARDS: About 30 days, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You think it will be that long before Mr. Specchio is back?

MR. EDWARDS: I think two weeks is what I hear

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

775-746-3534

AA01594

9

.0

. 8

from his former staff.

THE COURT: Okay. We'll start looking.

MR. EDWARDS: About two weeks or more.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. EDWARDS: And at this time, Your Honor, I'd like to call Mr. Gregory, Stephen Gregory, to the stand.

STEPHEN GREGORY

called as a witness on behalf of the Petitioner, having been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. EDWARDS:

- Could you please state your name and spell your Q first name.
 - Α Stephen Gregory, S-t-e-p-h-e-n.
 - What's your occupation? Q
 - I'm a lawyer. Α
 - Q How long have you been licensed as a lawyer?
 - Α 32 years, over 30 years.
 - Is that all here in the state of Nevada? Q
 - Α Yes.
 - Q Did you have occasion to represent an individual

AA01595